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Business review

The year ended 31 December 2007 represents the first twelve-month reporting penod since the Ferrovial-led consortium acquired BAA Limited {formerly
BAA pic) ('BAA ), through Aurport Development and Investrment Limited (ADIL') in June 2006 The previous reporting penod was for the nine-month penod
ended 31 December 2006 ADIL 1s the immediate parent company of BAA in the United Kingdom (‘UK")

The principal activities of the BAA Limited and its subsidianes (the Group') are the provision and management of airport faciities in the UK and overseas
The Group 15 also involved n airport-related property development and owns and cperates the Heathrow Express rall ink between Heathrow and
Paddington, London

Bunng the year, the investments in Budapest Arport and certain Australian airports were sold, and sale processes commenced in respect of World Duty
Free Europe {WDFE') and Airport Property Partnership ('APP'} It 1s management's expectation that WDFE and APP wall be sold in the first half of 2008,
and the assets and habilibes of these operations have been classified as held-for-sale at year end WDFE and APP, along with the investments disposed
of dunng the year, have been classified as discontinued operations in the income statement and cash flow statement at 31 December 2007 Pror pencd
comparatives have been restated to reflect this classification

This business review Is presented under three sections
Management review and outlook ~ overview of the year ended 31 December 2007, along the key factors likely to impact the Group n 2008

Financial performance — presentation and explanaton of the key drivers behind the underying financiat performance reported for the year ended 31
December 2007 and analys:s of the financial position of the Group as at that date The Group's accounting and reporting policies and procedures are also
considered

Risk management — outline of the Group’s approach to nsk management, sources of assurance and highlight of the key business nsks identified by the
Group Executive Committee

Management review and outlook
Review of 2007

Total passenger numbers in 2007 were 158 8 million, of which continuing operations {UK arports and Naples) contnbuted 155 7 millior {2 0% increase cn
2006) UK arports passengers numbers were 150 0 million (1 6% above 2006), wath strong growth on Morth Atlantic, Chinese and Indian routes offsetting
a declne in domeshtic traffic

For continuing operations, revenues were £2,247 million (7 9% increase compared to 2006} which, after deducting costs of operations, resulted in an
operating profit before tax of £627 million, and a net profit after tax of £495 milion The net profit after tax of discontinued operations {(including the net
gain on disposals) was £249 million

2007 was undoubtedly a challenging year for the Group The alleged terronst attack at Glasgow Awrport on 30 June 2007 was a stark reminder of the
increasingly unpredictable secunty threat we face and the high-profile chmate change debate dunng the year highlighted some of the important
environmental considerations being addressed by our industry The Group also faced investigations by the Competition Commussion {(*CC"), the Civil
Awviation Authonty (‘CAA'), and the Transport Select Committee of the House of Commons Most mportantly, the Group continued to respond to pressure
from passengers and airline customers to deliver a world class airport experence

The sudden and marked changes in secunty procedures, announced by the Department for Transport {'DfT") n August 2006 and at vanous points since,

continue to pose challenges for passengers and awmport managers allke The Group's awports have responded by investing heavily in new staff and

equipment to reduce gueues, whilst mamntaining robust secunty standards Dunng 2007, the Group

* significantly increased the number of secunty officers at its seven UK arrports By the end of December 2007, there were 2,200 more officers than in
August 2006 representing an increase of around 70%

= opened 20% more secunty lanes at the London airports by reorganising existing space and removing retall outlets

= invested in new archway metal detectors and x-ray screening equipment at all atrports that will lead to improvements in the secunty processes for
passengers

* tnafled body scanning technology, fingerpnint and ins identification at the arrports to explore ways of improving passenger throughput

These addiional resources increased secunty capacity and have reduced waibng tmes for passengers In December 2007, security queues at Heathrow
and Stansted were below 10 minutes for 94% of the tme and Gatwick actueved queue times of less than 10 minutes for 97% of the time

Improved secunty performance 18 only one element of the Group’s programme to deliver rapid improvemenits in the leve! of service at the airports The
reliabilty of essential equipment such as Ifts and escalators has alse improved and all airports are now consistently achieving above 98% availability
scores on these assets Durnng 2007, the airports spent an additional £30 million over and above existing budgets to clean, repair and improve exstng
facilites

The Group has also been investing in new terminal faciiies By the end of 2007, Terminal 5 at Heathrow was 99% complete and it remains on track to
open on 27 March 2008 Also at Heathrow, the reconfiguration of the check-in area in Terminal 1 commenced and the forecourt and Virgm Atlantic check-
In zone at Terminal 3 were completely transformed Gatwack too has been undergoing significant change and work to extend the departure lounge in the
South Terminal 1s now well underway Stansted has progressed with the extension of its arnvals area and Glasgow Airport started development on a new
departure lounge, due to be compleied in the autumn of 2008

To deliver higher levels of passenger expenence, the Group 1s clear that significant additional investment will also be needed to replace and renew
existing terminal facilites In the spnng of 2007, the Group gained planning permission for a new termmnal at Heathrow - Heathrow East - to replace the
fitty year old Terminal 2 and adjacent Queen’s Bullding In the latter part of the year, the Government also launched a public consultation on the future
development of the arpart including plans to build a third unway and sixth terminal

The public inquiry nto the expansion of Stansted to a 35 million passenger aport was completed dunng the year, although the results are not yet known
The Awiation White Paper Progress Report was published by the DfT at the end of 2006 and re-stated the Govemment's commitment to the delivery of a
second runway at Stansted as the first new runway in the South East of England The Group has continued to develop plans for a second runway and
associated faciities throughout 2007 and planning applications will be submitted shortly These will include improvements to road and rail access to the
airport

The signfficant investment in resource and infrastructure 1s key to the Groups commitment to put the passenger first and has been the focus of much
scrubiny by the CAA and CC dunng the fifth quinquennial Price Control Review of Heathrow and Gatwick, which has continued throughout 2007 Following
a reference by the Office of Fair Trading (‘OFT') the CC also commenced a full review of the Group’s ownership of seven arports in the UK




Qutlook for 2008

Passenger Volumes

Passenger volumes at the seven UK airports are expected to ncrease by 1-2% dunng 2008 reflecting recent economic trends and the latest assessment
of the likely response by artines to the EU-US Open Skies agreement Some camers have already announced new transatlantic services, although the
extra capacity may mean that load factors will initially be lower Singapore Airines will also commence commercial fights of the new Awrbus A380 from
Heathrow during March 2008

As evidenced in 2006, and to a lesser extent in 2007, passenger traffic can be impacted by a vanety of unforeseen events which {to a significant extent)
are not directly controllable by the Group, such as the tightened securnty measures and weather condihons

Aeronautical Revenues

In March 2008, the CAA will publish its pnice control review for both Heathrow and Gatwick for the period from 1 Apn! 2008 to 31 March 2013
{‘quinquennium 5') In its draft proposals document published in November 2007, the CAA assumed a weighted average cost of capital {WACC') of 6 2%
at Heathrow and 6 5% at Gatwick The Group continues to believe that these represent an unprecedented and unjustified reduction with respect to the
overall level of cost of capital, especially considenng recent market turbulence, and the marked change to previous regulatory settiements Based on the
assumptions outlined within the CAA’s November 2007 document, the maximum levels of airport charges per passenger at Heathrow and Gatwick are
outlined below

2007/08 Prices 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 201112 2012113
Heathrow £1197 £12 84 £13 80 £14 84 £1590
Gatwick £6 07 £6 19 £6 32 £6 44 £6 57

The Government announced In January 2008, following industry consultation, that it rejected the CAA's proposal for de-designation of Stansted Awrport
The CAA s therefore obliged to undertzke a pnce control review of Stansted for the five-year penod commencing 1 Apn! 2009 This process will include a
review by the CC which is expected to make ils reccmmendations to the CAA in October 2008 pror to the final price determination being published earty
in 2009 Dunng the 2007/08 penod, pnce increases at Stansted will remain at RPI

The remaining Group arports are not designated for the purposes of price cap regulation and are free to set charges n iine with market forcas

Other Revenues
Steady growth in commercial revenues 15 expected across all airports over the next year although the impact of the Open Skies route changes and the
significant arrine relocation programme at Heathrow following the opening of Terminal 5 will offset much of the gams anticipated from this new facility

Operating Costs

Rising utility prices, the additonal costs of operating Terminal 5 at Heathrow and expenditure aftnbutable to increasing service standards are evident
within the outlock for 2008 Durning the year, howsver, as part of the programme to simplify the organisation, announced in 2007, a significant number of
managenal and back office support staff will be leaving the business Much of the cost of this prcgramme was accounted for dunng 2007

Disposals and Re-Financing
As part of the strategy to dispose of non-core assets, the sale of WOFE and APP are expected to be completed in the first half of 2008 Proceeds from
these sales will be mainly used to re-pay acquisition debt held by ADIL

ADIL and BAA anticipate that dunng 2008 it will finalise the permanent refinancing that was envisaged as part of the acquisiion in 2006 Completion of
permanent refinancing will not be possible prier to final determination of arport charges that wall apply to Heathrow and Gatwick arports in quinguennium
S The refinancing process assumes separation of regulated and non-regulated arports and establishing different long term funding structures for each
group Financing for the regulated arports assumes an investment-grade structure within a secuntised group being put in place with the existing BAA
Limited bonds to be nigrated into that structure Addiional financing in that structure would be facilitated through the issue of new bonds and bank debt
The financing of the non-regulated airports i1s expected to be through bank debt

Tax Changes
A nurmnber of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the March 2007 Budget Statement, some of which were enacted in the 2007
Finance Act and some are expected to be enacted in the 2008 Finance Act

In particular, the UK Government announced in the March 2007 Budget that the Industnal Buldings Allowances ('IBAs") would be abolished over three
years from 1 Apnl 2008 The Group could be abliged to recognise an exceptional accounting loss in the form of a charge for deferred tax in the year in
which IBA's abolition 1s substantively enacted This accounting impact will be neutral in the long term as the loss will be offset in the following years in the
form of reduced charges for deferred tax The deferred tax labiity which the Group would have had to provide at 31 December 2007 if these changes
were substantively enacted amounts to £1 2 bilhlon The actual mpact 1s expected to be £1 4 bilion 1in 2008 when capital expenditure incurred in the
penod to substantive enactment 1s taken into account However, the cash impact of the proposed abolition of {BA on the Group in ‘qumquennium 5' s not
matenal due to the transiional pencd regime applicable to 2011 and the low taxable mcome base of Group The impact of the proposed aboliton on
future penods 1s uncertain due to the potential regulatory change to a post-tax allowed return {as 1s the case n other regulated industnes), following the
Competition Commussion (‘CC’) comments on its report to the CAA dated 28 September 2007 Under the existing regulatory framework, and assuming no
further changes, the present value on the reduced cash flows for the existing assets would be approximately £500 milhon

Capital expenditure
The current capital investment plans for the regulated airports in the penod 2008/09 - 2017/18 15 forecast to be in excess of £15 billion (2007/08 prices),
depending on the outcome of certain planning applications, such as mixed-mode and runway 3 at Heathrow

The capital plans for quinguennium 5 for the two largest London arports have received broad support from airline customers through the constructive
engagement process, and as a result have recewved the approval of the CAA The planned capital expenditure for gquinguennium 5 for Heathrow and
Gatwick (2007/08 pnces) s £3,877 million and £874 million respectively

Plans are well developed for the transformation of Heathrow following the opening of Termina! 5 with the reconfiguration of Terminal 1 to accommodate
the STAR Alliance and the significant refurbishment of Temunals 3 and 4 The proposals also include the construction of the TSC satellite building and the
development of a new terminal to replace Terminal 2 - Heathrow East The Govemment’s consultation into the potential expansion of Heathrow by
means of a mixed mode nunway operation andfor a third runway are due to conclude in February 2008, although publication of the findings and final
decisions from the Government are not expected until later in the year

Al Gatwick, plans largely focus on the expansion of the North Terminal although in 2008 the South Terminat departure lounge extension will be completed
and work will begin on the replacement of the mter-terminal track transit system The extension to the amnvals area at Stansted will be finished in 2008
and the publication of the G1 planning nquiry 1s expected i the first half of the year Applications for a second runway and associated mfrastructure at
Stansted will also be submitted dunng the early part of 2008 In Scolland the departure lounge extension in Glasgow Auwport will be finalised and
Edinburgh Atrport walt also re-surface its runway over the next twelve months

Market Enquiry

The CC invastigation tnto the supply of airport services by the Group foliowed a refarence by the OFT to the CC in March 2007 The CC has since taken
evidence from a range of interested parties, and pubhshed an ‘Issues Statement’ in August 2007 which sets out the main areas it Intends to investigate
The CC 1s currently collecting and assessing further evidence and expects to produce a document entitled ‘Emerging Thinking' by Apnl 2008 The CC will
request further evidence from interested paries before issuing its ‘Provisional Findings' by August 2008 The CC expects to issue its final report in
December 2008, although # has until March 2009 to complete its work f additional time s needed




Financial performance

Some of the significant events and programmes that are highlighted in this Business Review have particular impacts on the way in which the financial
resulls have been presented The main areas of impact were

* Discontinued operations — dunng the year the Group sold its investments in Budapest Arrport and certain Australian arports Further, the WDFE and
APP operations have been classified as held-for-sale at year-end The financial results of these operations, including the gains and losses on disposal,
have been classified as discontinued operations and reported separately in the income statement and cash flow statement

= Exceptional items relating to
- reorganisation costs - including “Simphfying the Organisation change programme
- Heathrow Terminals 1 and 2 accelerated depreciation
- Heathrow Termwnal 5 launch / operahonal readingss costs

* The reporting of farr value gains and losses ansing from the valuation of mwvestment property and denvatve financial instruments as ‘certain re-
measurements’

These areas of impact are included In our statutory results However, to make it easier for users of these financial statements to understand the
sustainable performance of the business, the following commentary, in respect of revenue, operating costs and operating profit, 1s based on the
underlying performance of the Group after adjusting for these items Tc aid with the underiying performance analysis, comparable pnor year figures have
been provided for the Group's operations As the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 did not represent a statutory reporting penod for the Group,
these comparatives figures are based on management accounts and are unaudited

Summary of underlying performance

Year ended 9 months ended Year ended Change’
31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006' %
Revenue - continuing operations (£ million) 2,247 1,629 2,083 79
Operating profit — continuing operations (£ million) 747 549 659 134
Passenger traffic® (milion} 1557 1205 1527 20
Summary statutory results for the period
Year ended 9 months ended Year ended Change”
31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006’ %
Revenue — continuing operations (£ million) 2,247 1,629 n/a n/a
Operating profit — continuing operations (£ million) 627 579 n‘a n/a
Profit before tax — continuing cperations (mithon) 563 478 n/a na
UK airports’ net retail Income* (£ million) 490 369 471 40
UK airports net retail income per passenger £327 £318 £320 23
Cash generated from continuing operations (£ million) 982 715 n/a n/a
Capital expenditure — continuing operations®(E milion) 1,147 1,106 n/a nfa
Net debt 7 (£ mitlion) 6,955 6,299 nia n/a

TFigures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on the Group's management accounts Statutory results were not calculated
or published for the year ended 31 December 2006, however comparative figures have been calculated for certain tems

2Based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 December 2007 against the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 {unaudited)

*Excludes Budapast Airport's 3 0 million passengers for the penod 1 January 2007 untl disposal date (6 June 2007) and 5 2 milhon for the mine months
ended 31 December 2006 and 6 7 million for the year ended 31 December 2006

*Defined as revenues recewved directly from third-party to charge retail operators and concession fees paid to UK airports by World Duty Free {WDF")
and WDF's operating profit

*Defined as net retail ncome divided by the number of UK passengers {excluding helicopter passengers)

SCapital expenditure excludes capitalised interest

? Excluding interest payable

Statutory results - continuing operations
The statutory operating profit for the current and prior penod includes the impact of the following iterns

= £186 million net exceptional costs before certain re-measurements (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £112 million) including
- £80 millien {(nine months ended 31 December 2006 £22 million) reorganisation costs
- £40 million {(nine months ended 31 December 2006 £11 million} Terminal 5 launch / operational readiness costs
- £66 million accelerated depreciation on Heathrow Terminals 1 and 2 (nine menths ended 31 December 2006 £17 million Terminal 2 only)

In the mine months ended 31 December 2006 further exceptional items included £45 mitlion bid advisory costs, £17 million staff related costs due to
change in ownership

= £66 milhon (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £142 million) operating profit related to ‘certain re-measurements’ reflecting the fair value gains
and losses on investment property revaluatons and disposals and the far value gains and losses ansing on the re-measurement of denvative financial
mnsiruments (together with the associated far value gains and losses on any underlying hedged tems that are part of a far value hedging relationship)

= £249 millton {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £103 million) - net profit after tax from discontinued operations

The directors consider that reporting revenue and operating profit befare the items listed above more accurately reflects the underlying performance of
the Group's business As such, undertying revenue and operating profit have been determined by adjusting for these items, as summansed below




Reconciliation of statutory results to underlying operating profit performance

Year ended 9 months ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006' Change®
£m £m fm %
Revenue - continuing operations
Statutory (a) 2,247 1,629 n/a n/a
Underlying revenue (d) 2,247 1,629 2,083 79
Operating costs — continuing operations
Statutory (b) 1,686 1,192 n/a n/a
Net exceptional costs {186} (112) n/a na
Underlying operating costs (e) 1,500 1,080 1,424 53
Other operating income — continuing operations
Statutory (c) 66 142 nia n/a
Certain re-measurements (66} (142} n/a n‘a
Underlying other operating Income (f) - - nfa n/a
Operating profit — continuing operations
Statutory (a—b +c) 627 579 nfa n/a
Underlying operating profit {d — e + f) 747 549 659 134

T Underlying figures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on lhe Group’s managemenl accounts Statutory results were
not calculated or published for the year ended 31 December 2006

2 Based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 December 2007 against the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 (unaudited) Certain
statutory percentage changes have not been calculated as statutory results for the year ended 31 December 2006 wers not calculated or published

The commentary below, in respect of revenue, gperating costs and operating profit, 1S based on the underlying performance of the Group The
commentary an all other aspects of the Group s results 15 based on the statutory financial nformation

Underlying performance

Revenue

Underlying revenue for the year was £2,247 million (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £1,629 milhon) and £2,083 milkon for the year ended 31
December 2006 A statutory to undertying performance reconciliation for the year ended 31 December 2006 1s not able to be provided as it was not a
statutory reporting penod and information wn this form was not published The underying performance for the year ended 31 December 2007 reflects a
2 0% increase In terminal passengers, a 10 9% nse n average aeronautical charges per passenger and a 2 3% increase In UK airports’ net retail income
per passenger compared to the year ended 31 December 2006 These items are shown in separate sections withun this financial performance section

Passenger traffic growth
Passenger traffic 1s a key dniver of revenue for an airport business

Traffic summary — BAA awrports (excluding Budapest) (million)

Year ended 9 months ended Year ended Change’
31 December 2007 31 Decemnber 2008 31 December 2006' %

Total

Arr transport movements (000°s) 1,359 6 1,028 2 1,3370 17
Termnal passengers 1557 1205 1527 20
Passengers by location

Heathrow 679 520 673 08
Gatwick 352 274 341 32
Stansted 238 188 237 03
Total regulated airports passengers 126 9 98 2 1251 14
Glasgow 87 72 88 (11)
Edinburgh 90 68 86 50
Aberdeen 34 25 32 79
Southampton 20 15 19 28
Total UK passengers 150 ¢ 116 2 1476 16
Naples 57 43 51 133
Total 1557 1205 1527 20

" Undertying figures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on Group’s management accounts Statutory results were not
calculated or published for the year ended 31 December 2006

? These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 December 2007 against
the comparative year ended 31 December 2006

UK passenger traffic for the year ended 31 December 2007 was 1 6% higher than the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 Heathrow Aiport's
passenger traffic mcreased 0 8% aganst the comparative, which was assisted by strong growth in the North Atlantic sector

Although heightened secunty measures applied to all UK airports during 2007, passengers have adapted to these requirements and the Group invested
heawvily in secunty staff and new secunty lanes to minimise both queues and passengers disruption caused by the new reguirements

Heathrow (+1 6%) and Gatwick {+4 8%) both saw increases in their North Atlantic traffic, spurred by the nsing strength of the Sterling against the US
dollar At Heathrow the strongest growing country markets were China (including Hong Kong} which was up by 11 7% and India (+7 4%)

Gatwick, Edinburgh, Southampton and Aberdeen all recarded sharp increases in European scheduled traffic, ranging from 9 3% at Gatwick to 31 2% al
Southampton In all cases it was the expansion i low cost services which was mainly responsible Glasgow expenenced a shght decrease in passengers
due to the weakening of the charter flights market




Aeronautical charges

Aeronautical charges income (excluding Budapest) was £1,075 million for the year ended 31 December 2007 {nine months ended 31 December 2006
£760 million) and £951 nmillion for the year ended 31 December 2006 Growth has been dnven by tanff ncreases at the pnce-regulated London aiports
and supported by increased passenger traffic The average aeronautical charge per passenger rose to £6 90 against the £6 31 for the nine months ended
31 December 2006 and £6 22 for the year ended 31 December 2006

Aeronautical charges summary (by airport)

Aeronautical charges Per passenger
9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended

31 December 31 December 31 Decernber 31 December 31 December 31 December
2007 2006 2005'  Change? 2007 2006 2008' Change’
£m £m £m % £ £ £ %
Heathrow 624 451 567 99 921 B 67 B 44 91
Gatwick 175 133 161 84 497 484 473 51
Stansted 127 64 79 620 535 340 332 615

Total regulated

airports 926 648 807 147 730 6 60 645 132
Glasgow 44 36 45 {(12) 504 504 504 (0 1)
Edinburgh 49 36 47 45 541 537 543 (0 5)
Aberdeen 23 16 21 87 662 6 54 657 07
Southampton 13 10 13 06 6 57 633 671 {2 1)
Total UK airports 1,055 746 933 131 704 642 632 113
Naples 20 14 18 187 3Is 336 as? 19
Total airports 1,075 760 951 131 690 631 622 109

' Figures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on the Group’s management accounts
These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 Cecember 2007 against
the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 (unaudited)

The London arrports (Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted) are subject to economic regulaton The regulator of the three London arports, the CAA, has
several statutory duties, one of which is to encourage investment in new faciibes at these three airports in time to satisfy anticipated demands by users of
the arports (arlines and passengers) In seting the cap on aeronautical pncing, the regulator, in effect, sets an allowed retum on investment at these
arports The allowed rate of return m the current regulatory pnce contro! penod (2003/04 to 2007/08) 1s 7 75% {pre-tax real) with increases in aeronautical
pncing capped at RPI +6 5% a year at Heathrow and at RPI +0% at Gatwick and Stansted

Airines operating at Heathrow and Gatwick have been charged at the regulatory price cap and this has driven income growth In aeronautical charges
From 1 Apnl 2007 Stansted ceased applying certain discounts against its aeronautical charges and moved to full tanff

Retall income

UK airports® net retail income (excluding WDF) for the year ended 31 December 2007 was £490 million {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £369
million) and £471 milhon for the year ended 31 December 2006 Net retall income per UK passenger rose 2 3% to £3 27 against £3 20 for the
comparative year

Analysis of net retail income - excluding WDF

Year ended 9 months ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006 Change®
£m £m £m %
UK
Arrside specialist shops 74 52 68 84
Landside shops and bookshops 48 38 48 03
Catermng 60 45 58 36
Bureaux de change 57 43 57 {13)
Car parking 164 122 156 55
Car rental 22 17 21 53
Advertising (media sales) 36 28 34 50
Other retail 29 24 30 {0 5)
Total UK 490 369 471 40
Naples 11 7 9 209
Per passenger (£)°
UK 327 318 320 23
Naples 190 179 178 67

T Figures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on the Group s management accounts

2 These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 December 2007 against
the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 {unaudited)

* These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers




Reconciliation of UK airports’ net retall income and net retail income per passenger - excluding WDF

Year ended 9 months ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006' Changa2

£m £m Em %

UK airports’ retall revenue 656 489 628 44
Less cost of sales (166) (120} {157) 57
Net retail Income 490 369 471 40
UK fixed wing passengers (million) 149 116 147 15
Net retail Income per passenger® £327 £318 320 23

¥ Figures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on the Group's management accounts

These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 December 2007
against the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 {unaudited)
® Based on un-rounded numbers and excluding helicopter passengers

Retail performed solidly with a 2 3% uplift in income per passenger This was in spite of a difficult arport operational environment and weak retail
performance on the High Street Landside retading was particularly hit by changes to security rules but a number of initiatives aimed at mitigating this
proved effective

Overall, performance reflected the success of our customer-led strategy with products and services tailored to meet the needs of the passenger mix in
each terminal The Group's dynamic approach to managing retal! space ensures the offer remains flexible and rejevant and enables us to respond to the
turbulence the Group has expenenced over the past year

In addition, the Group has nvested heavily in improving our travel services and car parking offer and creating a pricing strategy that more effectively
reflects supply, demand and competitive pressures

Other revenue
Other revenues consist of rental income fram mvestment properties and operational facilities, along with raill and other incidental ncome

Operating costs
The Group’s underlying operating costs for the year ended 31 December 2007 were £1,500 milion {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £1,080
rrullion) and £1,424 millon for the year ended 31 December 2006

Underlying Group operating costs

Year ended 9 months ended Year ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006’ Change?

£m £m £m %

Staff costs 585 425 544 93
Rent and rates 125 89 117 77
Utilties 114 83 111 34
Mamtenance 184 112 153 197
Retail costs 41 30 40 07
Depreciation and amortisation 326 226 299 91
Other costs 209 180 235 (11 1)
Caprtalised costs {94) {65) (75) 250
Group operating costs 1,500 1,080 1,424 53

¥ Figures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on the Group’s management accounts
These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 December 2007 agamnst
the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 (unaudited)

The factors set out below impacted the Group’s underlying operating costs

* Full year mpact of costs associated with the hure of 2,200 additional secunty staff since August 2006 to implement tighter secunty measures and reduce
queues

* Costs associated with the ‘simplifying the orgamsation’ change programme (refer balow)

* Maintenance costs incurred as part of the *fix the ‘basics’ programme to mmprove our faciliies, including increased servicing of arport plant and
equipment, painting, replacement of ageing fittings and cleaning

* The higher depreciation and amortisation charge reflects the ncrease in the depreciable cost of operational assets through our caprial investment
programme

* Anincrease in capitalised costs reflecting the Group's capital expenditure programme, particularly delivering Heathrow T5

Operating profit
Underlying operating profit was £747 millon (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £549 million) and £659 million for the year ended 31 December
2006 (representing an increase of 13 4%)




Performance by segment
On a segmental basis, underlying revenue and operating profit performance

Underlying segmental analysis

Year ended 9 months ended Year ended
31 December 2007 3t December 2006 31 December 2006 Change?
Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenue profit Revenue profit Revenue profit Revenue profit
£m £m £m Em £m £m % %
Price-regulated
Lendon airports 1,923 622 1,389 459 1,775 558 82 115
Heathrow® 1,274 438 926 329 1,199 398 62 102
Gatwick 407 98 314 ag 338 109 46 {10 2}
Stansted 242 86 149 42 188 51 282 677
Scottish alrports 214 83 160 654 202 76 44 91
Glasgow 86 29 687 26 84 29 12 -
Edinburgh 87 38 64 27 81 34 48 105
Aberdeen 4 16 29 11 37 13 108 263
QOther airports 65 14 45 12 56 13 143 62
Southampton 24 7 17 6 22 T 91 11 1)
Naples 41 7 28 6 34 6 176 183
Other operations* 45 28 35 4 50 12 83) 1400
Total 2,247 747 1,629 549 2,083 659 79 134

anures for the year ended 31 December 2006 are unaudited and are based on the Group’s monthly management accounts
2 These numbers have been calculated on un-rounded numbers and are based on the percentage change for the year ended 31 December 2007 against
the comparative year ended 31 December 2006 (unaudited)

3 Heathrow Express and MHeathrow Connect rall services are included within the Heathrow Airport segment The rail contnbution to Heathrow's revenue
and operating profit for the year was £80 milllon (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £58 million / year ended 31 December 2006 £76 mallion) and
£21 million (mine months ended 31 December 20068 £14 million / year ended 31 December 2006 £18 million) respectively
* “Other operations’ Include BAA Lynton, fees from the Group's international retaul and arrport management contracts and other commercial operations

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are based on statutory results rather than underlying resuits and relate to continuing operations

Reorganisation costs

Costs associated with the Group’s change programmes amounting to £80 milion were charged in the year (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £22
milion) The ‘Simplifying the Orgamisaton” programme, which commenced in late 2007 and will be camed out dunng 2008-09, 1s designed to build a more
efficient company which i1s able to meet future challenges by removing duplcation, and creating a simplfied organisational structure, focussed on putiing
the passenger first A provision for these costs, which relate solely to severance and pension payments, was recorded prior to year-end and meets the
requirements of IAS 37 - Provisions, contingent habilites and conlingenl assets No cash payments have been made in respect of this provision in the
year ended 31 December 2007 Certamn costs associated with the Group’s previcus change programme ‘Delivering Excellence’ was also incummed during
the year

Heathrow Termuinal 5 (‘T5’} launch / operational readiness costs

Heathrow T5 launch / operational readiness costs of £40 million (mne months ended 31 December 2006 £11 milion) were incurred dunng the year
These costs are associated with managing the opening of Temninal 5 to ensure it 1s smoothly integrated into the Heathrow operations This includes fit-
out, facilitating the mobilisation of key contractors, the recruitment and enabling of staff, testing to ensure the building 1s Yit for purpose’, co-ordinating the
major overnight move activities, IT costs and running and testing baggage systems

Accelerated depreciation on Heathrow Termunals 1 and 2

With the anticipated development of Heathrow East, Terminals 1 and 2 at Heathrow Airport will be demolished Depreciation on these assets has been
accelerated amounting to an additional depreciatron charge of £66 million in the year ended 31 December 2007 (nine months ended 31 December 2006
£17 million in relation to Terminal 2 only) to reflect the shortened useful ives of the assets

Certain re-measurements

Investment property valuation
The investment property valuation at 31 December 2007 resulted n a gain of £45 million {31 December 2006 £163 milhon)} relating to continuing
operations Refer Note 10 to the financial statements

Derwvatives

Financial denvatives recogrised in finance costs have given nse to a net fair value loss In the income statement of £6 million {rine months ended 31
December 2006 gain of £28 million) The £6 million loss in 2007 1s pnmanly due to £41 million loss on the equity swap denvative offset by £32 million
gains on the forward starting interest rate swaps untl termunation, and one denvative which does not quality for hedge accounting The gain in the prnor
year was largely in respect of £1,050 million forward starting interest rate swaps held at 31 December 2006, most of which were terminated dunng 2007

Financial denwvatives recognised in operating profit have given rise to a net fair value gan in the income statement of £21 million {rine months ended 31
December 2006 £21 milion less) The current year gain 1s manly due to the change In vatuation of electneity denvatives

Net finance costs

The Group's net finance costs, on continuing operations and before certan re-measurements were £58 million (nine months to 31 December 2006 £129
millicn), after capitahsed interest of £260 million (ine months ended 31 December 2006 £137 mililon) The lower annualised year on year net finance
cost Is pnmanly due to interest recerved on the loan 1o ADIL and higher capitalised interest, offset by a higher mierest charge due to higher average
borrowings balance dunng the year Capitalised interest reflects the Group's ongoing capital mvestment programme and related assets under
construction, particularly Heathrow T5 Interest paid for the year amounts to £408 million {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £209 midion)

Taxation
A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the March 2007 Budget Statement, some of which were enacted in the 2007
Finance Act and some are expected to be enacted in the 2008 Finance Act (refer to Outlook for 2008 section)




The effect of the reduction m the UK Corporation tax rate from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 Apnl 2008 (enacted in the 2007 Finance Act} has been to
reduce the deferred tax provided at 31 December 2007 by £110 milbion  This £110 million decrease in deferred tax results in a tax credit of £114 million in
the Income statement and a decrease of other reserves by £4 milhon

Before certain re-measurements, the tax charge for the penod was £45 mithon {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £60 million)

As well as the tax charge associated with profits before certain re-measurements, an additional tax charge of £23 million {nine months ended 31
December 2006 £57 milion} has been recognised within certain re-measurements This compnses a current tax charge of £7 mullion and a defemed tax
credit of £3 million ansing from the net gains on denvative financial mstruments and a deferred tax charge of £19 million ansing from gains on investment
properties

Dividend
No dividend was paid or declared in the year ended 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £243 million)

Summary cash flow

Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Cash generated from continuing operations 982 715
Tax paid and dividend receved n (26}
Net cash generated from discontinued operations 80 56
Net cash flow from operations 1,055 745
Capital expenditure (1,147 (1,106}
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 102
Dwvidends paid - (243)
Investment activities of discontinued operations’ 1,578 23
Proceeds from sale of assets? 65 55
Net interest paid {378) (180}
Loan to parent company (1,897) (114)
Cther 68 (24)
Movement in net debt (excluding Interest payable) {656) (742)
TIncludes proceeds from disposals of operations
2 Excluding proceeds from disposals of operations
Balance sheet
At 31 December 2007, the Group had net assets of £7,338 million (31 December 2006 £6,349 million)
Balance sheet position
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Total assets 17,749 15,878
Net assets (before pension surplus/(defict)) ) o 216 6582
Pension surplus/(deficit) 122 (233)
Net assets 7,338 6,349
Gross debt' T 7,095 6,392
Cash and cash eqtnvalents 140 93
" Net dabt' T T T T 8955 6299
_l]errawn committed faciliies . - T 1,—2‘?0—-_- T 2,050

~"Excluding interest payable

Capiltal investment programme
Group capital expenditure 1n continuing operations and discontinued operations, excluding caprtalised interest, and reflected in the balance sheet was
£1,170 million in the year ended 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £1,025 million)

Regulatory Asset Base

The Regulatory Asset Base ('RAB'} of BAA's London airports 15 provided to the CAA' and published for each year of the pnca control penod ending on 31
March in the Regulatory Accounts of Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted airports The RAB 15 rolled forward according to the formula set by the CAA In
2003 The RABs for the year ended 31 March 2007 were Heathrow - £8 4 billion, Gatwick - £1 5 bilion Stansted - £1 1 bilion At 31 December 2007, the
estmated RABs for each airport were Heathrow - £9 6 billion, Gatwick - £1 6 bilhon, Stansted - £1 1 billion

Financing - excluding interest payable

Gross debt at 31 December 2007 was £7,095 milion (31 December 2006 £6,392 millon) At 31 December 2007, net debt had increased to £6,955
million (31 December 2006 £6,299 millon) The Group had outstanding interest rate swaps of £825 million and cross-currency swaps of £1 7 billion (in
respect of €1 bilhon 2012 €750 millon 2014 and €750 miflion 2018 bonds) The mark to market valuation of these denvatives at 31 December 2007
implied a net asset of £88 million (31 December 2006 a net habibty of £45 million)




Below 15 a table summansing movements in gross debt in the year

Movement in gross debt - excluding interest payable

£m
Gross debt 31 December 2006 6,392
Repayment of debt {235y
Increase in drawings — Semor capex facility 780
Increase in drawaings — £200 million term faciity 200
Joint ventures reclassified as held-for-sale or disposed of (208)
Fair value revaluation 148
Amortisation of transaction costs, premiums and discounts 18
Gross debt 31 December 2007 7,095

"Repayment of BAA Limited 7 875% 2007 £200 million bond and European Investment Bank facilites of £35 million

In February 2008 the immediate parent company (ADIL) entered into a new Senior Capex facility of £800 milion The Group will access that facility
through ADIL

Pensions

At 31 December 2007, under International Accounting Standards 19 — Employee Benefits, the Group had a surplus of assets over future habidities of £122
million This compnsed a £144 million surplus n relation to the BAA Pension Scheme and a £22 million habilty relating to other retirement benefits This
compares with a deficit of £233 mullion at 31 December 2008, compnsing £212 million in relation to the BAA Pension Scheme and £21 mullion relating to
other retirement benefits

The BAA Pension Scheme assets grew by £147 million to £2 267 million (31 December 2006 £2,120 million) reflecting strong investment performance
The decline of the scheme's habilbes of £209 millon to £2,123 mulhon (31 December 2006 £2,332 million) was the result of changes in active
membership, an increase in commutation rates, realignment of the pensionable salary base and an increase in the discount rate used to value the
schemes future retirement obligations The triennial actuanal valuation for the trustees of the scheme as at September 2007 has been performed and the
results are anticipated to be made available in early 2008

Contingent liabilities
The Group has contingent liabililes, compnsing letters of credit, performance / surety bonds, performance guarantees and other items ansing in the
normal course of business amounting to £123 million at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £192 million)

Refer to Note 31 for further details

Accounting and reporting policies and procedures

This annual report complies with the European regulation to report consolidated financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRS’) from 1 Apnl 2005 onwards The consolidated results in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 are presented
on an IFRS basis as adopted by the European Union, along with the comparative information for the mine months ended 31 December 2006 The BAA
Limited entity (‘the Company’) accounts are stated under UK GAAP The Group’s accounting policies and areas of significant accounting judgements and
estimates are detailed wthin the financial statements
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Risk management

Risk management 15 a key element of the Group activittes Risk management in the Group faciitates the dentfication, evaluation and effective
management of the threats to the achievement of the Group's purpose, vision, objectives, goals and strategies The wiston of nsk management is to
embed the awareness of nsk at all levels of the organisation, in such a way that all significant business decisions are nsk-informed Particular emphasis 1s
given to safety and secunty, environmental, commercial, financial, reputational and legal nsks with the framework ensunng that the Group's financial
aspirations are not pursued at the expense of nsk management, thus delivering a balanced control of nsk, using formal sk management processes

A key element of the nsk management process 15 the nsk-profiing methodology This determines the threats to the achievement of business objectives
and day to day operations i terms of ikellhood and conseqguence at both inherent and residual level, after taking account of mitigating and controling
actions Details are maintamed in a hierarchy of nsk registers used as the basis far regular review of nsk management at Executive Committee and Board
level The nsk registers are also used to form decisions relating to the procuremant of insurance cover

The nsk management process is also aimed at defining and implementing clear accountabilities, processes and reporting formats that deliver efficient and
effective management assurance to the Board to ensure statutory comphance whilst supporting business urits to successfully manage therr operations
and properly embed nsk management within these operations The operation of the process and the individual registers are subject to review by BAA's
Business Assurance function, whose pnmary responsibility 1s to provide independent assurance to the Board that the controls put in place by
management to mitigate nsks are working effectively

The principal corporate nsks as identified by the Executive Commuttes are

Safety and security risks

Safety and secunty nsks are regarded as an important nisk lo manage throughout the Group The Group mitigates this nsk by adopting and enforcing
rigorous policies and procedures supported by professional traming and by investment in leading-edge secunty technology The Group works clasely with
government agencies, police and the Armed Forces to match secunty measures 1o a level commensurate with the current raised threat environment

Assurance 15 provided through management reporting processes and a specialist compliance audit functon, reporting directly to the Health, Safety,
Secunty and Environment Committee

Regulatory environment, legal and reputational risks

CAA regulation

As noted previously, the Group's operations at Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted aiports are subject to regulatory review by the CAA and CC every five
years The nsk of an adverse outcome from the five-yearly review 1s mitigated as far as possible by a dedicated project team which ensures full
compliance with formal regulatory requirements, establishes a sound relationship with the regulator and advises the Executive Committee and Board on
regutatory matters

Part of the regulatory framework 1s BAA's involvement in constructive engagement with the arhines In order to manage the nsk of adverse airline
relations, all aidines have been invited to participate at all stages and to be represented on all fora — eg joint steenng groups When feedback was sought
or processes measured, independent third parties have been utiised for data gathenng and analysis to ensure confidentiality and neutrality of
interpretation In addmion, key stakeholders are engaged on a joint planning basis which provides the airines with the opportunity of ainng views and
sharing plans, thereby ensunng their ongoing requirements are articulated and understood

Competition rules

The penalties for falling to comply with the 1998 Competition Act and relevant EU law are recogrised as nsks to manage within the Group, given its
position i certain markets Clear policy direction, which includes compulsory awareness training and close support from the internal legal department,
has reduced the likelihood of the Group breaching these regulations Refer to the ‘Outlook for 2008 section for detalls on the regulatory process and OFT
inveshigation on competiion

Capacity shortfall

Failure to secure necessary planning permissions would lead to the Group having nsufficient capacity to meet the expected demands of the industry
resulting in increased congestion and dechning passenger service The Group mitigates this nsk through extensive consultatron with community groups
and authonties at a local level and active participation in Government ¢onsultations and other advisory groups However, it should be noted that, despite
the mitigating action taken by maragement and a planned capital investment programme, which will provide additional capacity, it 1s antcipated that
demand will continue to exceed avallable capacity in London throughout the next ten years In addition, the mvestment in addibonal capacity at the
Group’s three London arports 1s dependent on the outcome of the regulatory settlements in 2008 and 2013

Existing planning approvals provide for approximate passenger traffic growth at Heathrow (including T5) to ‘80 million, Gatwack to around 40 million and
Siansted to around 25 million Planning consent to grow Stansted passenger traffic to around 35 million passengers per annum using the existting single
runway ('SG1') was refused by Uttlesford Distnct Council in November 2006 The Group immediately submitted an appeal in order to obtan planning
permussion in ine with Government policy The inquiry inte SG1 commenced in May 2007 and the cutcome s pending In January 2007, BAA announced
detais of its development proposal for Stansted Generation 2 ('SG2') This proposal mcludes the provision of a second runway and terminal and will have
an mitial capacity for about 10 million passengers per annum This proposal 1s subject to a separate planning ingurry

The UK Government's Aviaton White Paper The Future of Ar Transport’ (‘the White Paper') was pubbshed i December of 2003 and clanfied the
Government's policies regarding aiport expansion for the whole of the country It emphasised the need for airport operators to invest in delivenng new
capacity The Group recogrises a need to manage aport development followng the White Paper in a way that does not lead to a loss of public or
poltical confidence in BAA To mitigate this nsk, separate dedicated project teams {with relevant expertise and disciplines) for Heathrow and Stansted
have been established to work closely with local communities, aifines and other interested parties

Environment

Environmental nsks need to be managed throughout the Group as they have the potental to mmpact the Group's reputalion, and our licence to operate
and to grow The Group miigates these nsks at a number of levels, including environmental management systems and training programmes embedded
with operations, clear environmental sirategies, resource conservabon witiatives, proactive and progressive influencing of third partes, stakeholder
engagement and community relalions programmes The Company works closely with a range of stakeholders to ensure that the Group reacts effectively
to the challenges posed by the environmental agenda

Commerclal and financial risks

Capital projects

The Group recognises that failure to control key capital project costs and delivery could damage its financial standing and reputation The Group mitigates
this nsk through adherence to a continually enhanced project process and by systems of project reviews before approval, dunng construction and after
project completion In addition, specific additonal controls for Heathrow T5 were introduced, including the strengthening of the project management team
and the commitment of dedicated specialist internal audit and nsk management resources to reinforce assurance to the Board Similar controls will also
be adopted for the Stansted Generation 2 and Heathrow East terminal developments All projects include an allowance for nsk and opportunity
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'Simplifying the Organisation’

The Group has recently announced its ‘Simphfying the Orgarisation’ programme which 1s designed to build a more efficient company able to meet future
challenges by removing duplication, and creating a simplfied organisational structure, focussed on putting the passenger first The programme which
commenced n late 2007, wil be carmed out dunng 2008-09 The Group has identfied that failure to manage this change programme could lead to the
non-realisation of the identified benefits andfor a significant cost overrun which could result in reduced customer service, damage to company reputation,
industnal action and an inability to generate planned revenues This nisk 1s mitigated through clear plans and detailed business cases, assignment of work
stream change leaders, workforce consultation, employee agreement plans, effective and timely communication, early engagement of affected thurd
parties and frequent review of progress and 1ssues by the Group’s Executive Committee

Changes in demand
The nsk of unanticipated long-term changes in passenger demand for arr travel could lead to misaligned operational capacity wathin the Group Since it is
net possible to identify the timeng or penod of such an effect, the Group cames out evaluaticns through a senes of scenano planning exercises

Industrial relations

The nsk of industnal action by key staff that affects critical services, curta's operations, and has an adverse financial and reputational impact on the
Group 1s recognised The Group has a range of formal national and loecal consultative bodies to discuss pay, employment conditions and business issues
with the Trade Unions A three year Pay Agreement was reached in August 2006 covering negotiated grades within the Group The Group could also be
exposed in the short term to the effect of Industnal action at key clients {1 e aifines)

Duning 2007 the Group announced that it would close its defined benefits scheme to new joiners Negotiabions wath the representative Unions were held in
late 2007 and early 2008 wath regard to the plan The Unions threatened industna! action in early 2008, however this was averted through discussion and
negotiation The Company will continue to engage Unions and other interested parties on the progress of this iniiative In order to avoid disruption to its
operations

Treasury
The Board approves prudent treasury policies and delegates certain responsibiities to senior management who directly contro! day-to-day treasury
operations

Treasury operates on a centralised non-speculative nsk basis The treasury function 1s not permitted to speculate in financial instruments Its purpose 1s to
identify, mitigate and hedge treasury related financial nsks inherent to the Group's business operations To achieve this, the Group enters into interest
rate swaps, cross currency Interest rate swaps, foreign exchange spot and forward/swap transactions and equity swaps to protect against interest rate,
currency and share price nsk The pnmary treasury related financial nsks faced by the Group which are the focus of treasury policies, summansed as

(a) interest rates
The Group maintains a mix of fixed and floating rate debt At the pencd end, the level of fixed-rate debt after hedging of denvatives at the penod-end was
84%

{b) Foreign currency

For debt raised in foreign currencies, the Group uses cross-currency swaps to hedge the related interest and pnncipal payments In cases where debt I1s
raised in foreign currencies, $00% of the exposure 1 hedged i this way, subject to a de minimus imit The Group uses forewgn currency forward
contracts to hedge matenal capital expendiure in foreign currencies once a project 1s certain to proceed Al December 2007, there were no significant
unmatched exposures

{c) Funding and liquidity

To ensure continuity of funding and flexibility, debt matunties are spread over a range of dates, thereby ensunng that the Group 15 not exposed to
excessive refinancing nsk in any one year Dunng 2008 the parent company expects to finalise its permanent refinancing for the ADIL Group, including
BAA Frnancing for the regulated airports assumes an investment-grade structure being put m place with the existng BAA Limited bonds to be rigrated
nto that structure Addshional financing in that structure would be facilitated through the 1ssue of new bonds and bank debt The financing of the non-
regulated amports 15 expected to be through bank debt

{d) Covenants
Covenants are standardised wherever possible and are monitored on an ongaing basis with formal testing reported to the Board and Executive
Committee The Group continues to comply with all borrowing obligations and financial covenants

(e) Counterparty credit
The Group's exposure to credit-related losses, in the event of non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments, 1s mitigated by imiting
axposure to any one party or instrument

By order of the Board

Chief Exgcutive Chief Financial Officer
7 March 2008 7 March 2008




Report of the directors

BAA Limited Annual Report 31 December 2007
The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 (the year’)

Principal Activities
The pnncipal activihes of the Group are the provision and management of arport facilities in the UK and overseas The Group is also invelved in
arport-related property development and owns and operates the Heathrow Express rail ink between Heathrow and Paddington, London

A review of the progress of the Group’s business during the year, the key performance indicators, pnncipal business nisks, hkely future
developments and post balance sheet avents are reported in the Business Review on pages 210 12

Results and Dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 4 No dividends were paid or proposed during the year

Employment Policies
The Group's employment policies are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure they remain effective Our overall aim 1s to create and sustamn a
high performing orgamsation by bullding the commitment of our people

We have defined a set of guiding prninciples to ensure fair recruitment and selection We continue to aim to recrut, retain and develop high caiibre
people and have talent and succession management programmes for managenal roles

The Group 15 committed to giving full and far consideration to applicants for employment Every applicant or employee will be treated equally
whatever therr race, colour, nationality, ethnic or natienal ongin, sex, mantal status, sexual onentation, rehigious belief, disability, age or community
background We actively encourage a diverse range of applicants and commit to fair treatment of all apphicants Qur investment in learning and
development 1s guided by senmior ine managers who ensure that we provide the leaming opportunities to support the competencies we see as key
to the Group’s success

Employee mnvolvement and consultation 1s managed in a number of ways including employee surveys, team updates, brefings, roadshows, staff
newspapers, and an intranet We also operate frameworks for consultation in all the businesses where we have a majonty shareholding We are
committed to managing people through change carefully and fairly

Together these arrangements am to provide a common awareness amongst employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the
performance of their business There is a high level of parkicipation in the Group's employment benefits scheme, the Bonus Saver Plan, which
provides for employees and directors to be rewarded based on the Group's performance

Directors

The directors who served dunng the penod and since the period end are as follows

Sir Nigel Rudd {Chaiman) Appointed 13 Septernber 2007
Ifmge Meiras {Deputy Chairman) Appointed 10 May 2007
Stephen Nelson {Chiaf Executive Officer)

Luis Sanchez Salmerén  {Deputy Chief Executive Officer}

Stuart Baldwin {Alternate Director)

José Leo {Chief Financial Officer)

Renaud Faucher

Ang Eng Seng

Ghislain Gauthier

José Mana Perez Tremps
Nicolds Villén Jiménez

Lord Stevens Appointed 13 September 2007
Richard Droumn Appointed 13 September 2007
Juan Béjar Ochoa Resigned 10 May 2007

Tony Douglas Resigned 19 July 2007

Joaquin Ayuso Garcia Resigned 13 September 2007
Macky Tall Resigned 13 September 2007
Rafael del Pino Calvo-Sotelo Resigned 13 September 2007

Dwectors’ Interests

None of the directors had any interests in the ordinary shares of the Company at the end of the pened or had interests in any of the Company's
subsidianes at any tme dunng the penod None of the directors had a matenal interest in any contract of significance with the Company or any of
its subsiciary undertakings during the year

Directors’ Indemnity

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that, subject to the provisions of the Compamies Act, but without prejudice to any indemnity to which
the person concemed might ctherwise be entitled, every director of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
any loss or liabiity mcurred by him in defending any proceedings in which judgment 1s given in s favour, or in which he 1S acquitted or in
connection with any application in which relief 1s granted to lum by the court for any neghgence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust by him in
relation to the Company or otherwise in cannection with his duties or powers or office
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Donations

The Group's chantable donations for the year amounted to £2,105,009 (31 December 2006 £1,345,000) The Group incurs expenditure, which
may be classified as political donations under the Political Partes, Elechons and Referendums Act 2000 (the relevant provisions of which are now
contained in Part XA of the Companies Act 1985) At the 2006 Annual General Meeting, the Company obtamned a renewed shareholders’ approval
under this Act to commit up to a maximum of £60,000 of such expenditure (in aggregate} over the followng four years Expenditure in the year
ended 31 December 2007 which, in our view, may fall within this category 1s

* Sponsorship of Scottish reception at Liberal Democrat Federal Conference £3,266 (nine month ended 31 December 2006 £7,269)

Payment Policy

The Company complies with the Department of Trade and Industry's better payment practice code which stales that responsible companies
should

= Agree payment terms at the outset of a transaction and adhere to them

* Provide suppliers with clear guidance on payment procedures

= Pay bills in accordance with any contract agreed or as required by law

* Adwise suppliers without delay when invoices are contested and settle disputes quickly

The Company had 18 day's purchases outstanding at 31 December 2007 {31 December 2006 17 days), based on the average daly amount
invoiced by supphers dunng the year ended 31 December 2007

Audit Information

The directors are satsfied that the auditors are aware of all information relevant to the audit of the Company's Consolidated Financia! Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and that they have taken all steps that they cught to have taken as directors in order to make them aware of
any relevant audit informaton and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Financial RIsk Management
The Group's financial nsk management objectives and policies, including hedging policies along with the Group's exposure to nsk can be found on
page 11 and 12 of the Risk Management section of the Business Review

By order of the Board

Robert Her
Company ‘Btary
7 March L]

Registered Office
130 Wilton Road

London
SWIV 1LQ
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report
and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with Intermational Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union) (IFRSs) and the parent company financial statements in accordance with the applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {UK GAAP)) The financial statements are required by law to grve a true and
far view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that year

In prepanng those financial statements, the directors are required to

s Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently

* Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

= State that the Group and the parent company financial statements comply with IFRSs and UK GAAP respectively, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained m the financial statements

» Prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the company will continue In business, In
which case there should be supporting assumptions or qualfications as necessary

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in prepanng the financial statements

The directors are responsible for ensuring proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Group
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 and with regards {o the Group's financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulations They are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the statement of the auditors’ responsibilities set out on page 17 far the Group and on
page 58 for the parent company
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Independent auditor's report to the members of BAA Limited

We have audited the Group financial statements of BAA Limited for the year ended 31 December 2007 which
compnse the conschidated income statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense, the
consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow stalement and the related notes These Group financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of BAA Limited for the year ended 31
December 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparng the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union are set out
in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilties

Our responsibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory

requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) This repont, including the opinion, has been
prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act
1985 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving this optnion, accept or assume responsibility for any other |
purpese or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly ‘
agreed by our prior consent In writing ‘

We report to you our opimion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors
1s consistent with the Group financial statements The information given in the Report of the Directors includes that
specific Information presented in the Business Review that 1s cross referred from the Report of the Directors

In addition we report to you if in our opimon, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit, or if Information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 15 not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited
Group financial statements The other information comprises only the Report of the Directors and the Business
Review We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the Group financial statements Qur responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures In the Group financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
Jjudgments made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Group's circumstances, consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial
statements are free from matenal misstalement, whether caused by fraud or other wrregularty or error In forming our
opimon we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Group financial statements

Opinion

In our opimion

+«  The Group financial statements give a true and fairr view, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended,

+«  The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 1985 and

Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and
«  The information given in the Directors’ Report 18 consistent with the Group financial statements

’Dﬁc.,ngzui ssloopir LLE

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

7 March 2008




Consolidated iIncome statement for the year ended 31 December 2007

Restated’
Year ended 31 December 2007 9 months ended 31 December 2006
Before certain re- Certan re- Total  Before certan re- Certain re- Total
measurements’ measurements’ measurements’ measurements’
Note £m £m £m Em £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1 2,247 - 2,247 1,629 - 1,629
Operating costs 2 {1,686) - (1,686) (1,192) - {1.192)
Other operating iIncome
Farr value gains on investment properties 10 - 45 45 - 163 163
Farr value gains/ (losses) on denvative
financial instruments 5b - 21 21 - (21) (21)
Operating profit 1 561 66 627 437 142 579
Analysed as
Operating profit before exceptional items 747 66 813 549 142 691
Exceptional tems 4 (186) - (186} {112) - {112)
561 66 627 437 142 579
Financing
Finance income Sa 108 - 108 20 - 20
Financa costs Sa {166) - (166) (149) - (149)
Fair value {losses) gains on denvative
financial instruments 5b - {6) {6) - 28 28
Profit before tax 503 60 563 308 170 478
Taxation 6 (45) (23) {68) {60) {57} (117}
Profit for the period from continuing 458 kY 495 248 113 361
operations
Net profit from discontinued operations 7 233 16 249 60 43 103
Consohdated profit for the year 691 53 744 308 156 464
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 690 53 743 307 156 463
Minonty interest 1 - 1 1 - 1
Proposed final dividend for the period 8 - -
Dividends in the period 8 - 243

1

Certain re-measurements (including those of associates and joint ventures) consist of fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations

and disposals and the gains and losses ansing on the re-measurement and disposal of denvative financial mstruments, together with the associated

far value gains and losses on any underlying hedged items that are part of a fair value hedging relationship, together with the related tax impact of

these items

Pnor penod comparatives have been restated as certain operations have been classified as discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2007

In accordance wath [FRS, prior penod comparatives in the income statement and cash flow statement have been restated Pnor penod comparatives

are not required to be restated in the balance sheet
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Consolidated statement of recognised iIncome and €XPeNnse for the year ended 31 December 2007

Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Note £m £m
Avallable-for-sale investments
Gains taken to equity 29 17 4
Transferred to income statement 29 9 -
Cash flow hedges
Gans/{losses) taken to equity 29 82 {30)
Transferred to income statement 29 (139) 58
Actuanal ganf{loss) 21/30 375 {58)
Net movement in currency translation reserve 29 10’ 3
Deferred tax {charge)credit on items transferred directly to equity 20/29 (98)° 15
Current tax credit/{charge) on items transferred to equity 29 4 [K)]
Current tax taken directly to equity (share-based payments) - 26
Deferred tax taken directly to equity (share-based payments) 20 - (14}
Share based payments 30 3 -
Net income recognised directly in equity 245 29
Profit for the penod 744 464
Total recognised income and expense for the period 989 493
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 286 492
Minonty interest 3 :
989 493

" Includes minonty interest of £2 rmillion gain

2 Includes a deferred tax charge of £2 mullion in relation to assets classified as held-for-sale
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Consolidated balance sheeét as at 31 December 2007

Restated’
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
Note £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment g 11,128 10,134
Investment properties 10 3,139 3,503
Intangible assets 11 80 130
Investment in associates 12 8 2
Availlable-for-sale investments 13 47 122
Denvative financial instruments 18 94 7
Retirement benefit surplus 21 122 -
Trade and cother receivables 15 74 4
14,692 13,902
Current assets
Inventones 14 9 30
Trade and other receivables 15 2,348 392
Derivative finan¢ial instruments 18 10 1
Cash and cash equivalents 18 140 93
2,507 516
Assets classified as held-for-sale 25 550 1,460
Total assets 17,749 15,878
Liabilties
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 {6,621} (6,156)
Denvative finangial nstruments 18 (2) -
Deferred income tax habilities 20 {1,713} (1,687)
Retirement benefit obligations 21 - (233)
Provisions 23 (105) (99)
Trade and other payables 24 (16) (22)
{8,457) (8,193)
Current habtlihes
Borowings 17 (620) (369)
Denvatve financial instruments 18 (47) (65)
Provisions 23 (95) (51)
Current income tax labilities {299) (135)
Trade and other payables 24 (627) (591)
(1,688) {1,211)
Liabilies associated with assets classiied as held-for-sale 25 (266) (125)
Total habilities {10,411) {9,529)
Net assets 7,338 6,349
Equity
Capital and reserves
Ordinary shares 26 1,102 1,102
Share premium 27 325 325
Revaluation reserve 28 386 388
Fair value and other reserves 29 53 84
Retained earnings 30 5,459 4,440
Total shareholders” equity 7,325 6,339
Minonty interest in equity 13 10
Total equity 7,338 6,349

! Interest payable 15 included wathin current borrowings and the Semor Capex Facility 1s included within nen-current borrowings at 31
December 2007 The comparative balance at 31 Decermnber 2006 has been reclassified from trade and other payables and current
borrowings respectively

The financial statements on pages 18 to 56 were approved by the Board of directors and authonised for issue on 7 March 2008 and signed
on behalf of the Board

Chief Exegutrve




Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2007

Restated’
Year ended @ months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Note £m £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from continuing operations 32 982 715
Dividends received - 16
Income taxes paid {7) {42)
Cash generated from discontinued operations 80 58
Net cash from gperating activities 1,055 745
Investing activities
Purchase of
Property, plant and equipment (1,1386) {1,091)
Investment properties 10 (2) -
Intangible assets 11 (9} (15)
Purchass of held-to-matunity financial assets - (524)
Proceeds from held-to-matunty financial assets on matunty - 936
Loan to parent entity {1,897} (114)
Loan repayments received from associates and joint ventures - 2
Preceeds from available-for-sale investments 41 -
Proceeds from sale of
Intangible assets - 20
Investment properties 10 22
Property, plant and equipment 14 13
Purchase of avatlable-for-sale investments - (5)
Investing activities of discontinued operations 1,578 23
Net cash used in investing activities {1,401) {733)
Financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 32 - 102
Interest paid 32 (408) {209)
Interest receved 32 30 29
Proceeds from borrowings 32 980 200
Repayment of borrowings 32 {235) {187)
Dividends paid to shareholders 32 - {243)
Financing activities of discontinued operations (1) {18)
Net provided/{used in} by financing activities 366 (326)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 20 (314)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of penod 130 444
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 16 150 130

' Pror period comparatives have been restated as certain operations have been classified as discontinued dunng the year ended
31 December 2007 In accordance with IFRS, prior penod comparatives in the income statement and cash flow statement have
been restated Further, interest payable 15 included within borrowings in the balance sheet at 31 December 2007 Pnor period
comparatives have been restated to reclassify cash flows from operating activities tg financing activities

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents with an onginal matunty of three months or less and held

for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments compnse
+ cash at bank and cash in hand
+ short-term deposits
= money market funds
= cash balances held by operations classified as held-for-sale
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Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Group financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS}) as adopted by the European Union
(EU) and under the histonical cost convention, except for investment properties, available-for-sale assets, denvative financial instruments and financial
habiittes that qualfy as hedged items under a far value hedge accounting system These exceplions to the histonc cost convention have been
measured at far value in accordance with IFRS and as permitted by the Far Value Drrective as implemented in the amended Companes Act 1985

The Group complies with both IAS 39 'Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’, as adopted by the EU and the full version of IAS 39
1ssued by the IASB

Al the date of approving these financial statements, IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures' and the complementary amendment to IAS 1
‘Presentation of financial statements - Capital disclosures’ were effective and have been adopted by the Group in these financial statements IFRS 7
introduces new requirements relating to the financial instruments and does not have any impact on the presentation and valuation of the Group's
financiai instruments |AS 1 introduces new disclosure requirements relating to capital Further, the following Intemational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (1IFRIC’) interpretatons, which were effective in 2007 have not been applied in these financial statements as they were not
relevant to the Group

* IFRIC 7 ‘Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hypennflatonary Economies’

= IFRIC 8 ‘Scope of [FRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’

* IFRIC 9 ‘Scope ‘Re-assessment of Embedded Dernvatives'

* IFRIC 10 'Intenm Fmnancral Reporting and Imparment’

* |FRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Agreements’

= IFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty Programmes’

At the date of approving these financial statements, the following IFRIC interpretations and IFRS have not been apphed as they were not effective in
2007 andfor were relevant to the Group

= IFRIC 14 1AS19 -The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and therr Interaction’, 1s relevant to the Group and has no
impact as the pension scheme surplus is recoverable by the Group under the Scheme rules

= IFRS 8 ‘Operating segments’ replaces IAS 14 'Reporting Financial Infermation by Segment” and aligns the segments infermation on the same hasis
as that used for the nternal reporting purposes The standard 1s subject to endorsement by the European Union The expected impact 1s still being
assessed in detail by management

Interpretation early adopted by the Group

IFRIC 11, 'IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions', was early adopted in 2007 IFRIC 11 provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions wnvolving treasury shares or involving group entites (for example, options over a parent's shares) should be accounted for as equity settled
or cash settled share-based payment transactions in the stand-alone accounts of the parent and group companies In 2007 the ultimate parent entity,
Ferrovial S A, granted options In its shares 10 employees of the Group These share options are accounted for as equity settled

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial staterments of the Company and all ts subsidianes, togsther wath the Group’s share of profits
(net of interest and tax) and net assets of associated undertakings, accounted for using the equity method The Group's share of assets and habilihes
and revenues and costs of jont ventures are recorded under proportionate consolidation on the appropnate financial ine tem The results of
subsidianes acquired or sold are consolidated for the penods from or to the date on which control passed

Minonty interests in the net assets of consclidated subsidianes are identified separately from the Group's share of equily Minonty interests consist of
the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business combination and the minonty’s share of changes tn equity since the date of the
combination Losses applicable to minonty tnterests in excess of the minonty’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of
the Group except to the extent that the minonty has a binding obligation and 1s able to make an additional investment to cover losses

Inter-group balances and transactions of the continuing operations are eliminated dunng the consolidabon process Transachons between continuing
and discontinued operations that are expected to continue post sale are not elminated from continuing operations in order to present the continuing
operations on a basis consistent with the underlying trading

Primary financial statements format
The IFRS pnmary financial statements are presented in accordance with IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

A columnar approach has been adopted in the income statement and the impact of three principal groups of items 1s shown in a separate column
(‘certain re-measurements’) This allows the presentation of the performance of the business before these specific fair value gains and losses (including
those of associates) These items are

1 Farr value gains and losses on investment property revaluations and disposals

n Dernvative financial instruments and the fair value gains and losses on any underlying hedged items that are part of a farr value hedging relatonship
w The associated tax impacts of the items in (1)) and (u) above

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 1S measured at the aggregate of the farr values,
at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabiiies incurred or assumed and equity instruments 1ssued by the Group In exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attnbutable to the business combination, such as professional fees paid to accountants, legal advisers, valuers and
other consultants to effect the combination General administrative costs and other costs that cannot be directly attnbuted to the particutar combination
being accounted for are not included in the cost of the combination and are recognised as an expense when incurred

The acquiree s identifiable assets, hlabilites and contingent habilies that meet the conditions for recogribion under IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ are
recognised at their farr values at the acqursition date

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and inially measured at cost, being the excess of the costs of the business combination over
the Group s interest in the net far value of the identifiable assets, habiiies and contingent labilties recogrised If, after reassessment, the Group's
tnterest in the net fair value of the acquiree s identrfiable assets, habilibes and contingent liabiliies exceeds the cost of the business combination, the
excess 15 recogruised immediately In the iIncome statement

The interest of minonty shareholders in the acquiree 1s imibially measured as the mmonty s proportion of the net fair value of the identfiable assets
habilities and contingent iabilities recognised
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Segment reporting

The Group 1s organised according to its regulatory environment, geographical location and type of operation The operating businesses are pnmarly
the indmdual arrports, which are organised and managed separately The secondary reporting format is geographical segments based on the location
of the business assets and operations

As such, the following three main business segments are reported
" Price regulated London airports

* Scottish arports

= QOther arports

The 'Other airports’ business segment includes Southampton and Naples airports

Operations faling outside of the main business segments are reported as ‘other operations

Revenue
Revenue is recogmsed in accordance with IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and compnses

Airport and other traffic charges

Primanty

* Passenger charges based on the number of departing passengers on deparure

= Awrcraft landing charges levied according to weight on landing

* Aircraft parking charges based on a combination of weight and time parked

= Other charges levied for passenger and baggage handling when these services are rendered

Retail
= World Duty Free income s recognised as each sale 1s transacted, net of value added tax (VAT')
= Concession fees from retail and commercial concessionaires at or around arports are based upon turnover certificates supplied by concessionarres

Property and operational facilities

* Property letting sales, recogmised on a straight-line basis over the term of the rental penod

* Usage charges made for operational systems {eg check-in-desks), recognised as each service perod 1s provided
* Proceeds from the sale of trading properties, recognised on the unconditional completion of the sale

* Other invoiced sales, recogrnised on the performance of the service

Other
= QOther income includes rail ncome from ticket sales, recogrised at the time of travel

Government grants

On occasion the Group may receive grants to provide financial ncentives to improve awport infrastructure considered to be in the best interest of the
pubhc No such grants have been receved in relabon to any UK arrports Grants received are treated as deferred income untit such time as the terms of
the grant are satisfied at which time it 1s recognised as revenue in the pernod

Borrowing costs

Borrowming costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of gualfying assets, which are assets that necessanly take a
substantial penod of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until the asset 1s complete and ready for use
Such borrowing costs are capitalised once planning permussion has been obtained and/or where projects are in the early stages of planming but the
directors are satsfied that the necessary consents will be received Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending therr expenditure cn qualifying assets 1s deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

All other borrowing costs are recogrised in the income statement in the penod in which they are incurred

Exceptional items

The Group presents a total net figure, on the face of the mcome statement, for excepbional items Exceptonal items are matenal items of income and
expense that, because of the unusual nature and expected infrequency of the events giving nse to them, ment separate presentation to allow an
understanding of the Group's financial performance

Such events may include gans or losses on the disposal of businesses or assels, mator recrganisation of businesses, closure or mothballing of
terminals and those costs incurred in brnging new amport terminal complexes and aifields to operational readiness that are not able to be capitalised
as part of the project

Addhional details of items disclosed as exceptional are provided

Assats classified held-for-sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held-for-sale  therr carrying amount will be recovered pnncipally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use This condition 1s regarded as met only when the sale 15 highly probable and the asset {or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale n ils present condition Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recogmition as
a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of therr previous carmying amount and far value less
costs to sell

Discontinued operations
Disconbinued operations consist of business segments and other non-core assets that have either been sold dunng the penod or are classified as held-
for-sale at year end The financial performance and cash flows of discontinued operations are separately reported

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on acquisition ts recognised as an asset and inially measured at cost, being the excess of the costs of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the dentfiable assets, labliies and contingent habikies recogrised Identifiable assets, habilities and
contingent abilties are grouped in cash generating units being indwidual price regulated and non-regulated awrports and other operations which are
organised and managed separately Goodwill ansing on acgwsition 1s capitalised and 15 subject to an impaimment review, either annually or more
frequently if there 1s an indication that the carrying value of goodwill may be impared Any impairment I1s recogmsed mmediately in the income
statement Animpairment loss recognised In respect of goodwill 1s not reversed in 3 subsequent penod Gamns and losses on the dispasal of an entity
include the camying amount of goodwill refating to the entity sold

After the inihal recognition, goodwall 1s camed at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
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Internally-generated intangible assets

Development expenditure incurred in respect of indwvidual projects 1s capitalised when the future economic benefit of the project 15 probable and s
racognised only If all of the following conditions are met

" An intangible asset is created that can be separately identified

* It1s probable that the intangible asset created will generate future economic benefits

* The development cost of the intangible asset can be measured reliably

This type of expenditure prmanly relates to internally developed software and website projects and these are amortised on a straight-ine basis over
their useful lives of three to seven years

Where no intemally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure 15 recogmsed as an expense in the penod in which it is
incurred

Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which it 1s incurred

Asset management contracts
Intangible assets in respect of airport asset management contracts represent the nght to operate externally owned arporis and certain assets for the
penod of the contracts and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining bives of the contracts, subject to iImpaiment

Other intangible assets
Intangible assels acquired separately or as a result of a business acquisitron are capitalised at cost and fair value respectively Where amortisation Is
charged on these assets, the expense 1 taken to the income statement through operating costs

Investment properties

Investment property, which 1s property held to eamn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, 15 stated at fair value at the balance sheet date, as
determined at the intenm and full-year reporting dates by the directors and by external valuers at least once every five years Gains or losses ansing
from changes in the fair value of investment property are recogmised in the income statement in the penod in which they anse

Gains or losses on disposal of an investment property are recogrised in the income statement on the unconditional completion of the sale

Property, plant and equipment

Operational assets

Terminal complexes, aifield assets, plant and equipment, rail assets, and Group occupied properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses At the date of transibon to IFRS, the Group elected to measure the majonty of operational land at farr value and to use these fair
values as deemed cost at that date This excludes land acquired in 2002 for the construction of Temminal 5, as its camying value 1s considered to be at
an appropnate value given the recent acquisition of the land

Assets in the course of construction are stated at cost less provision for mpairment Assets in the course of construction are transferred to completed
assets when substantially all the actmities necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete Where appropriate, cost includes borrowing costs
capitalised, own labour costs of construction-related project management, and directly atinbutable overheads Projects that are in the early stages of
planning are capitalised where the directors are satisfied thal it 1s probable the necessary consents will be recewved and the projects will be developed
to achieve a successful delivery of an asset such that future commercial retums wili flow to the Group The Group reviews these projects on a regular
basis, and at least every six months, to determine whether events or circumstances have ansen that may indicate that the camrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable, at which point the asset would be assessed for impairment

Depreciation
Depreciahon 1s provided on operational assets, other than land, to write off the cost of the assets less estimated residual value, by equal instalments
over thetr expected useful lives as set out betow

Fixed asset lives
Terminal complexes

Terminal bullding pier and satellite structures 2080 years
Terminal fixtures and fithngs 5-20 years
Airpont plant and equiprment
Baggage systems 15 years
Screening equipment 7 years
Lits escalators and travelators 20 years
Other plant and equpment, Including runway ighting and building plant 5-20 years
Tunnels, bndges and subways 50-100 years
Alrfields
Runway surfaces 10-15 years
Runway bases 100 years
Taxways and aprons 50 years
Rail
Aurport transit systems
Rolling stock 20 years
Track 50 years
Railways
Roliing stock 840 years
Tunrels 100 years
Track metatwork 5-10 years
Track bases 50 years
Signals and electnfication work 40 years
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles 4-8 years
Qffice equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 4-5 years
Computer software 3-7 years
Other land and buildings
Short leasehold properties Over penod of lease
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Impairment of assets (excluding goodwill)

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 15 an indicatron that an asset may be impaired If any such indication exists, or when annual
impaiment testing for an asset i1s required, the Group makes an estimate of the assel’s recoverable amount Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent of other assets, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs 15 estimated Recoverable
amount 1s the higher of an asset’s far value less costs of disposal and its value in use Where the camying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the hme value of money and the nsks
specific o the asset Imparment losses of continuing operations are recognised In the mcome statement In those expense categones consistent with
the function of the impaired asset

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether there 1s any indication that previously recogrised impaiment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated A previously recogmised impairment loss 15 reversed anly If there
has been a change In the estimates used lo determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised If that 1s the case
the carrying amount of the asset Is increased to Its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the camying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciaton, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years After such a reversal, the depreciation
charge 1s adjusted in future penods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount less any residual value, on a straight-line basis over its remaning
useful Ife

Investments in assoclates

investments In associates are camed in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisiion changes i the Group's share of the net assets of the
associates, less any impaiment in the value of individual investments The Group's share of net profits and losses of associates are included in the
income statement net of interest and tax

Investments in joint ventures

The Group adopts the proportionate consolidation method to account for its interests in jont ventures Under proportionate consolidation, the Group's
share of assels and habilities and revenues and costs of joint ventures are recorded within the appropriate category in the consolidated balance sheet
or consolidated income statement

Leases
The determination of whether an amangement 15 or contains a lease 15 based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of
whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the nsks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
Inception of the lease at the farr value of the leased property or, If lower, at the present value of the mmmum lease payments Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining batance of the
labihty Finance costs are charged directly against income

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful Iife of the asset and the lease term If there 15 no reasonable certainty
that the Group wili obtain ownership by the end of the lease term

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group retans substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operaling leases Initial direct costs
incurred 10 negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income

Inventories
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or construchve) as a result of a past event, 1t I1s probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estmale can be made of the amount of the obhigation
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the batance sheet date and are discounted to
present value where the effect 1Is matenal

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits with an cnginal
matunty of three months or less, held for the purpose of mesting short-term cash commitments and bank overdrafts, where offset 1s allowed

Financial instruments

Trade and other recevables

Trade and other receivables are recogmsed inihially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment

Investments

On nmitial recognition, financial assets are measured at farr value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attnbutable transaction costs After initial recognition, investments that are classified as 'held-for-trading’ and ‘available-for-sale’ are measured at farr
value Farr value gans or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised n the income statement Fair value gains or losses on available-for-
sale investments are recognised in a separate component of equity until the investment 15 sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the
nvestment 1s detenmined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative farr value gain or loss previously reported in equity 1s included in the income
statement In the case of equity securities classified as avaitable-for-sale, a significant or proionged decline in the fair value of the secunty below its cost
15 considered an indication that the secunty 1s imparred If impairment 1s indicated, the cumulalive farr value gan or loss previousiy reported In equity 1s
included in the iIncome statement

Assets classified as ‘loans and recevables’ or *held-to-maturity’ are recognised an the balance sheet at their amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less any provision for impairment
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Non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an actve market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’ and
are carned at amortised cost using the effective interest method Non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
matunties that the Group’s management has the positive intent and ability to hold-to-matunty are classified as *held-to-matunty’ and are camed at
amortised cost using the effective interest method For investments camed at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the incorme statement
when the investments are de-racognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process

For investments that are traded in an active market, farr value 1s determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the reporting date For
invesiments where there 1s no quoled market price, far value 1s determined by using valuatton techmiques, such as estmated discounted cash flows or
by reference to the current market value of similar investments

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date being the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset

Investments are classified as held-for-sale if therr camying amaunt will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use This
condihion 15 met when the sale 1s highly probable, the asset i1s available for immediate sale in its present condition, management are committed to the
asset disposal, and disposal 1s expected to be completed wathin 12 months Assets classified as held-for-sale cease to be depreciated and are
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less selling costs

Financial liabilities and equity
Fmancial iabilies and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An equity instrument
1S any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its iabilities

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogmised initally at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently staled at amortised cost unless part of a
fair value hedge relationship Any difference between the amount initially recogrised (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the income statement over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are regarded as compound instruments, consisting of a hability component and an equity component At the date of 1ssue, the fair
value of the hability component 1s determined using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar non-convertible bond This amount 1 recorded as a
hability on an amortised cost basis untl extinguished on conversion or matunty of the bonds The remander of the proceeds are allocated to the
conversion ophion and recognised in shareholders' equity, net of income tax

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at ther fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest methog

Share caplital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the par value of proceeds received, net of diect 1ssue costs Where shares are 1ssued
above par value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacled or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date n the countnes
where the Company's subsidianes and associates operate and generate taxable income Management penodically evaluates positions taken In tax
retuns with respect to situaticns in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropnate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorties

Deferred income taxation s provided in full, using the habihty method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and lhiabiiities
and their carrying amounts in the Group financial statements Deferred income taxation 1s not provided on the imtial recognition of an asset or hability In
a transaction, other than a busmess combination, f at the time of the transaction there 1s no effect on ether accounting or taxable profit or loss

Defemred income taxation 1s provided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes, associates and joint ventures, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference s controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse n the
foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which the temporary
differences can be utihsed

Deferred Income taxahon 1s determined using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantially enacted, by the balance sheet date, and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset or liability 1s reahsed or settled

Income tax relating to items recogrused directly i equity 1s recogmised in equity and not in the income statement

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group’s UK pension fund 1s a defined benefit scheme which is self-administered The defined benefit obligation s calculated annually by
independent actuanes using the projected unit credit method Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments or changes in actuanal
assumptions are charged or credited in the statement of recognised income and expense i the penod in which they anse Past service cost 1s
recognised immediately in the income statement to the extent that the benefits are already vested, otherwise it 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over
the average penod untl the benefits become vested

The amount of Income or expendiiure recognised in the income statement as staff costs, in relation to the defined benefit scheme, compnses the
service cost of pension provision relating to the penod, past service costs recognised in accordance with the above policy, the interest cost (being the
increase In the present value of scheme liabilities since the benefits are closer to seftlement) and the Group's long-term expected return on assets
{based on the market value of the scheme assets at the start of the penod, amended for expected changes in the penod resulting from benefits payable
and contnbutions recevable by the scheme)

The retirement benefit obligatton recogrised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the farr value of plan assets Any asset resulting from this calculation s hmited to the present value
of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme plus any unrecognised past service cost

Employees in certain subsidianes are members of separate defined contnbution schemes The pension costs charged to the income statement are the
contnbutions payable by the Group dunng the year

Share based payment
The Group operates an Executive Share Option Plan (ESQF) for direciors and senior employees of the business The ESOP s treated as an equity
settled scheme in accordance with the grant of the options being made by Grupo Ferrowal, S A the ultmate parent company

The far value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of options under the ESOP 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting
pencd of the opttons with the corresponding entry recorded in equity The fair value of the options granted is measured using a binomial model
adjusted by laking into account the exercise pnce volathty, the term dunng which the benefits may be exercised, expected dvidends, a nsk-free
interest rate and the expected timing of the exercise
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At each balance sheet date over the vesting penod, the cumulative expense 15 re-estmated based on the number of options expected to vest with the
impact recorded in the mcome statement and with a corresponding entry in equity

On exercise of the oplions by the employees any expense associated with the acquisition of Ferrovial shares by the Group i1s recorded within equity as
a deemed distnbution

The Group has entered into a number of cash-settled equity swaps that are treated as denvative financial instruments and are intended to hedge the
future cash flows required on potential exercise of the options  The fair value of these equity swap arrangements 1s recorded in the balance sheet with
the gain or loss incurred in the penod recorded wathin financial Income or expense

Dividend distribution
A dividend distnbution to the Company's shareholders 1s recognised as a hability in the Group's financial statements in the penod in which the
shareholders' nght to receive payment of the dividend 1s established by approval of the dividend at the Annual General Meeting Intenm dividends are
recogmised when paid

Foreign currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entiftes are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic environment in
which the entity operates ('the functonal cummency’) The consolidated financial statements are presented in Stering, which 1s the Group's functional
currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions Monetary assets and habibties denominated in foreign currencies are translated inte Stering at the rates of exchange ruling at the year-
end Differences ansing on translation are charged or credited to the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualfying cash flow hedges
and qualfying net mvestment hedges Translation differences on non-meonetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are recognised in equity within the fair value reserve

The results of Group entities (none of which has the cummency of a hypennflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentabon currency (Sterling) are translated into Sterling at the average exchange rate and the balance sheets are translated at year-end exchange
rates Exchange differences ansing on retranslation are taken directly to a separate component of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the transtation of the net investment in foreign entihes, and of borrowings and other currency
nstruments designated as hedges of such nvestments, are taken to shareholders’ equity When a forewgn operation 1s sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal

Goodwll and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habiities of the foreign entity and translated
at the year-end closing exchange rate

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derwvatives are intially recognised at fair value on the date a denvative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at thewr far value The

method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the denvative 1s designated as a hedging instrument, and f o, the nature of the

item being hedged The Group designates certain denvatves as either

= far value hedges, where they hedge the exposure to changes of a recognised asset or hability, or

v cash flow hedges, where they hedge the exposure to vanability in cash flows that are either attnbutable to a particular nsk associated with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset, iabilty or forecasted transaction

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the retatonship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as s nsk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking vanous hedging transactions The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge nception
and on an ongoing basis, of whether the dernvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective In offsetiing changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items

The fuil fair value of a hedging denvative 1s classified as a non-cumrent asset or hability when the remaining hedged item has a matunty of greater 12
months, and as a current asset or liability when the remaming matunty of the hedged item 1s less than 12 months Denvatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are classified as a current asset or liability

(a} Fair value hedge

Changes n the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as farr value hedges are recorded n the income statement, together with any
changes in the far value of the hedged asset or hability that are attnbutable to the hedged nsk The Group only applies farr value hedge accounting for
hedging fixed interest nsk on borrowings The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 1s
recogmsed in the income statement

If the hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of 2 hedged item for which the effective interest
method 15 used 15 amortised 1n the income statement over the penod to matunty

{b) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges Is recognised in equity The gain or
loss reilating to the neffective portion 1s recogmsed immediately in the income statement

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the penods when the hedged item affects profit or loss

When a hedging instrument expires or s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing
in equity at that tme remains in equity and I1s recognised when the forecast transaction s ulbmately recogmsed n the income statement This
accounting policy also relates to the scenano where by the forecast transacton 1s sbill expected to occur When a forecast transaction I1s no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or Ioss that was reported in equity 1$ immedhately transferred to the income slatement

{c) Denvatives at fair value through income statement

Certain denvative instruments do not qualfy for hedge accounting Changes in the fairr vaiue of any these denvative nstruments are recegmised
immediately in the income statement
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In applying the Group s accounting policies management have made estimates and judgements in a number of key areas Actual results may, however,
differ from the estimates calculated and management believe that the following areas present the greatest leve! of uncertainty

White Paper

The UK Government's Aviation White Paper The Future of Awr Transport’ (‘the White Paper’), published on 16 December 2003, sets out the
Government's policy for runway development in the UK The Government chose a second runway at Stansted as s preferred location for the first new
runway in the South East of England As the development of Stansted will be the subject of a planming Inquiry, the Group Is pressing ahead with the
necessary preparation of a planming apphication and environmental impact assessment The costs incurred (o date have been capitahsed as part of the
runway development costs This 1s based on management’s belief that it 1s lighly probable the necessary consents will be received and the project wiil
be developed to achieve a successful delivery of an asset such that future benefits will flow to the Group

Addtionally, the Group has announced three voluntary schemes to compensate those people Iving near Stansted Awport, whose homes will be
affected by the airport expansion These costs are also capitalised as part of the runway development costs

Investment properties

Investment properties were valued at a farr value at 31 December 2007 by Dnvers Jonas, Chartered Surveyors, Strutt and Parker, Chartered
Surveyors, King Sturge, Valuers and Surveyors, and the Company's Head of BAA Professional Services, John Arbuckle BLE (Hons) These valuations
were prepared in ascordance with IFRS and the appraisal and valuation manual 1ssued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuations
were camed out having regard to comparable market evidence In assessing fawr value, current and potential future income (after deduction of non-
recoverable outgoings) has been capitalised using yields denved from market evidence

Taxation

Prowisions for tax cont:tngencies require management to make judgements and estimates in relation to tax issues and exposures Amounts provided are
based on management's Iinterpretation of country specific tax law and the lkelihood of settlement Tax benefits are not recogrised unless the tax
positions are probable of being sustained In armving at this position, management reviews each matenal tax benefit to assess whether a provision
should be taken against full recognition of the benefit on the basis of potential settlement through negotiabon and/or liigation  All such provisions are
included in current tax liabilities

Financial instruments

The Group's investment in National Air Traffic Services Group ('NATS') 1s classified as an available-for-sale investment and recogrused on the balance
sheet at farr value The investment 1s not quoted in an active market and the calculation of its fair value 1s based on a discounted cash flow model using
forecasted cash flows and an appropnate discount rate selected by management

Penslons

Certain assumptions have been adopted for factors that determine the valuation of the Group's hability for pension obligations at penod end and future
retums on pension scheme assets and charges to the income statement The factors have been determined in consultation with the Group's actuary
taking into account market and economic conditions Changes in assumptions can vary from period to penod as a result of changing conditions and
other determinants which may cause increases or decreases in the valuation of the Group's hability for pension obligations The objective when setting
pensicn scheme assumptions for future penods 1s to reflect the expected actual outcomes The impact of the change in assumptions on the valuation of
the net financial position for pension schemes 1s reflected in the statement of recognised iIncome and expense
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Segment information

The Group's pnmary reporting format i1s business segments The operating businesses are pnmanly the indwidual arrports, which are organised and
managed separately The secondary format 1s geographical segments based on the location of the business assets and operations

The ‘Cther arports’ business segment includes Southampton and Naples

The 'Other operations' business segment consists of corporate activities (Including certain consolidation adjustments that are held at corporate level),
BAA Lynton, the net incoma from international management contracts and other commerctal operations

World Duty Free Europe (WDFE') and Auport Properly Partnership ('APP’) have been classified as assets held-for-sale on the balance sheet {as
detaled in Note 25) and in discontinued operations in the income statement (refer Note 7) and cash flow statement Discontinued operations also
include businesses disposed of dunng the year

Inter-segmental transachions are considered immatenal and are not analysed separately

The followmng tables present details of revenue, operating profit, profit before tax and certain asset and lability information in respect of the business
and geographic segments Whilst not required by IAS 14 ‘Segment Reporting’, additional revenue disclosure 1s provided in respect of the revenue
streams by natura

All information relates to both continuing and discontinued operations, with the exception of income statement tems which relates to continuing
operations only

Restated
Year ended 31 December 2007 9 months ended 31 December 2006
Operating Profit’ Operating Profit’
Before certain Before certain
re- Certain re- re- Certain re-
Revenue measurements’ measurements® Total Revenue measurements! measurements?  Total
{a) Business segments £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Pnce regulated London airports 1,923 441 44 485 1,389 421 132 553
Heathrow® 1,274 283 (42) 241 926 202 75 367
Gatwick 407 a1 53 134 314 90 33 123
Stansted 242 77 33 110 149 39 24 63
Scothish arports 214 77 3 80 180 61 23 84
Other arrports 65 14 4 18 45 12 7 19
Other operations 45 29 15 44 35 {57) {20) (77}
Total 2,247 561 66 627 1,629 437 142 579
Unallocated income and
expenses
Finance ncome 108 . 108 20 - 20
Finance costs (166} - {166) (149) - (149)
Fair value (losses)/gains on
denvative financial
instruments - {6) (6) - 28 28
Profit before tax 503 60 563 308 170 478
Taxation (45) {23) {68) (60) 57y (117
Net profit for the period -
continuing operations 458 a7 495 248 113 361
Net profit for the penod -
discontinued operations 233 16 249 60 43 103
Consolidated profit for the
period - for the period 691 53 744 308 156 464

! After exceptional items

2 Certain re-measurements (including those of associates) consist of fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations and disposals and
the gains and losses ansing on the re-measurement and disposal of denvative financial instruments, together with the assocrated fair value gains and
losses on any underying hedged items that are part of a farr value hedging relationship

¥ Inciudes Heathrow rail related activibies (Heathrow Express and Heathrow Connect)
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31 December 2007

31 December 2006

Depreclation Restated Restated
Capital and Capital  Depreciation and
Assets Liabilities expenditure’ amortisation® Assets  Liabilities expenditu re’ amortisation®
(b} Business Segments £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m |
Price regulated London
airports 13,394 (631} 1,073 359 12,482 (557) 954 213
Heathrow 10,076 (480} 875 272 9,374 (441) 802 150
Gatwick 1,782 {89) 91 58 1,702 (73) 66 41
Stansted 1,536 {62) 107 29 1,406 43) 86 22
Scothish arports 863 {39) 43 22 833 {26) 29 15
Cther airports 204 (49) 35 7 72 {48) 16 5
Other operations 2,242 {124) 12 4 832 (574) 7 11
Assets classified as held-
for-sate’ 551 (266) 42 8 1,460 (125) 34 -
Total 17,254 {1,109) 1,205 392 15,679 (1,328) 1,040 244
Investment n equity
accounted associates
Other airport interests [ =8 - - - 20 - - -
Total operations 17,262 (1,109) 1,205 392 15,699 (1,328) 1,040 244
Unallocated assets and liabilihes
Cash, borrowings* and
avallable-for-sale
investments 187 {7,095) - - 168 (5,948) - -
Derivative financial
Instruments 104 (49) - - 8 (65) - -
Retirement benefit surplus/
{obligations) 122 b - - - (233) - -
Taxation - (2,012) - - - (1.822) - - |
Interest 74 (146) - - 3 {133) - -
Group 17,749 {10,411) 1,205 392 15,878 {9,529) 1,040 244 :

"includes capital expenditure of £12 milion (31 December 2006 £15 million) relating to Intangible assets
2 includes amortisation charge of £23 mullion (31 December 2006 £24 million) relating to intangible assets
? Capital expenditure and depreciation and amorhisation relating to discontinued operations for the nine months ended 31 December 2006 has been

included within assets classified as held-for-sale
* Excluding interest payable

Segment assets include pnmanly airport runways and facilities allocated to the different cash generating units

Year ended 31 December 2007

9 months ended 31 December 2006

Restated
Capital Segment Restated Capital
Revenue expenditure assets Revenue expenditure Segment assets
(c) Geographical Segments £m £m £m £m £m £Em
UK
Airponts 2,161 1,122 14,373 1,566 990 13,364
Qther operations 19 54 2,775 12 24 826
2,180 1,176 17,148 1,578 1,014 14,190
International
Aurports — Europe 41 24 88 28 26 1,483
Other operations - Rest of World 26 5 18 23 - 24
67 29 106 51 26 1,507
Total 2,247 1,205 17,254 1,629 1,040 15,697
Investment in equity accounted associates
UK 8 -
Rest of World - 2
8 2
Unallocated assets 487 179
Group 17,749 15,878
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(d) Business and geographical segments

Restated
Year ended 31 December 2007 9 months ended 31 December 2006
Alrport Airport
and other Property and and other  Property and
traffic operahonal traffic operational
Revenue Retail charges faclities  Other Total Retail charges facilities Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Price regulated
Landon arporis 576 943 279 125 1,923 436 656 205 92 1,389
Heathrow 325 635 198 1186 1,274 241 457 144 84 926
Gatwick 160 179 61 7 407 127 135 47 5 314
Stansted 91 129 20 2 242 68 64 14 3 149
Other UK arports 72 130 27 9 238 53 99 20 5 177
Glasgow 28 45 10 3 86 21 36 8 2 67
Edinburgh 27 49 9 2 87 20 36 7 1 64
Aberdeen 9 23 6 3 41 6 17 4 2 29
Southampton 8 13 2 1 24 B 10 1 - 17
Other UK
businesses 8 - - 11 19 - - - 12 12
BAA Lynton - - - 5 5 - - - 9 9
Other 8 - - 6 14 - - - 3 3
Total UK 656 1,073 306 145 2,180 489 755 225 109 1,578
International arrports
Naples 11 20 6 4 41 7 14 4 3 28
Total Europe 11 20 6 4 41 7 14 4 3 28
Rest of World 20 - 3 3 286 14 - - g 23
Group 687 1,093 315 152 2,247 510 769 229 121 1,629
The segmental mformation above analyses revenue by ongin Revenue by destination 1s not matenally different to revenue by ongin
The total rental ncome denved from the Group's investment properties, included in the segmental disclosure above, 1§ as follows
9 months ended
Year ended 31 December
31 December 2007 2006
£m £m
Retail 187 143
Property and operational facilities 81 72
Other 10 7
Total 278 222
Total contingency rent' and rents from indefinite tenancies? recogrused in revenue amounted to
9 months ended
Year ended 31 December
31 December 2007 2006
£m £m
Retail 167 123
Property and operational facilihies 20 15
Total 187 138

' Contingency rents represent concession fees received from retail and commercial CONCessIoNaIres
Indefinite tenancies are typically mult-let offices and mdustnal premises where a standard indefinite tenancy 1s used, which is determinable by the
tenant on 3 months notice at any time

Services provided to tenants (service charges, maintenance rents and heating rents) earned revenue of £1 milkon (mne months ended 31 December

2006 £2 milion)

Guaranteed mirimum payments relating to certain investment properties are excluded from the definition of contingency rents and are disclosed within
minimum rentals recevable under non-cancellable operating leases (Note 31)
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2 Operating costs- continuing operations

Restated
Year ended
g months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m Em
Operating costs (including exceptional items} include the followng
Staff costs
Wages and salarnes 478 292
Social secunty 40 32
Pensions' 91 68
Share-based payments 3 5
Other staff related 25 24
637 421
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 369 220
Amortisation of intangible assets
Software 23 15
Asset management contract - 9
392 244
Other operating costs
Loss on sale of
Property, plant and equipment 3 i
Retaill expenditure 29 20
Retail marketing 12 10
Contract and agency staff 58 42
Maintenance and cleaming 195 114
Insurance 22 14
Bid advisory costs - 45
Other marketing and communications 14 14
Rent and rates 126 89
Utilitres 117 86
Police 53 42
General expenses 128 105
757 592
Own work capitalised” (100) (65}
Total ocperating costs 1,686 1,152
Analysed as
Underlying operating ¢osts 1,500 1,080
Exceptional costs 186 112
1,686 1,192
"Includes a charge of £26 million (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £7 million) disclosed within exceptional tems
2.0wn work capifaltised includes £71 mutlion {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £41 million) m relation to staff costs
Exceptional items included within operatmg costs are analysed in Nota 4
Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m fm
The aforementioned charges include
Rentals under operating leases
Plant and machinery 32 24
Other 29 12
61 36
Property lease and sub lease charges
Mintmum lease payments 30 21

Property operating costs include £10 million (mine months ended 31 December 2006 £7 million) 1n respect of coaching and management fees retating
to the provision of car parking facilities for arine and other airport workers This amount 1s recovered through the sale of arport passes and 1s included

within property and operational faciities income (Note 1(d})
Auditors’ remuneration
Auditors’ remuneration relates to fees paid to PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m

Fees payable to the Company's audilor for the audit of the consolidation and the parent
company accounts 04 05

Fees payable to the Company's audiors of its subsidianes for other services

audit of the Company’s subsidranes, pursuant te legislation 05 05
other services pursuant to legislation 01 04
taxation services 06 02
corporate finance’ 31 -
other services 01 08
48 25

Includes professional fees for services provided i relation to permanent refinancing activities

Auditers’ remunerations include services provided to both continuing and discontinued operations
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3 Employee information
a) Employee numbers

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) of the Group was as follows

Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Number Number
UK

Airports 10,174 9,961
Worlg Duty Free 1,842 1,989
BAA Lynton 23 26
Other operations 422 484

International
Europe 286 2,644
Rest of World' 39 472
12,786 15,576

' Employee numbers for Rest of World at 31 December 2006 included 444 employees of BAA Indianapolis where the Group does nol bear nomal
employee nsks and recovers all associated costs from Indianapols Airport Authority This arport management contract was terminated dunng the

year
b) Employees and directors

Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£'000 £900

Key management compensation’
Salanes and short-term employee benefits 10,319 6,564
Post-employment benefit contnbubons 176 453
Share based payments - 705
10,495 7,722

" Key management includes directors and members of the executive team of BAA who control and direct the Group’s operational activities and

resources

¢) Directors’ remuneration

Year ended 9 months ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£'000 £'000

Aggregate emoluments 5,823 5,973
Sums paid to related parties for directors services 1,170 154

As at 31 December 2007, one director (31 December 2006 six) had reached the maximum scheme benefits under a defined benefit scheme At 31
December 2007, retirement benefits were accruing for one director under a defined benefit scheme For the year ended 31 December 2007 £1,110
thousand {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £3,784 thousand) was paid to directors as compensation for loss of office

Of the directors n office at 31 December 2007, nine of them did not receive any emoluments dunng the year

Highest paid director

Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£'000 £000

Total amount of emoluments and amounts (excluding shares)
receivable under long-term Iincentive schemes 2,594 2,611

Defined benefits scheme

Accrued pension at pericd end 59 244
Accrued lump sum 666 6,306

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2007, the highest paid director was gwven a non-recurmng payment of £1,500 thousand (nine months ended 31

December 2006 £1,600 thousand was paid as compensation for loss of office)
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4 Exceptional items

Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Operating items
Reorganisation costs
Pension (26) (7)
Other staff related (including severance and redundancy) (54) (8)
General expenses (including programme design and implementation) - {7)
(80) {22)
Heathrow Terminal 1 and 2 accelerated depreciation (66) (17)
Heathrow Terminal 5 launch / operational readiness costs (40) {11)
Bid advisory costs - {45)
Staff related costs due to change in ownership - (17)
{106} {90)
Total exceptional items before income tax (186) (112)
Tax credit on exceptional items 54 19
Total exceptional items (132) {93)

Reorganisation costs

Costs associated with the Group's change programmes amounting to £80 milion were charged in the (nine months ended 31 December 2006 £22
million) The charge for the year ended 31 December 2007 1s in relation to severance and pension payments, predomenantly associated with the
‘Simplifying the Organisation’ programme which will be camed out dunng 2008-09 Certain costs associaled with the Group’s previous change
programme, 'Delivering Excellence’, were also incurred during the year

Accelerated depreciation on Heathrow Terminals T and 2

With the anticipated development of Heathrow East, Termunals 1 and 2 at Heathrow Airport will be demolished Depreciation on these assets has been
accelerated amounting to an additional depreciation charge of £68 million in the year ended 31 December 2007 {mne months ended 31 December
2006 £17 million in relation to Terminal 2 only) to reflect the shortened vseful ives of the assets

Heathrow Terminal 5 (‘T5’) launch / operational readiness costs

TS launch / operational readiness costs of £40 million {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £11 million) were incurred dunng the year These ¢osts
are associated with managing the opening of Terminal 5 to ensure it 1s smoothly integrated into the Heathrow operations, including fit-out, facihtating
the mobilisation of key contractors, the recruitment and enabling of staff, testing to ensure the building 1s it for purpose’, co-ordinating the major
ovemight move activibes, IT costs and running and testing baggage systems

5 Financing — contrnuing operations

a} Net finance costs

Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 Becember 2006
Note £m £m
Finance income
Interest and fee ncome from available for sale financial assets 13 4
interest on loan to parent 74 -
income from other financial assets 5 -
Interest on deposits 13 14
Interest on money market funds 3 2
108 20
Finance costs
Interest on borrowings
Bonds {278) {218)
Bank loans and overdrafts {102) (29)
Interest payable on denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting (3) -
Facility fees (6) (10}
Convertible loan notes
Interest payable (24) (18)
Accretion of debt hability (8) (8)
Unwinding of discount on Terminal § land purchase provision 23 (5) {3)
Tota!l borrowing costs {426) {286)
Less capitalised borrowing costs g 260 137
(166) {149)
Net finance costs before certain re-measurements (58) {129)

Net finance costs nclude financial results for continuing operations only Finance income and finance costs from discontinued operations have been
separately disclosed in Note 7

Barrowing costs included in the cost of qualfying assets (1e capitalised borrowing costs) arose on the general bormowing pool and are calcutated by
applying an average capitalisation rate of 5 95% (31 December 2006 5 16%) to expenditure incumed on such assets




b} Fair value gains/{losses) on financlal instruments

Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Embedded denvatives in electncity purchase contracts 21 a7
Farr value re-measurement of foreign currency balances . {4)
Derivative gains/(losses) In operating profit 21 {21)
Interest rate swaps cash flow hedges {1 29
Interest rate swaps Not in hedge relationships 32 -
Cross currency swaps far value hedges - {n
Equity swap (41) -
Farr value re-measurement of foreign currency balances 4 -
Derivative {losses) gains in finance costs {6) 28
Fair value gans on financial Instruments 15 7
6 Taxation — continuing operations
Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Em £m
UK Corporation Tax
Current at 30% (31 December 2006 30%) 157 87
Over provision in respect of previous years (40) 45)
Deferred Tax
Current year 25 93
Pnor perod 34 2m
Change in UK Corporation tax rate — impact on deferred tax assets and habtlities {114) .
Overseas Tax
Current 6 3
Deferred - 1)
Taxation charge for the period 68 117
Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Profit before Tax 563 478

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse by applying the UK statutory tax rate to the accounting

profits of the Group

Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m

Reconciliation of the tax charge
Tax calculated at the UK statutory rate of 30% (31 December 2006 30%) 169 143
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previcus years (40) (45)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 19 29
Proviston in respect of assets held-for-sale - 10
Change in UK corporation tax rate — impact on deferred tax assets and labilities {(114) .
Adjustments n respect of deferred income tax of previous years 34 (20)
Taxation charge for the period 68 117

A tax charge of £8 million (31 December 2006 £15 million) in respect of the accounting profit of APP 1s included within the tax charge above for

continuing operations
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7 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations consist of Bugapest awrport and the investments in Austrahian arports which were sold on 6 June 2007 and 8 November 2007
respectively, and WDFE and APP which are classified as held-for-sale at year end

a) Net profit from discontinued operations

Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Revenue 379 383
Farr value gains 16 43
Profit on disposal of operations 280 -
Operating costs
Depreciation and amortisation {11) (26)
Other {295) {277)
Operating profit from discontinued operations 368 123
Share of profit of associates {net of interest and tax) 6 5
Financing
Financing mcome 2 4
Financing costs {21) (13}
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 355 118
Tax on profit of discontinued operations (106) (16)
Net profit from discontinued operations 249 103

b) Disposal of businesses

Budapest book Australia book 31 December 2007
value at disposal value at disposal Total
£m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 326 16 342
Investment property 71 10 81
Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) 891 38 929
Goodwmll 59 - 59
Investments in associates - 6 6
Other assets 96 13 109
Cash and cash equivalents 20 1 21
Deferred income tax kabilities (34) - (34)
Provisions {3) (14) {17)
Borrowmings - (36) {(36)
Non cumrent trade and other payables (65) - (65)
Denvatives - 2) {2)
Other labilites (13) {2) {19)
Net assets 1,348 30 1,378
Disposal costs 2 6 8
Foreign exchange reserves through income statement {7) {8) {15)
Carrying value of disposed operations 1,343 28 1,371
Constderation
Cash and cash equivalents 1,020 342 1,362
Loan notes (discounted on acquisition)} 222 - 222
Loan notes (non-cash) (Note 15) 67 - 67
1,309 342 1,651
{Loss)/gain on disposal (34) 314 280
Cash receved was compnsed of
£m
Budapest disposal
Cash and cash equivalents 1,020
Loan notes (discounted on acquisition) 222
Dwidend (received on disposal) 18
1,260
Austraha disposal
Cash and cash equivalents 342
Total 1,602
8 Dividends paid and proposed
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Equity dividends declared and paid during the year
Second intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of £nil {(mne
months ended 31 December 2006 of 15 25p) - 165
intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of £nil {nine months
ended 31 December 2006 7 Op) - 78
- 243

The directors did not declare or patd any dividend dunng the year ended 31 December 2007 {mine months ended 31 December 2006 £243 milion)
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Other Assets in the
Terminal Plant and land and course of
complexes Airflelds equipment  buildings Rall construction Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Balance 1 Apnl 2006 5,632 974 579 86 687 4,137 12,095
Additions 10 2 14 - - 999 1,025
Net transfers to investment
properties 10 - - - 16 - (18) (2}
Transfers to completed assets 159 23 19 - 17 (218) .
Borrowing costs capitaised 5 - - - - - 137 137
Disposals (31) (3) (32) (8} {2) {14) (90)
Currency translaton 2 1 4 (2} - {1 4
Transferred to assets held-for-sale 25 (99) (64) (172) - - {6) (341)
Balance 1 January 2007 5,673 933 412 92 702 5,016 12,828
Additions 4 - 10 - - 1,156 1,170
Net transfers to investment
properhies 10 - - - 8 - {18} (10)
Transfers to completed assets 302 204 62 19 11 (598} -
Borrowing costs capifalised 5 - - - - - 260 260
Disposals 21) - (2} (1) - - (24)
Currency translation 3 - 2 1 - 1 7
Transferred to assets held-for-sale 25 - - (72} - - {16) {88)
Balance 31 Decemher 2007 5,961 1,137 412 119 713 5,801 14,143
Depreciation
Balance 1 April 2006 (1,790) (222) (314) {29) (160) - (2,515}
Charge (171) {24) (32) (5) (14) - (246}
Disposals 22 2 24 1 1 - 50
Currency translation 1 - 1 - - - 2
Transferred to assets held-for-sale 25 3 - 12 - - - 15
Balance 1 January 2007 (1,935) {244) (309) (33) (173) - (2,694)
Charge {276) {40) (38) {5) (19) - {378)
Disposals 4 - 2 1 - - 7
Currency translation {2) - {1 - - - (3)
Transferred to assets held-for-sale 25 - - 53 - - - 53
Balance 31 December 2007 (2,209) (284) {293) (37) (192) - (3,015)
Net book value 31 December 2007 3,752 853 119 82 521 5,801 11,128
Net book value 31 December 2006 3,738 689 103 59 529 5,016 10,134

Assets in the course of construction of £5,148 million (31 December 2008 £4,529 million) {excluding capitalised borrowing costs and the unwinding of
the discount on the purchase of the Thames Water land) include £4,527 milien (31 Decemnber 2006 £3,977 milion) in respect of Terminal S at
Heathrow Arrport  This includes £179 milhion (31 December 2006 £179 million) for the acquisition of land for the construction of Terminai 5 The
operational assets employed by the vendor of this land have been relocated and the acquisiion cost represents the present value of the estmated
deferred payments to be made over 35 years (from the date of acquisition) to the vendor in compensation for relocation

Assets In the course of construction also include £129 million {31 December 2006 £101 million) in respect of the development of a second runway and
related infrastructure at Stansted Awport The costs consist of £63 milhion (31 December 2006 £46 mulion} incurred in respect of the initial planning
application preparabon and £66 milhon (31 December 2006 £55 million) in respect of the purchase of domestic properties that fall within the expanded
airport boundary This includes a provision of £4 milbon (31 December 2006 £4 mihon) for the addiional 10% payable under the Home Value
Guarantee Scheme (HVGS) once planning permission has been obtained

Cther land and buildings are freehold except for certain short leasehold properties with a net book value of £19 million (31 December 2006 £21
million)

Borrowing costs capfiahised

The amount of borrowing costs included in the cost of Group assets was £1,195 milien (31 December 2006 £935 millon} Borrowing costs were
capitalised at an average rate of 5 95% (31 December 2006 5 16%)

A tax deduction of £260 millon (31 December 2006 £137 milion) for capitalised borrowing costs, excludng the unwinding of the prowision for the
obhgation for Terminal 5 fand purchase, was taken in the year Subsequent depreciation of the camtalised borrowing costs I1s disallowed for tax
purposes Consequently, the capitalised borrowing costs gives nse to a deferred tax liability, which 1s released each year in ine with the depreciation
charged on the relevant assets

Secunty granted by the Group over its assets, including property, plant and equipment, 15 disclosed in Note 17

37




10 Investment properties

Investment Assets in the
Airport investment properties in joint course of

properties ventures construction Total
Note £m £m £m £m

Valuation
Balance 1 April 2006 2,904 391 90 3,385
Transfers to completed assets 4 - (4) -
Net transfers from operational assets 9 2 - - 2
Dispaosals - {22) - (22)
Valuation gam’ 164 42 - 206
Currency translation 3 - - 3
Transfer to assets held-for-sale 25 {71} - - (71)
Balance 1 January 2007 3,006 411 86 3,503
Addittons 2 21 - 23
Transfers to completed assets 78 - (78) -
Net transfers from operational assets 9 10 - - 10
Disposals {10} {18) - (28}
Valuation gain 45 16 . 61
Transfar to assets held-for-gale 25 - (430} - (430}
Balance 31 December 2007 3,131 - 8 3,139

"Includes discontinued operations
2 Included within net profit from discontinued operations

Airport investment were valued at fair value at 31 December 2007 by Cnvers Jonas, Chartered Surveyors, Strutt and Parker, Chartered Surveyors and
John Arbuckle BLE (Hons), Head of BAA Professional Services

Details of valuations performed are provided below

Note 31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £Em

Drivers Jonas 2,178 1,984
King Sturge 430 325
Strutt & Parker 13 13
At professicnal valuation 2,618 2322
At directors’ valuation 951 1,252
3,569 3,574

Transfer to assets held-for-sale 25 (430) (71)
3,139 3,503

The investment properties held by the joint venture partnership (APP) of £430 million were valued by King Sturgs, Valuers and Surveyors have been
transferred to assets classified as held-for-sale at 31 December 2007 {Note 25)

All valuations were prepared in accordance with IFRS and the apprarsal and valuation manual issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
Valuations were camed out having regard to comparable market evidence In assessing fair value, current and potenbal future income (after deduction
of non-recoverable outgoings) has been capitalised using yelds denved from market evidence There were no restnctions on the realisability or
remittance of ncome or proceeds on disposal

Voud areas amounted to 19,552m? in the pencd (31 December 2006 16,907m?) amounting to 0 85% (31 December 2006 0 53%) of the Group's
investment property portfolio

Investment properties are let on either full repair and insunng leases, under which 2l outgoings are the responsibility of the lessee, or under tenancies,
where costs are recovered through a service charge levied on tenants dunng their penod of occupation This service charge amounted to £4 million (31
December 2006 £2 million} for which a similar amount 1s included within operating costs

Included in investment properties are assets with a camying value of £71 million (31 December 2006 £72 mulion) which the Group has provided as
sacunty for the £30 millon debentures due 2017 on behalf of a subsidiary Secunty granted by the Group over its assets, including investment
properties, 1s disclosed in Note 17
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11 Intangible assets

Asset
management
Goodwill  Software costs contract Other Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Balance 1 Apnl 2006 79 186 918 8 1,189
Additions - 14 - 1 15
Disposals {10) (36) - - (46)
Currency translation - - 22 - 22
Transferred to assets held-for-sale 25 {59) - (903) - {962)
Balance 1 January 2007 10 164 37 7 218
Additions - 9 3 - 12
Disposals - - {40) - (40)
Currency translation - - - - -
_Transferred to assets held-for-sale - - - - -
Balance 31 December 2007 10 173 - 7 190
Amortisation
Balance 1 Apnl 2008 - (108) {4) . (112)
Charge for the year - {19) {9) - (24)
Disposals - 36 - - 36
Transferred to assets held-for-sale 25 - - 12 - 12
Balance 1 January 2007 - (87) {1) - (88)
Charge for the year - (23) - - (23)
Disposals - - 1 - 1
Transferred to assets held-for-sale - - - - -
Balance 31 December 2007 - (110) - - (110)
Net book value 31 December 2007 10 63 - 7 80
Net book value 31 December 2006 10 77 36 7 130
Goodwlll

Goodwll 1s not amortised but 15 subject to an annual impaiment test Goodwill of £10 million relates to the Group's imvestment in Societa Gestione
Servizi Aeroportt Campani {GESAC) and 1s allocated to the cash-generating unit ({CGUF) defined as the totalty of the Group’s GESAC operations
(Naples Arport) The recoverable amount of the CGU has been calculated based on value-in-use calculations These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial projections approved by management covenng a five-year panod

Software costs
The capitalised computer software costs principally relate to operating and financial software These assets are beng amorbsed over a penod of
between three and seven years Amortisation for the year has been charged through operating costs

Software costs inctude assets in the course of construction of £15 million (31 December 2006 £40 mullron)

Asset management contract
The opering balance at 1 January 2007 represents the license to operate Perth's arport for 50 years to 2051 This license was disposed of as part of
the sale of investments in Australian airports during the year

12 Investments in associates

At 31 December 2007, the Group's pnincipal associate was

% of share capital Country of
held Activity incorporation
Advanced Transport Systems Limited 375 Transport England & Wales

The Group share in equity of Advanced Transport Systems Limited (‘ATS') represents an equity stake of 37 5% (31 December 2006 19%) In Octlober
2007 the Group increased its investment for a consideration of £2 million and its total investment increased to £8m {including goodwill of £3 million) at
31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £5 millon) This investment 1s accounted for as an associated undertaking as the Group has significant
influence over the entity through representation on the board At 31 December 2006 this investment was classified as an available-for-sale investment
and reclassified to investment in associates from October 2007

The investment in Australia Pacific Airports Corporation ('APAC") was disposed of in the penod as part of the disposal of the Australian operations The
Group's equity stake at the date of disposal (8 November 2007) and at 31 December 2006 was 19 82%

The summarsed financial poesition and results of the Group's investment in associates accounted for using the equity method, 1s as follows

31 Decernber 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m

Share of balance sheet
Non-current assets 4 124
Current assets 2 10
Non-current habilities - {124)
Current habilities )] &
Net assets 5 2

The share of net profits from APAC 1s included in net profit from discontinued operatons The share of profits from ATS in the year ended 31 December
2007 was £nil
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13 Available-for-sale investments
31 December 2007

31 December 2006

Note £m £m

Unlisted securities
Balance 1 January 2007 / 01 Apnl 2006 122 114
Additbons - 5
Disposals (47) (1)
Transferred to investment in associates (5) -
Transfer to assets classified as held-for-sale 25 (40) -
Revaluation surplus transferred to equity 29 17 4
47 122

Available for sale investments include £47 million {31 December 2006 £72 miliion) In National Air Traffic Services Group (‘NATS'), the UK's national air
traffic services provider The investment in NATS represents a 4 19% equity interest and £24 million prionty loan notes yielding a fixed interest rate of
8 5% with a matunty of 2032 Dunng the year the £33 million undated loan notes were fully redeemed at the fair value of £41 milion and £1 million were
redeemed on the £24 millon 2032 prionty loan notes The Group does not exercise significant long-term influence over NATS and accordingly the
investment has been classified as an available-for-sale investment

The equity investment 1s valued by discounting the ferecast dvidend stream and discounting an assigned terminal value to the equity in 2032 A rate of
10 5% (31 December 2006 10 5%) has been used as the discount factor The pronty loan notes investment 15 vatued by discounting future nterest
and pnncipal payments

In November 2007 the Group disposed of its investment in Northern Termitory Airports (31 December 2006 £5 million)

The Group’s share of Investments in vanous unit trusts and imited partnerships held by APP have been transferred to assets classified as held-for-sale
{Note 25) and ifs investment in ATS 1s treated as an equity-accounted associate at 31 December 2007 (Note 12)

Additional disclosure on credit nsk management Is included in Note 19

14 Inventories

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m

Goods held for resale - 23
Consumables 9 ‘
9 30

The total amount of Inventonies consumed mn the year relating fo continuing operations was £nil (31 December 2006 £25 million)
The total amount of Inventories cansumed in the year refating to discontinued operations was £200 milion (31 December 2006 £169 million}

There 1s no matenal difference between the balance sheet value of inventones and the replacement cost

15 Trade and other receivables

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m
Non-current
Other recevables 74 4
Total non-current 74 4
Current
Trade receivables 206 219
Less Provision for impairment {3) 3)
Trade receivables — net 203 216
Prepayments 56 30
Loan to the parent company 1,967 114
Interest recevable from parent company 74 -
Other recervables 48 32
Total current 2,348 392

The Group has provided an unsecured loan to its iImmediate parent company {ADIL) to service its mterest costs and debt repayments The outstanding
amount of the lcan as at 31 December 2007 was £1,967 million (31 December 2006 £114 milion) The loan bears a floating interest rate based on the
Group's average cost of borrowmings The rate as at 31 December 2007 was 7 37% (31 December 2006 5 77%)

Non-current other recevables include £67 milion 6 0% loan notes due 2011 which were receved from Caisse de depot et placement du Quebec in
connection wath the disposal of Budapest Airport (Note 7) These notes are part of the investments of the Group and designated as loans and
recewvables under {AS 39

The fair values of loans, trade and other receivables are not materially different from the carrying value
Unless otherwise stated, trade and cther recevables do nct contain impaired assets
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 day terms No collateral 1s held as security

As of 31 December 2007, trade recewvables of £158 milion {31 December 2006 £186 milltlon) were fully performing Trade recevabies of £41 milion
(31 December 2006 £29 milkon} were past due but not mpared These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default The ageing analysis of these trade receivables s as follows
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31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Up to 3 months 18 29
over 3 months 5 =

4 29

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade recevables are as lollows

£m
Balance 1 April 2006 5
Provision for recervables impairment -
Recewvables wntten off dunng the year as uncollectible (2)
Balance 1 January 2007 3
Provision for receivables impatrment 2
Recevables wntten off dunng the year as uncollectible (2}

Balance 31 December 2007

As of 31 December 2007, trade recevables of £7 million (31 December 2006 £4 milkon) were considered for impairment and of which an amount of £3
milhon (31 December 2006 £3 million) was prowided with the remaining amount expected to be fully recovered The individuzlly imparred recevables
mainly relate to customers who are in difficult economic situations The creation and release of provisions for impaired recewables have been included
in ‘general expenses’ in the income statement Amounts charged to the prowvision account are generally written off when there 1s no expectation of
recovery The ageing of these receivables I1s as follows

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
3 to 6 months 3 3
3 3

The Group 1s not exposed to signficant foreign curency exchange nsk as the majonty of trade and other recervables are denominated in Sterling

Additional disclosure on credit nsk management 15 included in Note 19

16 Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 53 49
Money market funds 17 44
Short-term deposits 10 -
140 93

Cash at bank and in hand eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates and 1s subject to interest rate nsk

Money market funds held at 31 December 2007 total £77 million (31 December 2006 £44 milion) The funds have no fixed matunty date, however the
Group can withdraw its investment on demand Retumns are based on fund performance

Included i the above cash balances 1s restncted cash at bank of £1 milhion (31 December 2006 £10 million), restncted money market funds of £7
million {31 December 2006 £7 million) and restncted short term deposits of £7 million (31 December 2006 £nil)

The far value of cash and cash equivalents approximate their book vatue

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits with
an onginal matunty of three months or less, held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments, and consists of

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 53 49
Money market funds 77 44
Short-term deposits 10 -
Cash and cash equivalents held by operations classified as held-for-sale 10 37
150 130

At 31 December 2007, cash and cash equivalents classified as held-for-sale {Note 25) mcludes balances held by APP and WDFE {31 December 2006
cash and cash equivalents held by Budapest Airrport)
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17 Borrowings

Restated’
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Current
Unsecured
BAA Limited bonds
7 875% £200 milhon due 2007 - 200
Bank Loans 50 36
50 236
Borrowings from parent
BAA Limited convertible bonds
2 94% of £424 million due 2008 424 -
Total current {excluding interest payable) 474 236
Interest payable 146 133
Total current 620 369
Non-current
Secured
£30 million Debentures due 2017 30 30
Bank loans - 204
Senior Capex Facility 980 200
£200 millon Term Facility 200 -
Unsecured
BAA Limited bonds
3 875% €1,000 million due 2012 732 670
5 750% £400 milion due 2013 398 397
4 500% €750 milhion due 2014 554 508
11 750% £300 millien due 2016 310 310
4 500% €750 mtlion due 2018 548 501
8 500% £250 million due 2021 247 247
5 125% £750 milhon due 2023 738 738
6 375% £200 rnillion due 2028 197 197
5 750% £900 million due 2031 893 898
Bank loans 369 415
6,196 5,315
Borrowings from parent
Unsecured
BAA Limited convertible bonds
2 940% £424 million due 2008 - 424
2 625% £425 milion due 2009 425 417
425 B41
Total non-current 6,621 6,156
Total current and non-current {excluding interest payable) 7,095 6,392

"Interest payable 15 included within current borrowings and the Semior Capex Facility included within non-current borrawings at 31 December 2007 The
comparative balance at 31 December 2006 have been reclassified from trade and other payables and current borrowings respectively

BAA Limited bonds '

The 7 875% £200 million bond matured in February 2007 and was refinanced by a bank £20C milion Tern Facility

Bonds are carned at amortised cost and the carrying value includes amortised transacton costs, premiums and discounts The effective interest
rate on the bonds vanes between 4 01% and 11 16%

Interest and principal payments on alt Euro bonds are swapped to fixed Stering payments through cross-currency interest rate swaps, with the
excepton of interest payments on £38 million nominal of the 2014 Euro bond, which are floating Sterling interest rate payments based on LIBOR
The details of these hedges are disclosed in Note 18

All BAA Sterling bonds bear fixed rate coupons A portion of the 5§ 75% £900 million bond had been hedged for far value nsk and the interest
payments on £200 million of this bond had been swapped into floating interest payments untl June 2007, when the hedge was terminated The
detail of this hedge 15 disclosed in Note 18

Bonds 1ssued under the £4 5 billton European Medium Term Note programme totalled £ 3,603 milion (31 December 2008 £3,603 milion) The
carrying value of these bonds was £ 3,713 milhon as at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £3,563 rmillion)

The Group’s £424 million 2 84% convertible bonds convert at the option of the holder into fully-paid £+ ordinary shares of the Company at a pnce
of BOO pence per share at any hme up to 28 March 2008 The Group’s £425 million 2 625% convertible bonds convert at the option of the holder
nte fully-paid £1 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of 576p per share at any tme up to 5 August 2009 Unless previously redeemed or
converted, the Group will redeem the bonds at par on 4 Apnl 2008 and 18 August 2009 respectively

The BAA Lynton plc debenture due 2017 has a principal value of £30 million and 1s fully secured on certain investment properties of the Group

Other borrowings

The Senior Capex Facility was £980 milion drawn as at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £200 million) This revolving facility matures in
2011 and amounts repaid may be subsequently redrawn The Libor interest payments on £350 million of the facility were fixed through Group s
portfolio of interest rate swaps as at 31 December 2007 A commitment fee of 0 70% applies to undrawn amounts of this facility The interest
rates on the facility 1s based on Libor plus a margin The margin on the facility as at 31 December 2007 was 2 00% (31 December 2006 1 00%)
The future contractual step-ups In the margin are as following

January 2008 0125%
July 2008 015%
January 2009 020%
July 2009 0 20%

The £200 millron Term Facility was drawn in February 2007 to repay the matured 7 875% £200 milion bond The facility matures in 2011 and
bears floating interest rate based on Libor plus a margin  As at 34 December 2007 the margin on the facility was 0 80% and from 15 Febnjary
2008 increased to 1 00%

As at 31 December 2007 the unsecured bank loans include EIB bank loans of £411 millon (31 Decernber 2006 £444 million) and Euro
denominated debt and overdrafts of BAA subsidtanes of £9 million (31 December 2006 £5 million) The EIB faciliies amortise over the penod to
2019 The nterest rate on these facilities 1s predominantly floating, except for £20 milhon principal which 1s fixed at 6 58%
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* The £204 milion of secured bank loans outstanding as at 31 December 2006 related to the debt of the Jont Ventures of the Group These Joint
Ventures were erther disposed of in the year or classified as assets held-for-sale as at 31 December 2007

BAA Limited and certain of its subsidianes have given securnty over thewr respective assets in support of the £200 million Term Facility and the Senior
Capex Facility as well as the ADIL Senmior and Subordinated bank loan facilities By virtue of an intercreditor agreement any claim under such secunty Is
fimted so that the claim does not result in a breach of the financial covenants in the existing BAA Limited bonds As at 31 December 2007 secunty,
limited as stated above, I1s provided by BAA Limited and its subsidianes in support of the Group debt totalling £1,180 mulon (31 December 2006 £200
million) In addition the amount of secunty provided 1n respect of the guarantees 1ssued to support debt ncurred by ADIL 1s £1 3 billion (31 December
2006 £2 3 billion) The total amount of the upstream guarantees 1s £1 8 billion as disclosed in Note 31

Fair value of borrowings

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Book value Fair value Book value Fair vatue
£m £m £m £m
Non-current

Long-term debt 6,196 5,847 5,315 5,520

Long-term convertible debt (borrowings from
parent) 425 412 841 787
5,621 6,259 6 156 5,307

The far value of short-term borrowings approximatas their book value Accrued interest 15 included as a current borrowing balance and not in the
carrying amount of non-current borrowings  Accrued interest 1s included 1n the calculation of the far value of borrowings The fair values of listed
borrowangs are based on quoted pnces For unhsted borrowings, the Group establishes far values by using valuation techmiques such as discounted
cash flow analysis

Covenants

= The long dated BAA bonds {namely the £300 miliion due 2018, the £250 million due 2021, the £200 milhon due 2028 and the £900 million due
2031 bonds) contain customary covenants placing restrictiens on distnbutions to certain shareholders disposals, and the leve! of total and secured
borrowings The Net Borrowings of BAA Limited and its Subsidianes should not exceed an amount equal to 1 75 tmes the Adjusted Capital and
Reserves as such terms are defined in the bonds' documentation Furthermore the covenants require that secured and other debt of the Group as
defined in the documents should not exceed an amount equal to 0 5 times the Adjusted Capital and Reserves The Group I1s also required to
maintain a mimmum average ratio of 2 1 of Consolidated Income Before Interest and Taxes to Consolidated Interest Payable, as such terms
defined in the bonds' documentation The restncton on borrowings calculation takes into consideration the guarantees and secunty issued by BAA
Lirmted and cerlain of its subsidianes in support of the ADIL debt to the extent that such guarantees do not result in a breach of the bond
covenants As a consequence, both restnctions on borrowings ratios reach the maximum allowed level at 31 December 2007

= The EIB facilities contain certain restncton on change of control, as well as leverage and interest cover covenants As at 31 December 2007 EIB
has waived the change of control restnction and agreed to align the financial covenants under the facilities with those under long dated bonds The
walver expires on 15 March 2008

*= The Senior Capex Facility and the £200 millon Term Facility contain customary restrictions on change of control and distnbutions to shareholders
as well as financial covenants Under thus facility the ADIL Group i1s required to mamtain certatn Debt Cover ratios and a minimum Cashflow Cover
ratio as these terms are defined in the faciites The required levels as at 31 December 2007 were less than 100 100 for Debt Cover and
minimum of 105100 for Cashflow Cover rato In additon, ADIL Group 1s required to ensure thai capital expenditure incurred dunng a
quinguenmium does not exceed 110% of the level set by CAA

s Allfinancial covenants have been tested and complied with as at 31 December 2007

Additional disclosures on nsk management and hedging of the borrowsngs are included 1n Notes 18 and 19

18 Derivative filnancial instruments

2007 Notional Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m
Current

Equity swap - no hedge accounting 120 - {43) {43)
Embedded denvative in electnaity purchase contract 37 10 - 10
Forward foreign exchange contracts - no hedge accounting ] - - -
Interest rate swaps - no hedge accounting 350 - 4) {4
513 10 {47 (37)

Non-current
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 475 - 2) (2)
Cross-currency swaps - cash flow hedge 1,665 93 - 93
Cross-cumency swaps - fair valus hedge 38 1 - 1
2,178 94 {2) 92
31 December 2007 2,691 104 {49) 55
2006 Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £m

Current

Embedded dernvative in electnaity purchase contract 37 - {11 (11)
Forward starting interest rate swaps - no hedge accounting 1,050 - {39) (39)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - no hedge accounting 26 - {1) {1)
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 475 1 - 1
Cross-cumency swaps - cash flow hedge 475 - {13) (13)
Cross-currency swaps - farr value hedge 38 - 1) (1)
2,101 1 {65) (64)

Non-current
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedge 200 3 - 3
Cross-currency swaps - cash flow hedge 1,190 4 - 4
1390 7 . 7
31 December 2006 3,49 8 {65) {37)
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Any denvatives that are not in qualifying hedge relationships at the reporting date are presented as current irespective of their matunties

Equity swap
tn 2007 the Group entered into a number of equity swaps to hedge share price nsk under the Group’s Executive Share Option Plan {ESOP"), which 15
disclosed in Note 22

Embedded derivative In electricity purchase contract

The Group has entered into elecincity purchase contracts which allow it to fix the future purchase price of electricity These contracts allow the Group to
unlock the fixed pnce for an agreed mimimum volume The nature of the contacts gives nse to embedded denvatives, which are recognised In the
balance sheet at their far value The movements in the fair value are recognised in operating expenses

interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps with a notional pnincipal of £475 million have been entered into as a cash flow hedge against currency and interest rate nsk on the
€750 mithon bond due 2014 in conunction with a cross currency swap (see below) For part of the period ended 31 December 2006 the hedge
relationship did not qualy for hedge accounting and an £8 million gain ansing on both interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps (see
below) was recognised In the income statement The losses deferred tn equity reserves on these swaps wilt be continuously released to the income
statement over the penod to matunty of the hedged bond The fixed interest rates vary from 5 1% to 5 5% (31 December 2006 5 1% to 5 5%) and the
floating rates are based on six month LIBOR

The net fair value loss of £1 million (31 December 2006 £27 milion gan) has been recogmised in the penod in the income statement in refation to
derivatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounting

Interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of £200 milion were terminated dunng the year The swaps had been entered into as a farr value
hedge of £200 million of the £900 million bond due 2031 A farr value joss of £6 milion has been recognised in the year in the income statement, to
offset the fair value gain of £5 million on the hedged part of the bond

Cross currency swaps

Two cross currency swaps have been entered into by the Group to hedge currency and cash flow interest rate nisk on the €1 billon bond due 2012 and
the €750 million bond due 2018 Under the €1 billon (£680 million) swap, the Group receives Euro interest at a fixed rate of 3 9% and pays Stering
interest at a fixed rate of 5 1%, and under the €750 million (€510 milion) swap, the Group receives Euro interest at a fixed rate of 4 5% and pays
Sterling interest at a fixed rate of 5 4% The losses deferred in equity reserves on these swaps will be continuously released to the income statement
over the penod to matunty of the hedged bonds

In addition, the Group entered inte a €750 million (£513 million) swap Under this swap, the Group receves Euro interest at a fixed rate of 4 5% andg
pays Sterling interest at a vanable rate based on six month LIBOR A part of this swap together with £475 million interest rate swap (see above) was
designated as a cash flow hedge against currency and cash flow interest rate nsk on the € 750 milion bond due 2014 For a part of the penod ended 31
December 2006 the swap did not qualify for hedge accounting and a loss of £8 million was recogrused in the income statement The losses deferred in
equity reserves on this swap will be continuously released to the income statement over the pencd to matunty of the hedged bond

£38 milkon of the cross curency swap 1s designated as a fair value hedge and 1s used to hedge currency and farr value interest rate nsk on the € 750
million bond due 2014

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange forward and swap contracts have been entered into buying US$1 milion (3% December 2006 US$15 mullion), €6 million (31
December 2006 €22 milion), Swiss Fr 2 million (31 December 2006 Swass Fr 4 mulhion) and Polish PLN 2 million (31 December 20068 PLN 8 million)
against Stering The currency forwards and swaps are used to manage exposures relating to future capital expenditure although hedge accounting Is
not sought for these denvatives

19 Financial Instruments

Financial nsk management objectives and policies
The Group's principal financial instruments, except denvatives, compnse bank loans, hsted bonds, listed convertible bonds, cash and short-term
deposits The main purpose of these instruments 1s to raise finance for the Group’s operations

The Group also enters into denvative fransactions, pnncipally interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward currency contracts The purpose
of these denvatives 1s to manage the interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the Group's operations and its sources of finance In 2007 the Group
entered into a number of equity swaps to hedge share pnice nsk under the ESOP

The Group does not use financial instruments for speculative purposes The treasury function operates on a centralised non-speculative nsk basis
Treasury's function 15 to identfy, mitigate and hedge treasury-related finangial nsks inherent to the Group’s business operations, in accordance with
Group treasury policies

The main nisks ansing from the Group’s financtal nstruments are market nsk (including farr value nterest rate nsk, fereign currency nsk, cash flow
nterest rate nsk and pnce nsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk The Board approves, prudent treasury policies for managing each of the nsks summansed
below

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has overseas operations which give nse to imited exposure to foreign currency nsk ansing pnmanly with respect to the Euro currency
Foreign exchange nsk mamly anses from future commeroial transactions and nvestments in foreign operations The Group does not hedge the
translation nsk related to investments in foreign operations

For debt raised in foreign currencies, the Group uses cross-currency swaps to hedge the related interest and pnncipal payments and 100% of the
exposure 15 hedged in this way, subject to a de minimus it The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge matenal capital expenditure
In foreign currencies once a project 1s certain to proceed

As at 31 December 2007, if the Sterling had strengthened by 10% against the Euro, with all other vanables remaming constant, pre tax profit for the
year would have increased by £3 million {31 December 2006 decrease by £1 million), and if the Sterling had weakened by 10% aganst the Euro, with
all cther vanables remaming constant, pre tax profit for the year would have decreased by £4 million {31 December 2006 increase by £2 million)

As at 31 Decemnber 2007, If the Sterling had strengthened by 10% aganst the USD, with all other vanables remaining constant, there would be il effect
on pre tax profit (31 December 2006 decrease by £1 miliion), and if the Sterling had weakened by 10% against the USD, with all other vanables
remaiing constant, there would be £l effect on pre tax profit (31 December 2006 increase by £1 million)

Prnice risk
The Group is not matenally exposed to equity secunty pnice risk on investments held and classified on the consclidated balance sheet as available for
sale

The Group 1s exposed to share price nsk of its ulimate parent, Grupo Ferrovial, S A |, ansing from its ESOP programme The Group uses equity swaps
to manage this exposure As at 31 December 2007, If the Ferrovial share price had strengthened or weakened by 10%, pre tax profit for the year would
have increased or decreased by £8 million (31 December 2006 £nil)
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The Group is exposed to the nsk of an increase n the pnces of commodities, in particular electneity, used wathin its operations To manage the nsk the
Group enters into electricity purchase contracts which allow the Group to fix the future purchase price of electncity As at 31 December 2007, if the
electncity index had strengthened or weakened by 10%, pre tax profit for the year would have increased or decreased by £5 million (31 December
2006 £2 milhon)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate nsk anses from its horrowings Borrowings 1ssued at vanable interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk
Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate nsk The Group's policy 1s to maintain a mix of fixed to floating rate debt
within Board approved parameters such that a minimum of 70% of existing and forecast debt i1s at a fixed rate To manage this mix, the Group enters
nto interest rate swaps These swaps may be designated to hedge underlying debt obligations The Group also uses floating rate interest pbeanng
financial assets as a natural hedge of the exposure to cash flow interest rate nsk

The Group may use forward-starting interest rate swaps to miimise exposure to cash flow interest rate nsk for future forecast issuance of debt
As at 31 December 2007, the Group's fixed floating interest rate profile, after hedging, on net debt was 84 16 (31 December 2008 85 15)

As at 31 December 2007, if interest rates had moved by 0 5%, this would have resulted in the following movement to pre tax profit and equity, due to
movement in the interest charge and mark-to-market valuation of denvatives

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

P&L Impact Equity Impact P&L Impact Equity Impact

£m £m £m £m

0 5% increase (2) {48) {43) (49)
0 5% decrease 2 50 46 34

Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial instruments, deposits with banks and financial institutions, and accounts
receivable The Group has no significant concentrabions of credit nsk The Group's exposure to credit related losses, in the event of non-performance
by counterparties to financial instruments, 1s mitigated by miting exposure to any one party or instrument and ensunng only counlerparties within
defined credit nsk parameters are used

Financial assets past due but not impaired are disclosed in Note 15

The maximum exposure to credit nsk in refation to financial assets of the Group, excluding amounts receivable from the iImmediate parent company, as
at 31 December 2007 1s £615 million (31 December 2006 £475 million)

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective 1s to ensure conbinuity of funding and flexibility, ensunng debt matunties are spread over a range of dates, thereby ensunng that
the Group i1s not exposed to excessive refinancing nsk in any cne year

The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facihties available at 31 December In respect of which all conditions precedent had been
met at that date

31 December 2007

31 December 2008

£m fm

Floating rate facilities
Expinng tn more than two years 1,270 2,050
1,270 2,050

In addition to the above, dunng February 2008 the immediate parent company (ADIL) entered into a new Senior Capex facility of £800 milion The
Group will access that faciity through ADIL

As at 31 December 2007, overdraft facilities of £10 milion {31 December 2006 £25 million) were available to the Group

The table below analyses the Group's financial labilities and net settled denvative financial habiites based on the nominal balance as at 31 December
2007 and 2006 to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

31 December 2007

Less than one Greater than five

year Onetotwoyears Two to five years years

£m £m £m £fm

Borrowing pnncipal payments 474 469 1,970 4,068

Bomrowing interest payments 382 374 938 2,130

Denvative financial instruments (4] {1) (4) (24)

Trade payables 224 - - -
31 December 2006

Less than one Greater than five

year One to two years Two to five years years

£m £m £m £m

Borrowing pnncipal payments 235 468 744 4,783

Borrowing interest payments 339 314 888 2,340

Denvative financial nstruments nm 1) {3) 7

Trade payables 169 - - -

As at 31 December 2007 £424 million included in the category “Cne to two years” and £425 milkon included in the category “Two to five years” relate to
payable to iImmediate parent under convertible bonds These balances will be offset against loan recevable from parent and therefore will not have any
impact on cash outflow
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The table below analyses the Group’s denvative financial instruments which will be settled on a gross basis based on the remaming penod as at 31

December to the contractual matunty date

31 December 2007

{.ess than one

Greater than five

year Onetotwoyears Two to five years years

£m £m £m £m

Cross currency denvative payment a7 97 262 202
Cross currency denvative receipts (78) (78} {211) {172)

31 December 2006

Less than one

Greater than five

year Cne to twa years Two to five years years

£m £m £m £m

Cross currency denvative payment 91 ET] 273 254
Cross currency denvative receipts {72} {72) {215) (207}

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide retums for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an cptimal capital structure

Consistent with financial covenants contained in BAA long dated bonds, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the geanng ratic Refer to Note 17

Borrowings for further disclosure on BAA financial covenants

Financial instruments by category

The financial instruments of the Group as classified in the financial statements as at 31 December, can be analysed under the following IAS 39

categories

31 December 2007

Assets at falr Derivatives
value through qualifylng for
Loans and Income hedge Available-for-
recelvables statement accounting sale Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 47 47
Denivative financial instruments - 10 94 - 104
Cash and cash equivalents 63 - - 77 140
Trade recevables 203 - - - 203
Other recavables 121 - - - 121
Loan and interest recewvable from
__parent company 2,041 - - - 2,041
Total Financial Assets 2,428 10 94 124 2,656
Liabilities at fair Derivatives
value through qualifying for
Income hedge Other financial
statement accounting Habiliities Total
£m £m £m £m
Borrowings - - (7,095) {7,085)
Denvative financial instruments {47) {2) - (49)
Trade payables - - {224) {224)
Total Financial Liabihties (47) (2) (7,319) (7,368}
31 December 2006
Assets at far Denvatives
Loans and value through quahfying for Available-for-
recervables  income statement  hedge accounting sale Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - 122 122
Denvative financial instruments - 1 7 - 8
Cash and cash equivalents 56 - - 37 93
Trade recevables 216 - - - 216
Other receivables 36 - - - 36
Loan and interest recevable from
parent company 114 - - - 114
Total Finangial Assets 422 1 7 189 589
Liabiities at fair Denvatives
value through qualifying for Other financial
income statement  hedge accounting llabilibes Total
£m £m £m £m
Borrowings - - (6,392) (6 392)
Denvative financial instruments (65) - - (69)
Trade payables - - {169) {169)
Total Financiat Liabilities (65) - (6,561) (6,626)

Al 31 December 2007 the company has not designated any financial assets or financial habiities at fair value through income statement The only

financial assets and financral labilties at fair value through Income statement were denvatives that did not qualfy for hedge accounting
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20 Deferred income tax

The amounts of deferred income tax provided are detailed below

Year ended 9 months ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

Balance 1 January 2007/ 1 Apnl 2006 1,687 1,643
Transfer to current income tax {4) -
Transfer of subsidiary to assets held-for-sale 2 (30)
Disposal of operations {14) -
{Creditedycharged to Income statement (54 72
Charged/ (credited) to equity 92 {1)
Change in tax rate — charge to equity 4 -
Balance sheet reclassification - 3
Balance at 31 December 1,713 1,687

" Includes £(114) million credit to income statement for change in tax rate from 30% to 28% effective 1 Apnl 2008
The amounts of deferred iIncome tax provided are detalled below
Deferred income tax liabilities

Revaluations of  Revaluations  Other Provision
Excess of Capital Post Investment of Property, Farr  for sale of
Allowances over Employment property lo fair Plant,and Value overseas
Note depreciation Benefits value Equipment  Items subsidiary Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance 1 Apnl 2006 808 - 707 149 47 - 27 1,739
Charged to Income Statement 12 - 56 - - 10 2 80
Reallocation - - (15) 15 - - - -
Transfer of subsidiary to asset

held-for-sale 25 - - . - {33) - - (33)
Balance sheet reclassification - - - - - - 3 3
(Credited) to equity - - - (3) - - - (3)
Balance 1 January 2007 821 - 748 161 14 10 32 1,786
Transfer from deferred income

tax assets - (71) - - - - - (™
Charged/(credited) to income

statement (20) (13) (20) (11) - - 14 (50)
Transfer of subsidiary to

assets held-for-sale 25 2 - - - - - - 2
Disposal of operations - - - - (14} - - (14)
Change in tax rate charge/

(credited) to equity - 12 {8) - - - - 4
Charged/(credited) to equity - 105 - {5} - - - 100
Balance 31 December 2007 803 33 720 145 - 10 46 1,757

Deferred income tax assots
Post Employment Share-based Capital
Note Benefits Payments Losses IAS 32/39 Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance 1 Apnl 2006 47 22 - 23 4 96
Transfer of subsidiary to asset held-for-sale 25 - - - - 3 (3)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 6 (8) 18 (8) - 8
Credited/(charged) to equity 18 (14) - (6) - {2)
Balance 1 January 2007 71 - 18 9 1 99
Transfer to deferred income tax habiihes {71) - - - - {71)
Transfer to current income tax - - - 4 - 4
{Charged)/credited to the income statement - - 1) 5 - 4
Credited to equity - - - 8 - 8
Balance 31 December 2007 - - 17 26 1 44
Deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity dunng the year is as follows
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Reserves In shareholders’ equity

Avallable-for-sale reserve (3) -

Cash flow hedge reserve 1 (8)

Change in tax rate {4) -

Indexation - operational tand 5 3

Retirement benefit obligations {105) 18

Share-based payments - {14)

A number of changes to UK Corporation tax were announced in the March 2007 Budget statement, some of which were enacted in the Finance Act
2007 and some are expected to be enacted in the Finance Act 2008

The effect of the changes enacted in the 2007 Finance Act has been to reduce the deferred tax prowided at 31 December 2007 by £110 million This
£110 million decrease in deferred lax has mcreased profit by £114 milion and decreased other reserves by £4 million This decrease In deferred tax 1s
due to the reduction in the UK Corporation tax rate from 30 per cent to 28 per cent wath effect from 1 Apnl 2008

The effect of the phased abolition of Industnal Builldings Allowances (IBA’) which is likely to be enacted in the 2008 Finance Act, 1s expected to
increase the deferred tax habiity provided as at 31 December 2007 by £1 2 bithon in 2008, based on capital expenditure incurred as at 31 December
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2007 The actual deferred tax impact is expected to increase to £14 billon when capital expenditure incurred dunng the penod o substantve
enactment (June 2008) s reflacted

21 Retirernent benefit obligations

Year ended 9 months ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

BAA Pension Scheme 89 65
Defined contnbution schemes 1 1
Addiichal provision for unfunded pensions 1 2
Total operating charge to staff costs 91 68

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

BAA Pension Scheme 144 (212)

Unfunded pension obligations (18) {(17)

Post-retirement medical benefits (4) (4)

Surplusi(liability) recognised In the balance sheet 122 {233)

(a) BAA Pension Scheme

The Group operates one main pension scheme for its UK employees, the BAA Pension Scheme, which i1s a funded defined benefit scheme wth both
open and closed sections The scheme's assets are held separately from the assets of the Group and are administered by trustees

The value placed on the liabilities of the scheme as at 31 December 2007 1s based on the inital resu'ts of the actuanal valuation underway at 30
September 2007 The value placed on the habilities of the scheme as at 31 December 2006 15 based on the results of the actuznal valuation
undertaken at 30 September 2004 The habilities have been updated by Mercer Limited, to take account of changes in economic and demographic
assumptions, 1n accordance with IAS 19 - Employee Benefits The plan assets are stated at ther bid value at 31 December 2007 and 31 December
2006 The Group's accounting policy 1s to recegnise actuanal gains and losses as they occur in the statement of recognised income and expense

The financial assumptions used to calculate scheme asset and habiities under IAS 19 are

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

% %
Rate of increase in pensionable salanes 49 46
Increase to deferred benefits dunng deferment 34 31
Increase to pensions in payment
Open section 33 3o
Closed section 34 31
Discount rate 58 52
Inflation assumptron 34 31
Expected return on plan assets
Equities 82 80
Bonds 50 46
Other 55 50

The assumptions relating to longewvity underlying the pension habilities at the balance sheet date are based on standard actuanal mortalty tables, and
include an allowance for future iImprovements In longevity The assumptions are equivalent to a life expectancy for a 60-year old male pensioner of 24 8
years and 25 9 years from age 60 for a 40 year old male non-pensioner The assumphions are the same as those used at 31 December 2006

The accounting standard requires that the discount rate used be determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on high qualty
fixed income investments The cumency and terms of these should be consistent with the currency and estmated term of the post-employment
obltgations The discount rate has been based on the yield available on AA rated corporate bonds of a term similar to the habilihes

The expected rate of mflabon 15 an important buiiding block for the salary growth and pension increase assumption A rate of inflation 1s "imphed” by the
difference between the yields on fixed and index-linked Government bonds

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Group considered the current level of expected retumns on nsk free
nvestments {pnmanly government bonds), the histoncal leve! of the nsk premum associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio 1s
invested and the expectations for future returns of each asset class

For bond investments with fixed interest rates the expected yield i1s denved from their market value

In respect of the equity investments, investment returns are vanable and are generally considered "nskier” tnvestments Itis generally accepted that the
yield on equity investments contains a premium, the “equity nsk premium® to compensate investors for the additional nsk of holding this type of
investment There 1s signdficant uncertainty about the likely size of this nsk premium The assumption chosen s within the range of long term market
expectations

The expected return for each asset class was then weighted, based on the target asset allocation, to develop the expected long-term rate of return on
assets assumption for the portfolio This resulted in the selection of a 6 3% assumphion (31 December 2006 6 8%}

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

Year ended 9 months ended

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

Current service cost 88 68
Finance cost on benefit obligation 123 83
Expected return on plan assets {135) {98)
Past sarvice cost - routine items 2 2
Past service cost - exceptional items 11 17
Total operating charge to staff costs 89 72
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Analysis of the amounts recognised in the statement of recogrised income and expense

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Aclual retum less expected return on plan assets (4) {57)
Expenence gains and losses ansing on the benefit obligation 130 {8)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
benefit obligation 249 7
Actuarial gain/ {loss) recognised in the statement of
recognised income and expense 375 {58)
Percentage of scheme liabilities 177 (24)

The actual return on plan assets was £131 milion (31 December 2006 £41 million)

The target asset allocation 15 40 60 equity to gilts In order to achieve this, the scheme holds phystcal assets and also has entered into an asset swap
agreement with an approved counterparty to effectively receive fixed retums In exchange for vanable returns

The amounts recogrused in the balance sheet are determined as follows

31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 March 2006 31 March 2005 31 March 2004
£m £m £m £m £m
Fair value of plan assets

Equities 1,116 1,511 1,480 1,151 1,056
Bonds 1,059 571 567 501 459
Other 92 38 19 16 11
Total far value of plan assets 2,267 2,120 2,066 1,668 1,526
Present value of benefit obligation {2,123) {2,332) (2,196) {1,850) (1,666)

Surplus/{liability) recognised
In the balance sheet 144 (212) (130) (182) {140)

' The pension scheme surplus (less the liabilites for other pension and post-retiremsnt schemes) at 31 December 2007 Is recognised as an assel In the
balance sheet as it 1s recoverable by the Group under the Scheme rules

Analysis of movement in the benefit obhigation

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 2,332 2,196
Movement in the year
Current service cost 88 68
Finance cost 123 83
Members' contnbutions 15 11
Past service cost - routine items 2 2
Past service cost - exceptional items 1 17
Actuanal gain (379) -
Benefits paid (by fund and Group) {69) {45)
Benefit obligation at end of year 2,123 2,332

The Group has reached agreement with the Trustees to contnbute the lesser of £70 milion per annum and the annual cost of accruing benefits (as
calculated using the FRS 17 accounting standard) for a penod of 5 years from mid 2006 The Group expects to contnbute £70 million to its pension plan

In the year ending 31 December 2008
Analysis of defined benefit obligation
31 December 2007

31 December 2006

31 March 2006 31 March 2005 31 March 2004

£m £m £m £m £m
Plans that are wholly or partly funded 2,123 2,332 2,196 1,850 1,666
Plans that are wholly unfunded 22 21 24 22 13
Total 2,145 2,353 2,220 1,872 1,679

Movements in the farr value of plan assets were as follows

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of penod 2,120 2,066
Expected return on plan assets 135 98
Actuanal (loss)/gain 4 {58)
Employer contnbutions (including benefits paid and reimbursed) 70 48
Members' contnbutions 15 11
Benefits paid {by fund and Group) {69) {45)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 2,267 2,120
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History of expenence gans and losses

Year ended 31 9 months ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31 December 31 March 31 March 31 March
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
Difference between the expected and actual retum on scheme
assets
Amount £m (4) (57) {274) 44 218
Percentage of scheme assets (0 2) 27) 13 3% 26% 144
Expenence gains and losses on benefits obligations
Amount £m 130 8) 14 19 32
Percentage of scheme habilities 61 {0 3) 06% 10% 19%
Total amount recognised in the statement of recognised
Income and expense
Amount £m 375 {58) 72 (8) 188
Percentage of benefit obligation 177 {2 4) 3 3% {0 5)% 113

b) Other Pension and Post-Retirement Liabilities

The Group provides unfunded pensions n respect of directors and senior employees whose benefils are restncied by the BAA Pension Scheme rules
The cost of these arrangements expensed against operating profit In the year 1s £1 milion (31 December 2006 £2 million)

The Group provides post-retirement medical benefits to certain pensioners The present value of the future habilibes under this arrangement have been
assessed by the actuary and this amount of £4 milion {31 December 2006 £4 million) 1s included in the balance sheet, along with prowvision for
unfunded pension obligations of £18 million {31 December 2006 £17 miltion)

The value of unfunded pensions has been assessed by the actuary using the same assumptions as those used to calculate the pension scheme
habilities except that salary increases have been assumed o be 5 9% per annum (31 December 2006 5 6%)

The Group also has defined contnbution schemes in respect of employees of World Duty Free Europe Limited (classiied as held-for-sale), Heathrow
Express Operatng Company Limited and BAA Business Support Centre Lirited The total cost of defined contnbution arrangements fully expensed
against operating profit in the year is £1 milion (31 December 2006 £1 million)

22 Share based payments

The Executive Share Option Plan {{ESOP') was introduced in 2007 wath awards of options over Grupo Ferrovial shares made in each of February 2007,
July 2007 and November 2007 Each grant was made by the ultimate parent, Grupo Ferrowial, S A direct to employees of the Group These option
plans are recorded as equity settied in accordance with the grant being made by the ultimate parent company Options are granted with a fixed exercise
pnce equal to the market pnce of the shares under ophon at the date of grant Awards under the ESOP are generally reserved for full tme directors and
senior employees at senior management level and above There are currently 460 employees eligible to participate n the ESOP

Option grant date

Number of
options granted

Grant price and
exercise price (€}

Senior employees / February 2007 979,850 7319
296,353 7854

Senior employees / July 2007 1,113,078 7380
14,690 7236

Senor employees / November 2007 84,294 6114

The exercise perod for each of the Issues made commences three years from the option grant date and lasts for three years Vesting of the options 1s
subject to continued employment and the achieverment of targeted Group's earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation {EBITDA’)

The reference value of the parent company s shares 15 the isted pnce, calculated as the weighted average pnce for the twenty five stock market
sessions immedately pnor to the option grant date

The reference number of shares used to calculate total remuneration is as follows

Numnber of shares
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Opening number of shares -
2,488,265 -

Options granted

Wawvers (415,271} -
_Options exercised - -

Closing number of shares 2,072,994 -

These remuneration scheres are measured and recognised n the income statement as indicated 1n accounting policies note Staff expenses ansing
from these share based compensation schemes of £3 million {nine months ended 31 December 2006 £nil) were charged to the income statement in
the year

The values of the schemes granted in 2007 were calcutated by assuming an estimated time of the options {Ife of options) of six years, three years time
to vest, nsk free rate estimated between 4 2% to 4 7% and expected dividend yield of 1 93%

When the options were granted the Group contracted a number of cash settled equity swaps Amounts paid and recewved dunng the year under the
equity swap contracts were £nil
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23 Provisions

Obligations
Disposal of under
Operations Reorganisation land purchase Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Balance 1 January 2007 8 39 95 4 146
Utiised - (27) (1} - (28)
Charged to income statement - 80 - - 80
Released (3) {3)
Unwinding of discount charged
and capitalised - - 5 - S
Batance 31 December 2007 3 92 99 4 200
Current 5 84 6 - 95
Non-current - 8 93 4 105
Balance 31 December 2007 5 92 99 4 200
Cument 5 39 7 - 51
Non-current 3 - 88 4 95
Balance 31 December 2006 8 39 95 4 146

Disposals of operations

Provision carmned forward relates to outstanding habilittes in respect of businesses disposed in pnor years, including guarantees expinng between 2007
and 2011, which remain in place following the sale of World Duty Free Americas, Inc In the current penod, £3 million of this provision was released on

the resolution of legal proceedings It was held that the Group was not liable for any further costs

Reorganisation

The Group commenced implementing its change programme ‘Simphifying the Organisation’ in late 2007 Costs associated with this programme are for
severance and pension payments only Certain costs associated with the ‘Delivenng Excellence’ programme were also incurred in the year

Obligations under land purchase

This prowision relates to the acquisition of tand for the construction of Terminal 5 The operational assets employed by the vendor of this land have
been relocated, and provision has been made for the present value of the estmated payments to be made over the next 30 years to the vendor In
compensation for this The provision of £99 milion (31 December 2006 £95 million), net of discount, 1s expected to be utitsed according to the

following profile

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m

Within one year 6 7
One to two years 6 3
Two to five years 18 13
Fve to ten years 26 28
QOver ten years 43 44
99 95

Other

A proviston of £4 miliion 15 held for the addiional 10% payment due under a compensation scheme (once planning permission has been obtained) for

the second runway and related infrastructure at Stansted Aurport

24 Trade and other payables

Restated’
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Em £m

Non-current
Other payables 3 8
Deferred income 13 14
16 22

Current

Trade payables 224 169
Other tax and social secunty 12 13
Other payables 101 137
Capital payables 290 272
627 591

"Interest payable has been reclassified from current trade and other payables to current borrowings

Trade payables are non-interest beanng and are generally on 30-day terms
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25 Assets held-for-sale

The major classes of assets and habtlities compnsing the operations classified as assets held-for-sale are as follows

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

WDFE APP Total Budapest Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m
Goodwll 11 - - - 59 59
Intangible assets (excluding goodwll) 11 - - - 891 891
Property, plant and equipment 9 5 - 35 326 326
Investment property 10 - 430 430 7 71
Available for sale investments 13 - 40 40 - -
Inventones 24 - 24 7 7
Trade and other recewables 5 4 9 68 68
Denvatwe financial instruments - - - 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents 16 <] 4 10 7 37
Deferred tax assets 20 2 - 2 - -
Total assets classified as held-for-sale 72 478 550 1,460 1,460
Trade and other payables 49 21 70 88 a8
Non current borrowings - 183 183 - -
Group relief payable 11 - " - -
Deferred tax kabilities {(far value
reserve} 29 - 2 2 . -
Deferred tax habilities 20 - - - 30 30
Provisions - - - 7 7
Total habilties classified as held-for-sale 60 208 266 125 125
Net assets of disposal Group 12 272 284 1,335 1,335

Dunng 2007 sale processes commenced for BAA's interests in APP and WDFE It s anticipated that these transactions will be completed in 2008 BAA
considers that these transactions satisfy the requirements of IFRS § - 'Non-cument assets heldfor-sale and discontinued operations As a
consequence, assets and llabiities of £550 million and £266 million respectively have been reclassified as held-for-sale No significant profit or loss 1s

expected to be realised on the sales

The investment properties held by APP were valued by King Sturge, Valuers and Surveyors

The assels classified as held-for-sale balance at 31 December 2006 represented the assets and abiibies of Budapest Airport This sale was completed

in June 2007

26 Share capital

Authorised
1,300,000,000 orchnary shares of £1 each

1,300,000,000

Balance at 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007

1,300,000,000

Allotted and fully paid

In 1ssue at 1 January 2007 1,102,400,315 ordinary shares of £1 each

1,102,400,315

In issue at 31 December 2007 1,102,400,315 ordinary shares of £1 each

1,102,400,315

The immediate parent company, ADIL, owns 100% share capital of the Company The ultimate parent of ADIL in UK 1s FGP Topeo Limited, a company
owned by Ferrovial Infraestructuras, S A (56 7%), Lemamara, SL (5 3%) (Grupo Ferrowial company), Bntannia Awport Partners LP (29 0%) (a
Caisse de dépdt et placement du Québec group company), and Baker Street Investment Pte Ltd (10%) The ultimate parent entity 1s of the majonty
shareholder (Ferrowial Infraestructuras, S A ) 1s Grupo Ferrowial, S A (Spain)

27 Share premium

£m
Balance 1 Apnl 2006 245
Premium on shares 1ssued 80
Balance 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 325

28 Revaluation reserve

£m
Balance 1 Apnl 2006 and 1 January 2007 388
Realisation of reserve 2)
Balance 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 386

The revaluation reserve relates to the historic revaluation of operational assets that have since been reclassified to investment properies Current

revaluations of investment properties are included In the income statement
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29 Fair value and other reserves

Cash
Equity flow Avallable for Currency Capntal
option Hedge sale Translation Redemption
Note Reserve Reserve Investments Reaserve Reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance 1 April 2006 65 (22) - (40} 27 30
Farr value (losses)ygains - (30) 4 - - (26)
Transferred to income statement - 58 - - - 58
Deferred tax on fair value (gains) - (6) - - - (6)
Current tax on fair value {gans) - 2) {1} - - (3)
Currency translation - - - 31 - "
Balance 1 January 2007 65 (2) 3 (9 2v 84
Farr value gains - 82 17 - - 99
Transferred to Income statement - (139) (9} - - {148}
Deferred tax on fair value losses/ (gains) - 1 {3) - - 8
Deferred tax — Assets held-for-sale 25 - 2) - - - (2}
Current tax on farr value losses - 4 - - - 4
Currency translation - - - 23 - 23
Cumulative translation gain transferred to
tncome statement on disposal of
disconbinued operations 7 - - - (15) - _{15)
Balance 31 December 2007 65 (46) 8 {1} 27 53
30 Retained earnings
£m
Balance 1 Apnl 2006 4,243
Dividends paid (243)
Net profit for the year 463
Share-based payments 16
Actuana! loss on pensions (58)
Tax on actuanat loss on pensions 18
Tax on items taken to equity 1
Balance 1 January 2007 4,440
Net profit for the year 743
Realisation of reserves 2
Share-based payments 3 |
Actuanal gain on pensions 375
Tax on actuanal gatn on pensions {105)
Change In tax rate {4)
indexation of operating land 5
Balance 31 December 2007 5,459

Share-based payments for the penod ended 31 December 2006 are in relation to share plans that were i place in the Company and closed out on

acquisition by the Ferrowial-led consortium

31 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments — Group as a lessee
Total future mimimum rentals payable as at the penod end are as follows

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Land and Land and
bulldings Other buildings Other
£m £m £m £m
Within one year 22 46 26 47
Within two to five years 92 178 79 179
After five years 160 2,653 127 2,720
274 2,877 232 2 946

The Group leases vanous offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have vanous terms, escalabion
clauses and renewable nghts The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating leases

The sigruficant portion of the £2 9 bilkon operating lease commitments classified as ‘other’ are electnaty supply equipments at the arports under a
leased 75-year agreement with London Electncity Supply

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments — Group as a lessor
Total future minimum rentals receivable as at the period end are as follows

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Land and Land and
buildings Other butldings  Other
Em £m Em £m
Within one year 121 2 109 9
Within two to five years 335 - 317 2
After five years 518 - 548 -
974 2 974 11
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The Group uses a number of different leasing and contractual structures depending on the type and location of the investment property Typically in
mult-let offices and ndustnal premises a standard indefimte tenancy s used, which 1s determinable by the tenant on three months notice at any time
However, it 1Is common for the accommodation to remain fet or be quickly re-let should 1t be vacated For larger, stand alone premises, e g cargo
sheds, longer leases of multiples of three years are used

Public car parks and car rental facilites are operated under concession agreements subject to minmum guaranteed payments, the amounts for which
are included above

Group commitments for property, plant and equipment

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m
Contracted for, but not accrued
Terminal 5, Heathrow Airport 38 108
Property, plant and equipment at Budapest Airport - 174
Gatwick Landside Inter Termmnal Transit System 20 -
Common User, Glasgow 7 -
Passenger Search X-Ray Heathrow 7 -
South terminal extension — Stansted 6 -
East terminal extension — Heathrow 5 -
Personal Rapid Transport 5 -

88 282

Other projects 91 78

179 360

The figures presented in the above table are contractual commitments to purchase goods and services at balance sheet date The Group has in place
long-term capital expenditure programmes covenng its regulated airports  Our submussion to the CAA in respect of quinquennium 5 included capital
expenditure for Heathrow and Gatwick is £3,877 million and £874 million (2007/08 pnces) respectively  |n line with our commitments with the regulator,
capital expenditure expected for Heathrow and Gatwick dunng 2008 amounts £683 milion and £181 million, respectively Under the terms of regulation,
certain penalties apply if capital expenditure does not meet certain tnggenng events These penalties would not be significant in 2008

The White Paper sets out the Government's policy for runway development in the UK The Government chose a second runway at Stansted as its
preferred location for the first new runway in the South East of England As the development of Stansted will be the subject of a planning inquiry, the
Group 15 pressing ahead with the necessary preparation of a planrung application and environmental impact assessment The anticipated costs of
preparing for and undertaking the planming application are approximately £66 milion 1o 31 March 2008 These costs are being capitalised as part of the
runway and infrastructure development costs {Note 9) Total costs incurred to 31 December 2007 are £63 millon (nine months ended 31 December
2006 £46 mithon)

As part of its commitment to the Stansted development, the Group 1s operating three voluntary blight schemes {the Home Value Guarantee Scheme
(HVGS), the Home Owners Support Scheme and the Special Cases Scheme) for those pecple most affected by the airport expansion The current
estimate of the net cost of the blight and compensation schemes s up to £100 mithion (with approximately £81 million being incurred in this regulatory
penod) These costs are being capitalised as part of the runway development costs (Note 9) Total value to 31 December 2007 1s £66 million (31
December 2006 £55 mullion), including a £4 million provision for the addiional 10% payment which will become due under the HVGS blight scheme
once planmng permission has been obtained for the second runway at Stansted

The White Paper also commts the Group (and other amrport operators) to offenng noise miigation measures for existing airports and voluntary blight
schemes for future arport activity at the larger UK airports (those with more than 50,000 ar traffic movements a year) The Group camed out a detalled
examination of these White Paper provisions and consulted extensively with local communities at its arports on the implementation of potental
schemes Based on the Group's evaluation, payments under the White Paper current noise schemes are estimated at £31 mithon spread over the five
years commencing 2007 The schemes include the provision of noise insulation for community buildings and dwellings, and assistance with the costs of
relocation for dwelling owners

In June 2006, the Government announced its conclusions for the 2006-2012 mght fights regime at BAA's London arports  The regime commits BAA to
introducing a new domeshc noise nsulation scheme at Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted to address the impact of right fights on local commumnities
Based on the Group's evaluation, payments under this scheme are estimated to total £62 million, spread over the five year penod commencing 2008

In additien, there are live blight schemes to support the market for housing in areas identified for potential future runways at Heathrow, Gatwick,
Glasgow and Edinburgh arports Obligations under these schemes will only crystalise once the Group announces its intentton to pursue a planning
application for a new runway In the case of Gatwick and the Scotiish airports, this 1s unlikely in the short-term In respect of Heathrow, the Group 1s
warting on a Government decision following the DIT consultation on plans for expansion of the arport Subject to the outcome of this deciston, the
Group will assess the options avaitable and, should the Govemment's decision re-affirm its policy for adding capacity at Heathrow, it 1s possible that an
announcement on its intention to apply for planning permission may be made In the five years following, although the nature and tming remains
unknown As a consequence of the significant uncertainty associated wath decisions on potential future runways, it IS not possible to quantfy the
Group's potential obligations under these schemes

Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities, compnsing letters of credit, performance/ surety bonds, performance guarantees and other items ansing In the
nomal course of business amounting to £123 million at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £192 million)

Included in the above, n July 1998, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary Heathrow Awport Limited, entered into a cross-border lease and
leaseback in relation to the Heathrow Express roling stock owned by Heathrow Airport Limited The Company and Heathrow Airport Limited guarantes
payments that are defeased by a deposit of US$ 59 4 milion with Rabobank and US$ 15 million n US Government secunties In addition, they
guarantee early termination payments The amounts payable under this guarantee at 31 December 2007 was US$ 13 4 million

In addition to the above, pursuant o the terms of the ADIL Senior Finance Documents and the ADIL Junior Finance Documents, BAA Limited, as an
obligor, Jointly and severally guarantees ADIL Sentor and Subordinated bank loan facilites wath all other obligors up to a maximum value that shall be
no greater than the aggregate amount such as would not cause the finan¢ial and other covenants contained in the existing BAA Limited bonds to be
breached As at 31 December 2007 the guarantee, imited as stated above, 1s provided by BAA Limited , Heathrow Airport Limited, Gatwick Airport
Limited and Stansted Airport Limited and other obligors in support of ADIL Group debt totaling £1 & billon (31 December 2006 £2 S bilion) of which
the £1 3 billion 1s secured as disclosed in Note 17 The fair value of the guarantee provided by BAA Limited as of 31 December 2007 1s not matenal

The other obligors are BAA Partnerstip Limited, London Airports Limited, London Awrports 1992 Limited, London Arports 1993 Limited, Scottish
Aurports Limited, Woerld Duty Free Limited and World Duty Free (Europe} Limited




32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconcillation of net profit before tax to cash generated from continuing operations

Restated
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Note £m £m
Operating activities
Net profit before tax 563 478
Adustrments for
Finance income 5a (108) (20)
Finance costs Sa 166 149
Fair value gains on dervative {15) {7)
Depreciation’ 2 369 220
Amortisation 2 23 24
Loss/{profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 3 11
Exceptional costs — staff related costs 4 - 17
Fair value gains on investment properties 10 {45) (163)
Share-based payments expense 2 3 5
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recewables 51 “n
Decrease m inventones 7 1
Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables 1 (10)
Decrease in provisions 50 12
(Decrease) increase m retirement benefit obligations (86} 9
Cash generated from continuing operations 982 715
' Includes Heathrow Terminals 1 and 2 accelerated depreciation reported as exceptional items
{b) Financing — continuing operations
Year ended 9 months ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Issue of ordinary share capital . 102
Dividends paid to shareholders - (243)
Term facility 200 -
Senior Capex facility 780 200
Current
Proceeds released from bank revolving credit facility - (187)
Repayment of bonds {200) -
Repayment of bank loan facihties (35) -
Interest paid {408) (209)
Interest received 30 29
367 (308)

{c) Non-cash trangactions

During 2007 the only non-cash transacton which has taken ptace 1s the collechion of part of the proceeds from the disposal of Budapest through loan

notes (refer Notes 7 and 15)

33 Related party transactions

Dunng the year the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties

Year ended
31 December 2007

9 months ended
31 December 2006

Sale of goods and Sale of goods and
services services
£m £m
Malev R 20 24
Airport Property Partnership 10 5
Australia Pacific Arports Corporation 9 -
Swissport/Groundstar 4 2
Other - 2
43 33

"For the penod until disposal of Budapest Arport on 6 June 2007
Yearended 9 months ended 31

31 December 2007
Purchase of goods
and services

£m

December 2006
Purchase of goods
and services

£m

Grupo Ferrovial
Caisse de dépot et placement du Québec

{8)
{1)

8]

{2

1)




Balances outstanding with related parties were as follows

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Amounts owed from Amounts owedto  Amounts owed from Amounts owed to
related parties related parties related parties related parties
£m £m £m £m
Malev Rt - - 24 2
Airport Property Partnership 10 - 3 -
Australia Pacific Arports Corporation - - 1 -
Caisse de depot et placement du Quebec 67’ - - -
Ferrovial Infraestructuras, S A - 7 - 1
Swissport/Groundstar 1 - 1 -
Aurport Development and Investment

Limited {Note 15} 2,041 849 114 841
2,119 856 143 844

"Refer Notes 7 and 15

Apart from transactions refated to commercial actwities, the Group also has transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with the fiscal authorities in
Hungary

Airport Development and Investment Limited (ADIL) receved an unsecured loan from the Group and the amount outstanding at the 31 December 2007
was £1,967 milion (31 December 2006 £114 miflion) The Group recewved interest of £74 million during the year {nine months ended 31 December
2006 £nil) Further detaits of the loan are provided in Note 15

ADIL owns £424 million 2 94% and £425 million 2 625% convertible bonds in BAA Limited Further details of these bonds are provided 1n Note 17

The immediate parent entity of BAA Limited 1s Arport Development and Investment Limited, the UK parent entity 1s FGP Topco Limited, and the
ultirmate parent entity 1s Grupo Ferrovial, S A {Spain)

34 Principal subsidiaries and jolnt ventures

Subsidlaries
The pnneipal subsidianes whose financial position matenally affects the Group are as follows
Airport owners and operators Duty-froe retalling
Heathrow Airport Limitedt Aberdeen Awrport Limntedt World Duty Free Europe Limitedt
Gatwick Arrport Limited+t Southampton Intemational Asrport Limitedt
Stansted Airport Limitedt Societa Geshone Servizi Aeropori Campanit* (65% holding)

Glasgow Airport Limitedt
Edinburgh Aurport Limitedt
1 Held by a subsidiary undertaking
* Incorporated i ltaly

Unless othermise indicated, al! subsidianes are wholly owned and are incorporated and operate in the United Kingdom A complete hist of subsidianes
will be annexed to the next annual retum delivered to the Registrar of Companies

As descnbed in Note 31, the Company and Heathrow Airport Limited have entered into a cross-border lease and leaseback establishing a special
purpose vehicle, Paddington Rarlcars Company Limited ('PRC’), to act as an intenmediate entity under the vanous lease agreements Since the
activies of PRC are effectively under the direct control of Heathrow Asrport Limited under the terms of the lease agreement, PRC 1s deemed a quast-
subsidiary of the Company and its profit, assets, labilihes and cash flows have been consolidated into the Group

Jomnt ventures
At 31 December 2007, the Group's paincipal jeint venture {which ts not Iisted) is

% of share Country of

capital held Achivity Incorporation

Property development United

Aiwrport Property Partnership (‘APP') 50 and management Kingdom

APP has a 31 December reporting date

The investment 1s accounted for as a jont venture as the Group has joint control of this entity through its agreements with the other joint venture parties
Dunng 2007 a sale process commenced for the Group’s interest In APP It 1s anlicipated that this transaction will be completed th 2008 The Group's
share of APP's assets and liabilities are classified as held-for-sale at the balance sheet date

APP s ‘tax transparent’, and the hability for tax on APP's underlying profits rests with APP's investors The Group's share of APP's tax charge and
habilities 1s reflected as part of the Group's tax charge and balance sheet tax position

The investment in Aiwrstralia Development Group Pty was disposed of on 8 November 2007 as part of the disposal of the Australian operations The
Group’s share of investment as at 31 December 2006 and at the date of disposal was 15% At the date of disposal, Awrstralia Development Group Pty
held a 100% interest in Western Awrports Corporation Pty Limited, an Australian registered wholly owned subsidiary undertaking that manages Perth
Aurport The Group's share of revenue and profit for the period to disposal was £9 milhion and £1 million respectively
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Independent auditor's report to the members of BAA Limited

We have audited the parent company financial statements of BAA Limited for the year ended 31 December 2007
which comprise the balance sheet and the related notes These parent company financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set cut therein  We have reported separately on the Group financial
stalements of BAA Limited for the year ended 31 December 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with apphicable law and Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice} are set out in the Statement of Directors' Responsibiities

QOur responsibility 1s to audit thé parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) This report, including the opinion,
has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body In accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose  We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report Is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our pnor consent In wnting

We report to you our opinion as o whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors 1s
consistent with the parent company financial statements The information given in the Report of the Directors
includes that specific information presented in the Business Review that 1s cross referred from the Report of the
Cirectors

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited
parent company financial statements The other information comprises only the Repert of the Directors and the
Business Review We consider the imphcations for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenal Inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basss, of ewidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures In the parent company financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasenable assurance that the parent company
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other iregularity or error In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company
financial statements

Opimion

In our gpinion

. The parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2007,

. The parent company financtal statements have been properly prepared In accordance with the Companies Act

1985, and
. The information given in the Directors’ Report I1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

?W%W LU

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Reqgistered Audhtors
London

7 March 2008




Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2007

Restated’
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2 8 11
Investment in subsidianes 3 10,213 11,238
Investment in jomnt ventures 3 2 2
Available-for-sale investments 4 47 72
Denvative financial nstruments 9 94 7
Pension and other post-retbrement surplus (net of defered tax} 11 92 -
Trade and other recevables 5 9 679
10,547 12,009
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 7,294 6,387
Denvative financial instruments 9 10 1
Cash and short-term deposits 4] 118 54
7,422 6,442
Payables amounts faling due within one year
Trade and other payables 7 (3,349) (5,588)
Borrowings 8 (610) {365)
Dervative financial instruments 9 (47) (65)
Net current assets 3,416 424
Total assets less current liabilthes 13,963 12,433
Payables amounts faling due after more than cne year
Trade and other payables 7 {4) 2)
Borrowings 8 (6,590) (5.917)
Dervative financial instruments 9 (2) -
{6,596) (5,919)
Provisions for liabiibes and charges
Other provisions 10 {29) (3)
Net assets excluding pension and other postretirement liabilities 7,338 6,511
Pension and other post-retirement habilities (net of deferred tax) 11 - (160)
Net assets including pension and other post-retirement liabilities 7,338 6,351
Capital and reserves
Called up share capitat 12 1,102 1,102
Share premium 13 325 325
Revaluation reserve 14 3,634 3,375
Fair value and other reserves 15 100 23
Profil and loss account 16 2177 1,456
Equity shareholders’ funds 7,338 6,351

!Interest payable s ncluded within current borrowings at 31 December 2007 The comparative balance at 31 December 2006 has been
reclassified from trade and other payables

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authonsed for issue on 7 March 2008 and signed on behalf of the Board

JoséLeo
Chief Financial Officer




Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Company financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for available-for-sale assets, denvative financial instruments
and financial abiities that qualfy as hedged items under a fair value hedge accounting system, and in accordance with all applicable Untted Kingdom
Accounting Standards These exceptions to the histonc cost convention have been measured at fair value as permitted by the Far Value Directive as
implemented in the amended Companies Act 1985

The Company has not presented a cash flow statement or provided details of related party transactions as permitted under FRS 1 (rewised) ‘Cash Flow
Statements’ and FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ respectively

Revenue
Revenue 1s recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with FRS 5, ‘Reporting the substance of transactions' net of VAT, and compnses the recovery
of costs from Group entities

Interest

Interest payable is charged as incurred except where the bomowing finances tangible fixed assets in the course of constructon Such interest 15
capitalised once planning permission has been obtained and/or where projects are in the early stages of planming but the directors are satisfied that the
necessary consents will be received The interest s then charged to the income statement account as depreciation over the Iife of the relevant asset Al
costs incurred directly in connection with the 1ssue of debt are deducted from the proceeds and the net amount included in iabilites  Such costs, togsther
with any premium or discount on issue, are credited/charged to the profit and loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying
amount of the Liability

Tangible fixed assets

Operational assets

Plant and equipment and land and buildings are stated at cost less accumulated depraciation and impatrment losses Assets i the course of construction
are slated at cost less provision for impawment Assets in the course of construction are transferred to completed assets when substantially all the
activities necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete Where appropriate, cost includes interest capitalised, own labour costs of construction-
related project management and directly atinbutable overheads

Depreciation
Depreciation 1s provided on operational assets, other than land, to write off the cost of the assets less estmated residual value, by equal instalments over
their expected useful lives as set out below

Fixed asset ltves
Plant and equipment

Moter vehicles 4 . 8 years
Office equipment 5 —10 years
Computer equipment 4 - 5 years
Computer software 3—7 years

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings, are stated at net asset value (as determined for the Group under Intemational Financial Reporting Standards)
and reviewed for mpaiment f there are indications that the carnying value may not be recoverable

tnvestments in subsichary undertakings includes nterest free loans to subsidianes, that have ng fixed repayment date

Deferred taxation

In accordance with FRS 19, ‘Deferred tax’ deferred tax 18 provided in full on tming differences that result In an obhigation at the balance sheet date to pay
more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, at a fulure date, at rates expected to apply when the obligation crystalises, based on curent tax rates and taw Timing
differences anse from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations in penods different from those in which they are included
in financial statements Deferred tax 1s not provided on tming differences ansing from the revaluation of investment properties where there s no
commitment to sell the asset, or on unremitted eamings of subsidianes, associates and joint ventures where there 1s no commitment to remit these
eamings

Deferred tax assets are recognised {c the extent that it 1s regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered

Ceferred tax assets and habiliies are not discounted

Employee benefits

Pension costs

The Company's UK pension fund i1s a self administered defined benefit scheme In accordance with FRS 17, ‘Retrement benefits’ the service cost of
pension provision refating to the penod, together with the cost of any benefits relating to past service 1s charged to the profit and ioss account A charge
equal to the increase In the present value of the scheme liabilities (because the benefits are closer to settlement) and a credit equivalent to the
Company s long-term expected retum on assets (based on the market value of the scheme assets at the start of the penod) are included in the profit and
loss account

The difference between the market value of the assets of the scheme and the presenl value of accrued pension labilities 1s shown as an asset or hability
on the batance sheet net of deferred tax Any difference between the expected return on assets and that actually achieved 1s recognised in the statement
of total recognised gains and losses along with differences which anse from expenence or assumpbon changes

Further information on pension arangements 1S set out i Note 11
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Share based payment
The Company operates an Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP) for directors and senior employees of the business The ESOP 1s treated as an equity
seltled scheme In accordance with the grant of the options being made by Grupo Ferrovial, S A the ultimate parent company

The farr value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of optrons under the ESOP 1s recogrised as an expensa over the vesting
penod of the options with the corresponding entry recorded tn equity  The fair value of the options granted 1s measured using a binomial model adjusted
by taking into account the exercise pnce, volatiity, the term dunng which the benefits may be exercised, expected dividends, a nsk-free interest rate and
the expected timing of the exercise

At each balance sheet date over the vesting period, the cumulative expense 15 re-estmated based on the number of options expected to vest with the
impact recorded in the income statement and with a corresponding entry in equity

On exercise of the options by the employees any expense associated with the acquisition of Ferrovial shares by the Company 1s recorded within equity as
a deemed distnbuficn

The Company has entered into a number of cash-settled equity swaps that are treated as denvative financial Instruments and are intended to hedge the
future cash flows required on potential exercise of the options  The far value of these equity swap amangements 1s recorded in the balance sheet wath
the gamn or loss incurred In the penod recorded within financial income or expense

Dividend distnibution
A dmidend distnbution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recognised as a hability in the financial statements in the penod in which the shareholders nght
to receive payment of the dividend I1s established by approval of the dwdend at the Annual General Meeting Intenm dividends are recogmised when pad

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 15 an indication that an asset may be mpawed If any such indication exists, or when
annual impaiment testing for an asset 15 required, the Company makes an estimate of the assst's recoverable amount Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent of other assets, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs 1s estimated
Recoverable amount 1s the hugher of an asset's far value less costs of disposal and its value in use Where the camying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to the asset

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether there 1s any indication that previously recognised imparment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount 1s estmated A previously recognised impaiment loss 1s reversed only If there has
been a change in the estmates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recogrised If that 1s the case the
carrying amount of the asse! 15 increased to its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in pnor years After such a reversal, the depreciation charge s
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount less any residual value, on a straight-hne basis over its remaining useful lfe

Financial instruments

Trade and other recevables

Trade and other receivables are recogmsed imitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
proviston for impaiment

Investments

On snibal recogniion, financial assets are measured at far value, plus, in the case of investments not at far value through profit or loss, directly
atirbutable transaction costs After imbal recogniton, investments that are classified as ‘held-fortrading’ and ‘available-for-sale’ are measured at far
value Farr value gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised in the profit and loss account Far value gains or losses on available-for-
sale investments are recogmised in a separate component of equity unbl the investment 1s sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the investment
1s determined to be impared, at which time the cumulative fair value gain or loss previously reported in equity 1s included in the profit and loss account

Assets classified as ‘held-to-matunity’ or 'loans and recewvables’ are recognised on the balance sheet at their amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate methed, less any provision for impairment

Non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determmnable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and recewvables’ and
are carnied at amortised cost using the effective interest method Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunties
that the Company’s management has the positive intent and ability to hold-to-matunty are classified as ‘held-to-matunty’ and are carmed at amortised cost
using the effective interest method For investments carred at amortised cost, gams and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the
nvestments are de-recognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process

For investments that are traded in an actve market, fair value 1s detenmined by reference to quoted market bid pnces at the reporting date For
investments where there I1s no quoted market pnce, far value 15 determined by using valuation techniques, such as estmated discounted cash flows, or
by reference to the current market value of similar investments

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date being the date on which the Company commuts to purchase or sall the asset

Financial habihties and equity
Frnancial habiliies and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte An equity instrument 15
any contract that ewidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its habilities

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inittally at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless part of a
fair value hedge relationship Any difference between the amount intially recognised (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1$ recognised 1n
the profit and loss account over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are regarded as compound instruments, consisting of a llability component and an equity component At the date of issue, the farr
value of the hability component 1s determined using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar non-convertible bond This amount 1S recorded as a
habihity on an amortised cost basis untl extnguished on conversion or matunty of the bonds The remainder of the proceeds are allocated to the
conversion opton and recogrised in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax

Trade and other payabies
Trade and other payables are not interest bearng and are stated at therr fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method
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Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the par value of proceeds recewved, net of direct 1ssue costs Where shares are 1ssued above
par value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account

Financial nsk management objectives and policies

The Company's pnncipal financial instruments, except denvatives, compnse bank loans, listed bonds, listed convertble bonds, cash and cash
equivalents The man purpose of these instruments 1s to raise finance for the Company's operations

The Company also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward currency contracts The purpose
of these denvatives Is to manage the interest rate and currency nsks ansing from the Company's operations and its sources of finance In 2007 the
Company has entered mto a number of equity swaps to hedge share pnce nsk under the ESOP

The Company does not use financial Instruments for speculative purpeses The treasury function operates on a centralised non-speculative nsk basis
Treasury’s function I1s to identfy, mitigate and hedge treasury-related financial nsks inherent to the Company's business operations, In accordance with
Company treasury policies

The main nisks ansing from the Company’s financial instruments are market nsk (including farr value interest rate nsk, foreign currency nsk, cash flow
interest rate nsk and price nsk), credit nsk and iquidity nsk The Beard approves prudent treasury policies for managing each of the nsks summansed
below

Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange nisk mainly anses from future commercial transactions and mvestments in foreign operations The Company does not hedge the
transiation nsk related to investments in foreign operations

For debt raised 1n foreign currencies, the Company uses cross-currency swaps to hedge the related interest and principal payments In cases where debt
1s raised in foreign currencies, 100% of the exposure 15 hedged in this way, subject to a de minimus imit The Company uses foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge matenal capital expenditure in foreign currencies once a project 1s certan to proceed

Price nsk
The Company 1s not matenally exposed to equity secunty pnce nsk on investments held by the Company and classified on the consolidated balance
sheet as available for sale

The Company i1s exposed lo share price nsk of its ultimate parent, Grupo Ferrovial, S A , ansing from s ESOP programme The Company uses equity
swaps 1o manage this exposure

The Company is exposed to the nsk of an increase in the pnces of commodities, in particular electneity, used within its operations To manage the risk the
Company enters in electncity purchase contracts which allow the Company to fix the future purchase price of electricity

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company's Interest rate nsk anses pnmanly from s boerrowmings Borrowings 1ssued at vanable interest rates expose the Company to cash flow
interest rate nsk Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate nsk The Company’s policy Is to maintain a mix of fixed
to floating rate debt wathin Board approved parameters such that a mimmum of 70% of existing and forecast debt s at a fixed rate To manage this mix,
the Company enters interest rate swaps These swaps may be designated to hedge underying debt obligations

The Company also uses floating rate interest bearing financial assets as a natural hedge of the exposure cash flow interest rate nsk The Company may
use forward-starting interest rate swaps to minimise exposure to cash flow interest rate nsk for future forecast 1ssuance of debt

Credit risk

Credit nsk arnses from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial instruments, and accounts recervable The Company has no significant
concentrations of credit nsk The Company’s exposure to credit related losses, in the event of non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments,
1s mitigated by imiting exposure to any one party or instrument and ensunng only counterparties within defined credit nsk parameters are used

Liguidity risk
The Company’s objective 1s to ensure continuity of funding and flexibility, ensunng debt matunties are spread over a range of dates, thereby ensuning that
the Company i1s not exposed to excessive refinancing rnisk in any one year

Dervative financial instruments and hedging activities

Denvatives are initially recognised at farr value on the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at thesr farr value The
method of recogrising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the denvative 1s designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the itemn
being hedged The Company designates certain denvatives as either

= fair value hedges, where they hedge the exposure to changes of a recognised assets or habiity or
= cash flow hedges, where they hedge the exposure to vanabihity in cash flows that are either attnbutable to a particular nsk associated with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset, hability or forecasted transaction

The Company documents at the inception of the transachion the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its nsk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking vanous hedging transactions The Company also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inceplion and on an ongoing basis, of whether the dervatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of hedged items

The full fair value of a hedging denvative 1s classified as a non-current asset or hability when the remaining hedged itern 1s more than 12 months, and as a
current asset or hability when the remaining matunty of the hedged item s fess than 12 months Denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
classified as a current asset or hability

{a) Farr value hedge

Changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the profit and loss, together wath any changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are attnbutable to the hedged nisk The Company only applies fair value hedge accounting for hedging
fixed nterest nsk on borrowings The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 1s recogmised in the
profit and loss

If the hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest
method is used 1s arnortised to profit or loss aver the penod to matunty

(b) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recogrised in equity The gamn or
loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogrised immediately in the profit and loss

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the profit and loss in the penods when the hedged item affects profit or loss
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When a hedging instrument expires or I1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the ¢ntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gan or loss existing in
equity at that tme rematns in equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately recognised in the profit and loss When a forecast
transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity 1s tmmediately transferred to the profit and foss

{c) Denvatives at farr value through profit or loss

Cenain denvative instruments do not qualfy for hedge accounting Changes in the far value of any these denvative instruments are recogmised
immediately in the profit and loss
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Company result for the year
As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of the Company 1s not presented as part of these financial
statements The profit of the Company for the year attnbutable to shareholders was £459 mullion (31 December 2006 £343 million loss)

2 Tangible assets

Assets in the

Plant and course of
equipment construction Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Balance t January 2007 24 3 27
Additions 2 - 2
Transfer to completed assets 3 (3) -
Disposals {2) - (2}
Balance 31 December 2007 27 - 27
Depreciation
Balance 1 January 2007 (16) - {16}
Charge (5) - (5)
Disposals 2 - 2
Balance 31 December 2007 (19) - {19)
Net book value 31 December 2007 8 - 8
Net book value 31 December 2006 8 3 11
3 Investments
Subsidianes Joint ventures Total
£m £m £m
Cost
Balance 1 January 2007 7,485 2 7,487
Additions 98 - 98
Decrease in loans to subsidiary undertakings {1,382} - {1,382)
Balance 31 December 2007 6,201 4 6,203
Revaluation
Balance 1 January 2007 3,753 - 3,753
Revaluation surplus ansing dunng the year 259 - 259
Balance 31 December 2007 4,012 4,012
Net book value 31 December 2007 10,213 2 10,215
Net bock valug 31 December 2006 11,238 2 11,240

The additions in the penod of £98 million relate to the transfer of the investment in Societa Gestione Servizi Agoporti Campari from BAA {International
Holdings) Limited to BAA Limited on the disposal of BAA (Intemational Holdings) Limited

The decrease 1n loans to subsiciary undertakings includes £1,351 million which relates to the disposal of BAA (International Holdings) Limited
Details of pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are provided in Note 34 of the Group financial statements

The investment in subsidiary undertakings {including interest free loans with no fixed repayment date) 1s stated at net asset value as determined for the
Group under IFRSs

4 Available-for-sale investments

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m
Unlisted securities
Balance 1 January / 1 Apnl 72 68
Disposal {42} -
Revaluation surplus transtferred to equity 17 4
Balance 47 72

Avallable for sale investments include £47 million (31 December 2006 £72 million) n National Air Traffic Services Group ('NATS'), the UK's national air
traffic services provider The nvestment in NATS represents a 4 19% equity interest and £24 million prionty loan notes yielding a fixed interest rate of
8 5% with a matunty of 2032 During the year the £33 mullion undated loan notes were fully redeemed at the fair value of £41 million and £1 milion were
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redeemed on the £24 million 2032 pnonty loan notes The Group does not exercise significant long-term mfluence over NATS and accordingly the

investment has been classified as an avallable-for-sale investment

The equity investment 15 valued by discounting the forecast dividend stream and discounting an assigned terminal vatue to the equity in 2032 A rate of
10 5% (31 December 2006 10 5%} has been used as the discount factor The prionity loan notes investment 1s valued by discounting future interest and

principal payments

5 Trade and other receivables

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 5217 6,105
Amounts owed by the parent company 1,967 114
Current income tax - 3
Other recevables 110 137
7,294 6,387
Trade recevables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 day terms
Due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - 659
Deferred tax asset’ 24 20
Other recevables® §7 -
9 679
7,385 7,066

' Provision has been made for deferred tax in accordance with FRS 19 The amounts provided in the accounts are detalled below
2 Non-current other recevables includes £67 miflion 6 0% loan notes due 2041 which were received in connection with the disposal of Budapest Arport

The Company has provided an unsecured loan to its immediate parent company {ADIL) to service its interest costs and debt repayments Details of loan

are provided in Note 15 of the Group financial statements

These notes are part of the investments of the Group and designated as loans and receivables under FR325

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Amounts provided
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation {2) (13)
Financial instruments (24) 8)
Other short-term differences 2 1
(24) {20)

6 Cash and short-term deposits
31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 46 17
Money market funds 70 37
Short-term deposits 2 -
118 54

Cash at bank and in hand eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates and i1s subject to interest rate nsk

Money market funds held at 31 December 2007 total £70 milion (31 December 2006 £37 millon) The funds have no fixed matunty date, however the
Company can withdraw its tnvestment on demand Retums are based on fund performance

The farr value of cash and cash equivalents approximate their book value

7 Trade and other payables

Restatad
31 December 2007 31 December 2005
£m £m
Due within one year
Unsecured payables
Trade payables 45 54
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 3,134 5,503
Corpoeration tax 127 -
Other tax and social secunty 10 9
Capntal payables - 2
Dwidends payable 4 5
Other payables 29 15
3,349 5,588
Due after more than one year
Other payables 4 2
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8 Borrowings

Restated’
Effective 31 December 2007 31 December 2006
interest rate Em £m
Due within one year
Unsecured
BAA Limited bonds
7 875% £200 milion due 2007 B 04% 200
Bank Loans Vanous 43 34
43 234
Borrowings from parent
Unsecured
BAA Limited convertible bonds
2 94% £424 million due 2008 6 42% 424 -
Total current {(excluding interest payable) 467 234
Interest payable 143 131
Total current 610 365
Non-current
Secured
Senior Capex Facility Vanous 980 200
£200 million Term Facility Various 200 -
Unsecured
BAA Limited bonds
3 875% €1,000 million due 2012 401% 732 670
5 750% £400 mullon due 2013 5 88% 398 397
4 500% €750 milliron due 2014 4 51% 554 508
11 750% £300 million due 2016 11 16% 310 310
4 500% €750 million due 2018 4 83% 548 501
8 500% £250 million due 2021 8 64% 247 247
5 125% £750 milion due 2023 567% 738 738
6 375% £200 milhon due 2028 6 50% 197 197
5 750% £900 milhon due 2031 582% 893 898
Bank loans Vanous 368 410
6,165 5,076
Borrowings from parent
Unsecured
BAA Limited convertible bonds
2 940% £424 milion due 2008 6 42% - 424
2 625% £425 million due 2008 543% 425 417
425 841
Total non-current 6,590 5917

Total current and non-current (excluding
Interest payable) 7,057 6,151

" Interest payable 15 included within current borrowings, Senior Capex Facility included within non-current borrowings at 31 December 2007 The
comparative balance at 31 December 2006 has been raclassified from trade and other payables and current borrowings respectively

BAA

bonds

The 7 875% £200 millon bond matured in February 2007 and was refinanced by a bank £200 milhon Term Facility

Bonds are camed at amortised cost and the carrying value includes amortised transaction costs, premiums and discounts

Interest a2nd pnncipal payments on all Euro bonds are swapped to fixed Sterling payments through cross-currency interest rale swaps, with the
excephbon of interest payments on £38 milion nominal of the 2014 Euro bond, which are floating interest rate payments based on LIBOR

All BAA Stering bonds bear fixed rate coupons A portion of the 5 75% £900 mullion bord had been hedged for fair value nsk and the interest
payments on £200 mulion of this bond had been swapped into floating interest payments until June 2007, when the hedge was terminated

Bonds 1ssued under the £4 5 bilion European Medium Term Note programme totalled £3,603 milion (31 December 2006 £3,603 milon) The
camying value of these bonds was £ 3,713 rmillion as at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £3,563 milion}

The Group's £424 million 2 94% convertible bonds convert at the option of the holder into fully-paid £1 ordinary shares of the Company at a pnce of
800 pence per share at any time up to 28 March 2008 The Group’s £425 million 2 625% convertible bonds convert at the option of the holder into
fully-paid £1 ordinary shares of the Company at a prce of 576p per share at any time up to 5 August 2009 Unless previously redeemed or
converted, the Group will redeem the bonds at par on 4 Apnl 2008 and 19 August 2009 respectively

Other borrowings

The Semor Capex Facility was £980 million drawn as at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006 £200 millon) This revolving facthty matures in
2011 and amounts repaid may be subsequently redrawn The interest payments on £350 milhon of the facility were fixed through Group s portfolio
of interest rate swaps as at 31 December 2007 A commitment fee of 0 70% apphes to undrawn amounts of this facility The interest rates on the
facility 1s based on Libor plus a margin The margin on the faciity as at 31 December 2007 was 2 00% (31 December 2006 1 00%) The future
contractual step-ups in the margin are as following

January 2008 0 125%
July 2008 0 15%
January 2009 0 20%
July 2009 0 20%

The £200 mithon Term Facility was drawn in February 2007 to repay Lhe matured 7 875% £200 mitlion bond The faciity matures in 2011 and bears
floating interest rate based on Libor plus a margin As at 31 December 2007 the margin on the faciity was 0 90% and from 15 February 2008
Increased to 1 00%

As at 31 December 2007 the unsecured bank loans include EIB bark loans of £411 milhon (31 December 2006 £444 mithion) The EIB facities
amortise over the penod to 2019 The interest rate on these facilities 1s predominantly floating, except for £20 million principal which s fixed at
6 58%
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The Company and certamn of its subsidianes have given secunty over their respective assets in support of the £200 milion Term Facility and the Senior
Capex Facility as well as the ADIL Sentor and Subordinated bank loan faciites By virtue of an intercreditor agreement any claim under such secunty 1s
limited so that the clain does not result In a breach of the financial covenants in the existing BAA Limited bonds As at 31 December 2007 secunty,
limited as stated above, 1s provided by the Company and its subsidianes i support of the Company debt totaling £1,180 million {31 December 2006
£200 mithon) !n addiion the amount of secunty provided in respect of the guarantees 1ssued to support the debt incurred by ADIL 1s £1 3 bithon {31
December 2006 £2 3 billon) The total amount of the upstream guarantee disciosed in Note 18, 1s £1 8 billion

Borrowings are repayable as follows
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

Within cne year 467 434
Between one and two years 468 466
Between two and five years 2,022 534
After five years 4,100 4 717
1,057 6,151

Borrowing facilities
The Company has the following undrawn committed borrowing faciities available at 31 December in respect of which all canditions precedent had been

met at that date
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

Floating rate faciliies
Expining in more than two years 1,270 2,050
1,270 2,050

In February 2008 the :mmediate parent company (ADIL) entered into a new Senior Capex faciity of £800 millon The Company will access that facility
through ADIL once the existing undrawn Capex facility of £1,020 milion {31 December 2006 £1,800 million) is fully drawn down In additon, as at 31
December 2007, overdraft faciliies of £10 mullion (31 December 2006 £25 mitlion) were available to the Company

9 Derivative financial instruments

The Company's denvative financial instruments are consolidated with those of the Group and are incorporated in the disglosure in Note 18 of the Group
financial statements

10 Other provisions
Reorganisation

£m
Balance 1 January 2007 3
Utiised (2)
Charged to profit and loss account 28
Balance 31 December 2007 29
Classified as
Provisions for labilities and charges 29

Reorganisation costs utiised during the year relate to the Group-wide programme to improve customer service and operational efficiency In addition, a
new provision has been set up for costs relating to a new iInitiative launched in the year entitled "Simplifying the Orgamsation™

11 Retrement benefit obligations

The lotal pension cost included within operating costs 1s darived as fallows

Year ended 9 months ended

31 Decemnber 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

BAA Pension Scheme 101 87
Additional provision for unfunded pensions 1 (5)
Total operating charge to staff costs 102 82

Analysis of pension and other post retirement habilities (net of deferred tax)

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m
BAA Pension Scheme 108 (145)
Cther pension and post retirement schemes {16) {15)
Surplus/ (deficit) 31 December 92 (160)

{a) BAA Penslion Scheme

The Company operates one main pension scheme for its UK empioyees the BAA Pension Scheme, which is a funded defined benefit scheme with both
open and closed sections The scheme's assels are held separately from the assets of the Company and are administered by trustees
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The values placed on the liabilities of the scheme as at 31 December 2007 1s based on the wutial results of the actuanal valuation undertaken at 30
September 2007 The value placed on the liabilities of the scheme as at 31 December 2006 1s based on the results of the actuanal valuation undertaken
at 30 September 2004 The labilities have been updated by Mercer Limited, to take account of changes in economic and demographic assumptions, n
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 17 ‘Retrement Benefits’ The Scheme assets are stated at their bid value at 31 December 2007 and 31

December 2006

The financial assumptions used to calculate Scheme assets and habiliies under FRS 17 are

31 December 2007
L7

31 December 2006

% %
Rate of increase in pensionable salanes 49 46
Increase to deferred benefits duning deferment 34 31
Increase to pensions In payment
Open section 33 30
Closed sechon 34 31
Discount rate 58 52
Inftatien assumption 34 31

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pensions labilibes at the balance sheet date are based on standard actuanal mortality tables, and
nclude an allowance for future Improvements in longevity The assumptions are eguivalent to a life expectancy for a 60-year old male pensioner of 24 8
years and 25 9 years from age 60 for a 40 year old male non-pensioner The assumptions are the same as those used at 31 December 2006

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit

Year ended 9 months ended

31 Decernber 2007 31 December 2006

£m £m

Current service cost 88 68
Past service costs 2 2
Total operating charge pre-exceptional items 90 70
Exceptional past service cost 11 17
Total operating charge 101 87

Analysis of the amounts recognised n other finance iIncome

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (123) (83}
Expected retum on pension scheme assets 135 98
Net return 12 15

Analysis of the amounts recognised tn the statement of total recognised gains and losses

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Actual return less expected return on plan assets @) (57)
Expenence gamns and losses ansing on the benefit cbligation 130 {8}
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
benefit obligation 249 7
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in the statement of
recognised income and expense 375 (58)

Expected rates of return on assets were
31 December 2007

31 December 2006
L]

31 March 2006

31 March 2005

% % % %
Equities 82 80 72 77
Bonds 5 46 45 49
Other 55 50 46 47

Assets In the scheme were
31 December 2007

31 December 2006

31 March 2006

31 March 2005

£m £m £m £m

Market value of assels

Equities 1,119 1,514 1,484 1,157

Bonds 1,062 573 569 502

Other 92 38 19 i6
Total market value of scheme assets 2,273 2,125 2,072 1,675
Present value of scheme liabilities (2,123} (2,332} {2,196) (1,850}
Surplus/! (deficit) in the scheme 150 (207) (124) (175}
Related deferred tax asset (42) 62 37 52
Surplus/ (deficit) recognised in the balance
sheet 108 {145) (87) (123)
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Analysis of movement in surplus/(deficit) during the year
31 Decomnber 2007

31 December 2006

i £m £m
Deficit in scheme at 1 Apnit (207) (124)
Movement in the year

Current service cost (88) (58)
Past service cost (13) (19)
Other finance income 12 16
Actuanal (loss)gain 375 (58)
Contnbutions 71 46
Surplus/ (deficit) in scheme at end of period 150 {207)
History of experience gains and losses
Year ended 9 months ended

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

Year ended
31 March 2006

Year ended
31 March 2005

Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets

Amount £m (4} (58} 273 43
Percentage of scheme assets {0 2} (27} 132 26
Expenence gains and losses on benefits obligations
Amount £m 130 (8) 14 19
Percentage of scheme habilities 61 (0 3) 06 10
Amount recognised in the statement of recogrised gans and
losses
Amount £m 375 (58) 71 {9)
Percentage of benefit obligation 177 {2 5) 32 {05)

(b} Other pension and post-retirement llabilitles

The Cempany provides unfunded pensions in respect of directors and senior employees whose benefits are restricted by the BAA Pens:on Scheme rules

The impact of these arrangements i the accounts 1s as follows

Year ended 9 months ended
31 Decamber 2007 31 December 2006
£m £m
Amount charged to operating profit 1 6)
Amount set off against other finance income 1 1
Amount recognised in the statement of total recognised
gains and losses - 2

The Company provides post-retirement medical benefits to certain pensioners The present value of the future liabilibes under this arangement have
been assessed by the actuary and this amount of £3 millon {31 December 2006 £3 million) 1s included in the balance sheet, along with provision for

unfunded pension obligations of £16 million (31 December 2006 £15 mdhion)

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

£m £m
Unfunded pension obligations (13) (12)
Post-retirement medical benefits (3) (3}
Deficit in scheme (16) (15)

The value of unfunded pensions has been assessed by the actuary using the same assumptions as those used to calculate the pension scheme habilties
except that salary increases have been assumed to be 5 9% per annum {31 December 2006 5 6%)

12 Share capital

Authorised
1,300,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

1,300,000 000

Balance 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007

1,300,000,000

Allotted and fully paid
Inissue at 1 January 2007 1,102,400,315 ordinary shares of £1
each

1,102,400,315

In issue 31 December 2007 1,102,400,315 ordinary shares of
£1 each

1.102,400,315
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13 Share premlum

£m
Balance 1 January 2007 325
Premium on shares issued -
Balance 31 December 2007 325
14 Revaluation reserve
£m
Balance 1 January 2007 3,375
Investments in subsidianes 259
Balance 31 December 2007 3,634
15 Fair value and other reserves
Equity Fair Availlable for Capital
option value sale Redemption
Reserve Reserve investments Reserve Total
£m fm fm £m £m
Balance at 1 April 2006 65 (22) - 27 70
Cash flow hedges
Fair value (lossesygans - (30) 4 - (26}
Transferred to profit and loss account - 58 - - 58
Deferred tax on far value (gains) - (6) - - (6)
Current tax on farr value (gains} - (2} {1) - {3)
Balance at 1 January 2007 65 (2) 3 27 93
Cash flow hedges
Fair value gams . 138 17 - 155
Transferred to profit and loss account - (136) {9) - {145)
Deferred tax on fair value {gains) - - {3) - (3)
Balance at 31 December 2007 65 - 8 27 100
16 Profit and loss account
£m
Balance at 1 January 2007 1,456
Retained gains for the financial year 459
Actuanal gain on pensions net of deferred tax 375
Tax on actuarial gain on pensicns (105)
Share-based payments charge 3
Other movements {11)
Balance at 31 December 2007 2,177

17 Commitments and contingent habilities

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments - Company as a lessee

Total future minimum rentals payable as at the penod end are as follows

31 December 2007

31 December 2006

Land and

Land and

buildings Other buildings Other
£m £m £m £m
Within two to five years 1 1 1 1
After five years 5 - 1 -
6 1 1

The Company leases vanous offices and warshouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have vanous terms, escalation

clauses and renewable nghts The Company also operates plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating leases

Details of the commitments are provided in Note 31 of the Group financial statements

18 Conttngent liabilities

Tha Company has contingent liabiites, compnsing letters of credit, perfformance/surety bonds, performance guarantees and other items ansing in the

course of business amounting to £123 million (31 December 2006 £192 million) Included in the above are the following

In July 1998, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Heathrow Airport Limited, entered into a cross-border lease and leaseback in relation to
the Heathrow Express rolling stock owned by Heathrow Airport Limited The Company and Heathrow Airport Limited guarantee payments that are
decreased by a deposit of US$594 million with Rabebank and US$15 million in US Government secunties In addition they guarantee early
termination payments The amount payable under this guarantee at 31 December 2007 was US$13 4 million (31 December 2006 US$14 5 milhon)




In addition to the above, pursuant to the terms of the ADIL Senior Finance Documents and the ADIL Junior Finance Documents, the Company, as an
obligor, jointly and severally guarantees ADIL Semor and Subordinated faciliies with all other obligors up to a maximum value that shall be no greater
than the aggregate amount such as would not cause the financial and other covenants contained in the BAA Limited bonds to be breached The farr value
of the guarantee prowvided by the Company and other obligors as of 31 December 2007 1s not matenal Further details are provided in Note 31 of the
Group financial statements

The other obligors are BAA Partnerstup Limited, BAA (intemational Holdings} Lirited, London Airports Limited, Gatwack Awrport Limited, Heathrow Airport
Limited, Stansted Airport Limited, London Asrports 1992 Limited, London Airports 1993 Limited, Scotush Airports Limited, Werld Duty Free Limited and
World Duty Free {Europe) Limited

19 Share based payments

The Company recognised a total expense, within staff related cosls, in relation to share based payments of £3 million {nine months ended 31 December
2006 £ni)

Details of share based payments are provided in Note 22 of the Group financial statements

20 Dividends paid and proposed

Details of dividends paid for the year are provided in Note 8 of the Group financial statements

21 Auditor's remuneration

Auditor's remuneration paid to PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the performance of the statutory audit amounted to £0 2 million (31 December 2006 £0 2
million)

Details of fees for other services are provided in Note 2 of the Group finanoal statements

22 Directors’ remuneration

Details of directors' remuneration for the year are provided in Note 3 of the Group financial statements

23 Employees and directors
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors} of the Company was 10,275 (31 December 2006 9,884)

Of the above employees, 10,100 (31 December 2006 9,701) are wholly employed in providing services to subsidiary undertakings of the Group and therr
wages and salanes and cther related costs of employment are charged to those subsidianes
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Registered office

BAA Limited, 130 Wilton Road, London SW1V 1LQ
Registered in England No 1970855
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